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EXPLANATORY NOTE

This Amendment No. 2 (this “Amendment”) on Form 10-K/A, which amends and restates items identified below with respect to the
Form 10-K filed by ZST Digital Networks, Inc. (“we” or the “Company”) with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”)
on March 31, 2010, as amended by the Amendment No.1 on Form 10-K/A filed with the SEC on April 30, 2010 (the “Original
Filing”), is being filed to reflect revisions to Selected Financial Data, Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operation, and Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.

The Company has revised its financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2009 and as of December 31, 2009 to reflect
various adjustments to account for restatements made due to an error in the accounting record of warrants exercised and Series A
Convertible Preferred Stock converted during the period, resulting in an understatement of the Company’s common stock issued and
outstanding for the period as well as a misstatement of the Company’s basic and diluted earnings per share.

This Form 10-K/A only amends information in ffem 6 (Selected Financial Data), Item 7 (Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operation), and Item 8 (Financial Statements and Supplementary Data). Other Items presented in
the Original Filing are not being amended but are restated without change in this Amendment for ease of reference.

As a result of this Amendment, the certifications pursuant to Section 302 and Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, filed as
exhibits to our Original Filing have been revised, re-executed and re-filed as of the date of this Amendment. Except for the foregoing
amended and restated information, this Amendment continues to describe conditions as of the date of the Original Filing, and the
disclosures contained herein have not been updated to reflect events, results or developments that have occurred after the Original
Filing, or to modify or update those disclosures affected by subsequent events unless otherwise indicated in this report. Among other
things, forward-looking statements made in the Original Filing have not been revised to reflect events, results or developments that
have occurred or facts that have become known to us after the date of the Original Filing, and such forward-looking statements should
be read in their historical context. This Amendment should be read in conjunction with the Company’s filings made with the SEC
subsequent to the Original Filing, including any amendments to those filings.
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CAUTIONARY STATEMENT REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

The information contained in this Annual Report on Form 10-K/A, including in the documents incorporated by reference into this
Annual Report on Form 10-K/A, includes some statements that are not purely historical and that are “forward-looking statements.”
Such forward-looking statements include, but are not limited to, statements regarding the Company and its management’s expectations,
hopes, beliefs, intentions or strategies regarding the future, including its financial condition and results of operations. In addition, any
statements that refer to projections, forecasts or other characterizations of future events or circumstances, including any underlying
assumptions, are forward-looking statements. The words “anticipates,” “believes,” “continue,” “could,” “estimates,” “expects,”
“intends,” “may,” “might,” “plans,” “possible,” “potential,” “predicts,” “projects,” “seeks,” “should,” “will,” “would” and similar
expressions, or the negatives of such terms, may identify forward-looking statements, but the absence of these words does not mean
that a statement is not forward-looking.

2 ¢ 2 ¢
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The forward-looking statements contained in this Annual Report on Form 10-K/A are based on current expectations and beliefs
concerning future developments and the potential effects on the parties and the transaction. There can be no assurance that future
developments actually affecting the Company will be those anticipated. These forward-looking statements involve a number of risks,
uncertainties (some of which are beyond the parties’ control) or other assumptions that may cause actual results or performance to be
materially different from those expressed or implied by these forward-looking statements, including the following:

. our ability to maintain and increase revenues and sales of our products;

. our ability to develop and market new products;

. competitive nature of our industry;

° market acceptance of our products;

. our reliance on intellectual property, some of which is owned by third parties;

° our strategic investments and acquisitions;

. compliance and changes in the laws of the PRC that affect our operations;

. continued maintenance of certificates, permits and licenses required to conduct business in China;

. vulnerability of our business to general economic downturn, especially in the PRC; and

. the other factors referenced in this Current Report, including, without limitation, under the sections entitled “Risk
Factors,” “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations,” and
“Business.

These risks and uncertainties, along with others, are also described below under the heading “Risk Factors.” Should one or more of
these risks or uncertainties materialize, or should any of the parties’ assumptions prove incorrect, actual results may vary in material
respects from those projected in these forward-looking statements. The Company undertakes no obligation to update or revise any
forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise, except as may be required under
applicable securities laws.




PART 1
ITEM 1. BUSINESS.
Overview

We are principally engaged in supplying digital and optical network equipment to cable system operators in the Henan Province of
China. The Company has developed a line of internet protocol television (“IPTV”) set-top boxes that are used to provide bundled cable
television, Internet and telephone services to residential and commercial customers. The Company has assisted in the installation and
construction of over 400 local cable networks covering more than 90 municipal districts, counties, townships, and enterprises. The
Company’s services and products have been recognized with various certifications, including “integrated computer information system
qualification class III” issued by the Ministry of Industry Information, “communication user cable construction enterprise
qualification” issued by the Henan Province Administration of Communication, “Henan Province Security Technology Prevention
Engineering Qualification Class II1”, a certificate of “ISO9001:2000 Quality System Authentication”, and “Double High” certification,
high-tech product and high-tech enterprise issued by the Henan Province government.

At present, our main clients are broadcasting TV bureaus and cable network operators serving various cities and counties. We have
over 30 main customers, including the broadcasting TV bureaus and cable network operators of the cities of Nanyang, Mengzhou,
Xuchang, Pingdingshan, Kaifeng, Zhoukou and Gongyi, and the counties of Yuanyang, Luoning, Neihuang, Yinyang, Xixia, Kaifeng,
Nanzhao, and Gushi.

A map highlighting our range of service within China is below (the yellow shaded areas indicate our potential market and target
customers and the red and green shaded areas indicate our current market):

A map highlighting our range of service within the Henan Province is below:

In the near future, we plan to joint venture with cable network operators to provide bundled television programming, Internet and
telephone services to residential customers in cities and counties located in the Henan Province of China.

Corporate Information

We were incorporated in the State of Delaware on December 7, 2006. We were originally organized as a “blank check” shell company
to investigate and acquire a target company or business seeking the perceived advantages of being a publicly held corporation. On
January 9, 2009, we closed a share exchange transaction (“Share Exchange”) pursuant to which we (i) issued 1,985,000 shares of our
common stock to acquire 100% equity ownership of World Orient Universal Limited, a company organized in the British Virgin
Islands (“World Orient”), which is the 100% parent of Global Asia Universal Limited, a company organized in the British Virgin
Islands (“Global Asia”), which is a 100% parent of Everfair Technologies, Ltd., a company organized in Hong Kong (“Everfair”),
which is a 100% parent of Zhengzhou Shenyang Technology Company Limited, a company organized in the People’s Republic of
China (“Zhengzhou ZST”), (ii) assumed the operations of World Orient and its subsidiaries, and (iii) changed our name from SRKP 18,
Inc. to ZST Digital Networks, Inc. Our corporate offices are located at 206 Tongbo Street, Boyaxicheng Second Floor, Zhengzhou City,
Henan Providence, People’s Republic of China 450007.



LEINT3

With respect to this discussion, the terms “we”, “our”, “ZST” and the “Company” refer to ZST Digital Networks, Inc., its wholly-
owned subsidiary, World Orient, World Orient’s wholly-owned subsidiary, Global Asia, Global Asia’s wholly-owned subsidiary,
Everfair, and Everfair’s wholly-owned subsidiary, Zhengzhou ZST. Zhengzhou ZST and Everfair were founded in 1996 and 2007,
respectively, and are based in Zhengzhou, China and Hong Kong, respectively. Global Asia and World Orient were founded in August
2008 in the British Virgin Islands.

“RMB” or “Renminbi” refers to the legal currency of China and “$” or “U.S. Dollars” refers to the legal currency of the United States.
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Industry

Over the past ten years, technological advancements in the electronics industry have greatly expanded the capabilities of cable TV
devices and cable systems. Cable network devices include amplifiers, optical receivers, IPTV set-top boxes and other related products.
The popularity of these devices benefits from reductions in cost, size and weight, and improvements in functionality and reliability.

China’s consumer market for cable TV devices and electronics has been growing, due in part to the country’s rapid growing electronic
industry. Economic growth in China has led to greater levels of personal disposable income and increased spending among China’s
expanding middle-class consumer base. Notwithstanding China’s economic growth, China’s economic output and consumption rates
are still relatively low on a per capita basis compared to developed countries. As China’s economy develops, we believe that disposable
income and consumer spending levels will continue to become closer to that of developed countries like the United States.

China’s market share of cable TV devices and electronics is expected to increase, especially with the analog to digital conversion
taking place over the next several years. Owing to the extensive use of cable TV and the explosive growth of internet and broadband
applications in China, the market for delivery of Internet service through cable modem or set-top box appears extremely promising in
China in the near future.

China has a number of benefits in the manufacture of electronic devices, which are expected to drive this growth:
° Low Costs. China continues to have a significant low cost of labor as well as easy access to raw materials and land.

° Proximity to Electronics Supply Chain. Electronics manufacturing in general continues to shift to China, giving China-
based manufacturers a further cost and cycle time advantage.

° Proximity to End-Markets. China has focused in recent years on building its research, development and engineering skill
base in all aspects of higher end manufacturing, including electronic devices.

Competitive Strengths
Experienced Management Team

Our senior management team has extensive business and industry experience, including an understanding of changing market trends,
consumer needs and technologies, which gives us the ability to capitalize on the opportunities resulting from these market changes. Our
Chief Executive Officer, Zhong Bo, has over 15 years of experience in the design and installation of cable television systems, which we
believe has been a key factor in our ability to establish long-lasting and valuable business relationships in the cable television industry.
Other members of our senior management team also have significant experience with respect to key aspects of our operations,
including research and development, product design, and sales and marketing.

Design Capabilities and Manufacturing Oversight

We employ a rigorous and systematic approach to product design and manufacturing oversight. We employ a senior design team with
members educated by top colleges in China, with an average of 8 to 10 years of experience. Our design team develops and tracks new
concepts and ideas from a variety of sources, including direct customer feedback, trade shows, domestic research institutions and our
key core suppliers. We can rapidly modify our design function to accommodate new customer requests, designs and specifications. We
subcontract all manufacturing on a turnkey basis, with our suppliers delivering fully assembled and tested products based on our
proprietary designs. Our contract manufacturers are located in Hang Zhou, Shen Zhen and Zheng Zhou, China. We also achieve quality
control over products manufactured under our contract manufacturing arrangements by sending our technicians on site to supervise the
production and testing of our products. The use of this model allows us to focus substantially all of our resources on determining
customer requirements and on the design, development and support of our products.

Well-Established Distribution Channels

We sell our products through a well-established network of distributors and resellers which allows us to access the customer markets of
the Henan Province as well as other markets in China. We have distributors throughout Henan, and in other key provinces in China. We
attended various trade fairs for electronic products, including China Hi-tech Fair (Shenzhen), Canton Fair, Hong Kong Electronics Fair

and International CES Las Vegas to promote our products.

Our Strategy



Our goal is to be a domestic leader in the development and manufacturer of cable television systems devices and related electronic
products through the following strategies:

Enhance Brand Awareness. We believe that continuing to strengthen our brand will be critical to increasing demand for, and achieving
widespread acceptance of, our cable TV network devices and electronics. We believe a strong brand offers a competitive advantage and
so we intend to devote additional resources to strategic marketing promotion in an effort to increase brand awareness and product
recognition and heighten consumer loyalty. We aim to develop the brand “ZST” into a both domestically and internationally
recognizable one.




Expand Sales Network and Distribution Channels. We continue to seek additional penetration into existing markets as well as
commencing sales in additional domestic markets. We intend to expand our sales and customer service networks of agents and dealers
in China and into new markets. We also intend to develop relationships with a broader set of wholesalers, distributors and resellers, all
in order to expand the market availability of our products. We expect that these relationships will allow us to diversify our customer
base and increase the availability and exposure of our products.

Offer Comprehensive Network Infrastructure Solutions. Our expertise in the design and installation of cable television systems has
afforded us the ability to offer customized telecommunications systems for a variety of customers. For example, we offer a customer
the ability to deliver a fully integrated video programming solution, customized set-top boxes and network design and management.
We intend to devote additional resources towards expanding this segment of our business.

Pursue Strategic Partnerships, Joint Ventures and Acquisitions. We intend to selectively pursue partnerships, joint ventures and
strategic acquisition opportunities that we believe may allow us to increase our existing market share, expand into new markets,
broaden our portfolio of products and intellectual property, and strengthen our relationships with our customers. For example, we plan
to joint venture with cable network operators and target selected acquisitions that will allow us the ability to provide bundled television
programming, internet and telephone services to residential customers in cities and counties located in the Henan Province.

Act on the Set-top Box Replacement Cycle. The broader adoption of high definition televisions by consumers will require more
advanced compression (e.g., MPEG-4) and security technologies within set-top boxes. This may launch a replacement cycle,
particularly among direct-to-home and cable providers with substantial bases of legacy equipment, which may create additional market
opportunities for us.

Products

We currently offer a range of branded cable television devices and related networking products including set-top boxes, optical
receivers, optical transmitters and cable transmission amplifiers.

Set-top Boxes and Related Products

Our line of internet protocol television (“IPTV”) set-top boxes integrate Internet, multi-media, and communication technologies,
provides residential customers with high definition digital multi-media service, and provides extensive freedom to choose video
programs offered by the network video providers on broadband IP network. These devices allow consumers who subscribe to
television service from multi-channel video distributors to access encrypted digital video and audio content and make use of a variety
of interactive applications. These applications include an on-screen interactive program guide, pay-per-view offerings, games and
shopping and parental control.

In addition to the functionality of a basic digital set-top box, these devices enable subscribers to pause, stop, reverse, fast forward,
record and replay live or recorded digital television content using a built-in hard drive capable of storing up to 200 hours of content.
They also include the ability to support video-on-demand services. Our devices also enable subscribers to access the enhanced picture
quality and sound of high-definition content, in addition to the functionality of a standard-definition digital set-top box. In addition, our
line of IPTV devices can also deliver customized multi-media service functions according to user configurations, and delivers
performance and additional value to customers through network and applications software upgrades.

In addition to set-top boxes we also design and develop related products such as power supplies, remote controls and other devices and
accessories.

Digital Network Equipment

We offer a line of fiber-optic receivers and transmitters, cable transmission amplifiers and other network products which provide the
flexibility, speed and clarity necessary in communications systems. Our optical receivers, amplifiers and power supply products have
been recognized by the Ministry of Broadcasting and TV and the Henan Municipality Bureau of Broadcasting and TV. We have
implemented stringent quality control systems covering each phase of production, from the purchase of raw materials through
oversight of each step in the manufacturing process. Quality and reliability is monitored in accordance with the requirements of ISO
9001 systems. We have also passed stringent quality reviews and our products meet digital electronic product standards in China, the
United States and Europe.

° Optical Receivers. Our optical receivers convert a fiber-optic transmission into digital RF signals that are amplified and
distributed through a 750 — 1000MHz optical cable system.

° Optical Transmitters. We have developed a range of optical transmitters, including the 1310nm and 1550nm series



products, used in the transmission of cable system front optical fiber signal.

Cable Transmission Amplifiers. Our main bus amplifier and end user amplifier products are used to improve the signal
quality in cable networks.




Net revenues for each of our revenue segments as a percentage of net revenues is set forth below:

Year Ended December 31,
2009 2008 2007

Products

IPTVs (1) 54% 56% 40%
Optical devices (2) 27% 22% 26%
Cable devices (3) 8% 3% 6%
Others (4) 8% 15% 28%
GPS 3% — —
Subtotal 100% 96% 100%
Technical Support —% 2% —
Construction —% 2% —
Total 100% 100% 100%

(1) Includes IPTV set-top boxes.
(2) Includes optical transmitters, optical workstations, optical receivers and optical power meters.
(3) Includes power supply cables, optical cables and pigtails

(4) Includes security and monitoring devices, which include coding and decoding devices, digital cameras and matrix exchanges, and
network products, which include welding machines, optical digital audio machines and audio and video distributors.

Monitoring and Cable Services

We offer security and monitoring services which involves the installation of monitoring systems in buildings, including the design and
implementation of various devices, such as coding and decoding devices, digital cameras and matrix exchanges. We also offer cable
services and provides networking throughout buildings with proper devices and components, such as welding machines, optical digital
audio machines, and audio and video distributors.

GPS Services

In March 2009, the Company entered into a network access right agreement with the Henan Subsidiary of China Unicom that allows
the Company to use the China Unicom wireless network for providing GPS location and tracking services to third parties. The
Company has developed personal and vehicle tracking systems, and has staffed a 24/7 call center to handle subscriber queries and
emergency calls. Currently, the system has approximately 400 test users and receives about 20 subscriber calls per day.

In the near future, the Company intends to negotiate a reseller agreement with the Henan Subsidiary of China Unicom whereby GPS
tracking units supplied by the Company would be sold in the Henan Subsidiary of China Unicom retail stores, with the Company
receiving a share of subscriber revenue collected by the Henan Subsidiary of China Unicom.

Manufacturing and Suppliers
Manufacturing

Our manufacturing operations consist of the procurement and inspection of raw materials and components, final system quality control
testing and packaging. We subcontract all manufacturing on a turnkey basis, with our suppliers delivering fully assembled and tested
products based on our proprietary designs. The use of this model allows us to focus substantially all of our resources on determining
customer requirements and on the design, development and support of our products. This model also allows us to have significantly
reduced capital requirements. The assembled products are then delivered to our facilities for final system quality control testing against
product specifications and product configuration, including software installation.

We subcontract our manufacturing to a number of manufacturers. Our manufacturers were selected based on the breadth of available
technology, quality, manufacturing capacity and support for design tools that we use. None of our products are currently manufactured
by more than one supplier. However, in the event one of our suppliers notifies us that it intends to cease manufacturing a product, we
expect that we will have an adequate opportunity to order sufficient quantities of the affected products so that shipments to customers
will not be adversely affected while we qualify a new manufacturer.



For the foreseeable future, we intend to continue to rely on our contract manufacturers for substantially all of our manufacturing and
assembly and the substantial portion of our test requirements. All of our contract manufacturers produce products for other companies.
We do not have long-term manufacturing agreements with any of our contract manufacturers. Our contract manufacturers are not
obligated to supply products to us for any specific period, in any specific quantity or at any specific price, except as may be provided in
a particular purchase order that has been accepted by one of our contract manufacturers.

We generally place orders approximately 3 to 4 weeks in advance of expected delivery. We work closely with our contract
manufacturers to manage costs and delivery times, and we have never experienced material delays in the delivery of our products from
our contract manufacturers. However, we have only a limited ability to react to fluctuations in demand for our products, which could
cause us to have an excess or a shortage of inventory of a particular product.
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Suppliers

We have established long-term partnership relationships with our main raw material suppliers. The raw materials used in our product
include LCDs, ICs, flash memories, WiFi modules, GPS modules, capacitors, resistors, switches, connectors and batteries. We
purchase such materials to satisfy our customers’ requirements. For special products and large orders, we typically quote our prices and
delivery of goods ahead of time after receiving the orders.

Currently, our primary suppliers of raw materials are located in South Korea, Taiwan, United States, and China. Three suppliers,
Hangzhou Jingbao Electronic Ltd., Sichuan Jinwangtong Technology Co. Ltd. and Jinbo Electronic Co. Ltd., are our largest suppliers
of components of our products, each of which accounted for more than 10% of our purchases of components for our products for the
fiscal year ended December 31, 2009. Three suppliers, Hangzhou Jingbao Electronic Ltd., Farway Electronics Factory and Henan Hui-
ke Electronics Co., Ltd., each accounted for more than 10% of our purchases of components for our products for the fiscal years ended
December 31, 2008 and 2007. We believe that the raw materials and components used in manufacturing our products are available
from enough sources to be able to satisfy our needs. Presently, our relationships with our current suppliers are generally good and we
expect that our suppliers will be able to meet the anticipated demand for our products in the future.

At times, the pricing and availability of raw materials can be volatile, attributable to numerous factors beyond our control, including
general economic conditions, currency exchange rates, industry cycles, production levels or a supplier’s tight supply. To the extent that
we experience cost increases we may seek to pass such cost increases on to our customers, but cannot provide any assurance that we
will be able to do so successfully or that our business, results of operations and financial condition would not be adversely affected by
increased volatility of the cost and availability of raw materials.

Quality Control

We consider quality control an important element of our business practices. We have stringent quality control systems that are
implemented by various Company-trained staff members to ensure quality control over the production process, from the purchase of
raw materials through oversight of each stage of the manufacturing process. Our quality control department executes the following
functions:

° testing samples of raw materials from suppliers;

) implementing sampling systems and sample files;

. setting internal controls and regulations for the testing of finished products; and
° articulating the responsibilities of quality control staff.

We also achieve quality control over products manufactured under our contract manufacturing arrangements by sending our technicians
on site to supervise the production and testing of our products.

Sales and Marketing

We have a broad sales network throughout China. Our sales network spans throughout the Henan Province and in several major
provincial-level and municipal cities in China. Our distribution network includes exclusive provincial and regional distributors,
resellers and brand-name counters.

We are highly dependent upon sales of our products to certain of our customers. During our fiscal year ended December 31, 2009, five
customers, Nanyang Radio & Television Bureau, Kaifeng Radio & Television Bureau, Pingding Radio & Television Bureau,
Mengzhou Radio & Television Bureau, and Anyang Radio & Television Bureau, each accounted for approximately 7%, 6%, 6%, 6%,
and 6% of our net revenues. During our fiscal year ended December 31, 2008, two customers, Neihuang Radio & Television Bureau
and Kaifeng Radio & Television Bureau, each accounted for approximately 10% of our net revenues. During the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2007, three customers, Nanyang Radio & Television Bureau, Mengzhou Radio & Television Bureau and Xuchang Radio
& Television Bureau, accounted for approximately 16%, 14% and 13%, respectively, of our net revenues. No other customer
accounted for greater than 5% of our net revenues during these periods. All purchases of our products by customers are made through
purchase orders and we do not have long-term contracts with any of our customers. The loss of any customers to which we sell a
significant amount of our products, or from which we receive significant portion of orders, or any material adverse change in the
financial condition of such customers could negatively affect our revenues and decrease our earnings.

The focus of our marketing plan is print advertising and participation in tradeshows and exhibitions. With a targeted approach, our print
advertisements appear regularly in popular consumer and industry publications and trade journals. To better showcase our diverse



products to potential customers, we regularly exhibit at leading trade shows and exhibitions. Our dynamic, state-of-the-art trade show
exhibits are developed internally to showcase our latest product offerings.
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Research and Development

Companies in our industry are under pressure to develop new designs and product innovations to support changing consumer tastes and
regulatory requirements. To date, we have engaged in modest research and development activities and much of our expenditures on
research and development have been reimbursed by the local government. We believe that the engineering and technical expertise of
our management and key personnel has allowed us to efficiently and timely identify and bring new products to market for our
customers. However, we believe that substantial additional research and development activities are important to allowing us to offer
technologically-advanced products to serve a broader array of customers. We expect that our research and development budget will
substantially increase as the scope of our operations expands and as we have access to additional working capital to fund these
activities.

We focus our product design efforts on both improving our existing products and developing new products. In an effort to enhance our
product quality, reduce costs and keep up with emerging product trends, we work with our key customers to identify emerging product
trends and implement new solutions intended to meet the current and future needs of the markets we serve.

For the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, we have invested approximately $221,467, $10,419, and $88,864,
respectively, in research and development. However, the Company received a reimbursement from the local government for all of its
research and development expenses for the year ended December 31, 2008, and therefore research and development expenses net of
reimbursement was nil.

Acquisitions

To supplement our internal growth, we intend to pursue a targeted acquisition strategy that will seek acquisition candidates that fulfill
one or more of the following objectives:

° increase our penetration of existing markets;

) expand into new markets;

. increase our service offerings;

° add customers and cash flow to our existing network services business; and
) enhance our ability to sell and delivery value-added services.

We initially intend to focus our acquisition efforts on cable system providers and enhanced service providers and on interconnect
companies in the Henan Province that sell, install and maintain data and voice networks for customers. Our initial goal is to be a
vertically integrated service provider, providing bundled television programming, internet and telephone services to residential
customers in cities and counties located in the Henan Province.

Competition

The market for set-top boxes and digital networking products is highly competitive, especially with respect to pricing and the
introduction of new products and features. Our products compete primarily on the basis of:

) reliability;

° brand recognition;

. quality;

. price;

) design; and

° quality service and support to retailers and our customers.

Currently, there are many significant competitors in the set-top box business including several established companies who have sold
set-top boxes to major cable operators for many years. These competitors include companies such as Motorola, Cisco Systems, and
Pace. In addition, a number of rapidly growing companies have recently entered the market, many of them with set-top box offerings
similar to our existing set-top box products. We also expect additional competition in the future from new and existing companies who



do not currently compete in the market for set-top boxes. As the set-top box business evolves, our current and potential competitors
may establish cooperative relationships among themselves or with third parties, including software and hardware companies that could
acquire significant market share, which could adversely affect our business. We also face competition from set-top boxes that have
been internally developed by digital video providers.
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In recent years, we and many of our competitors, have regularly lowered prices, and we expect these pricing pressures to continue. If
these pricing pressures are not mitigated by increases in volume, cost reductions from our supplier or changes in product mix, our
revenues and profits could be substantially reduced. As compared to us, many of our competitors have:

) significantly longer operating histories;
[ significantly greater managerial, financial, marketing, technical and other competitive resources; and
) greater brand recognition.

As a result, our competitors may be able to:

° adapt more quickly to new or emerging technologies and changes in customer requirements;
° devote greater resources to the promotion and sale of their products and services; and
. respond more effectively to pricing pressures.

Intellectual Property

We rely on a combination of patent and trade secret protection and other unpatented proprietary information to protect our intellectual
property rights and to maintain and enhance our competitiveness in the portable electronic product industry. Our Chief Executive
Officer, Mr. Zhong Bo, has legal ownership of one patent in China. This patent is applied in the operations of our Company and Mr.
Zhong has granted the Company a license to use such patent.

Some of our products are also designed to include software or other intellectual property licensed from third parties. While it may be
necessary in the future to seek or renew licenses relating to various aspects of our products and business methods, based on past
experience and industry practice we believe that such licenses generally could be obtained on commercially reasonable terms.
However, there is no guarantee that such licenses could be obtained at all. Because of technological changes in the portable electronics
industry, current extensive patent coverage and the rapid rate of issuance of new patents, it is possible certain components of our
products may unknowingly infringe existing patents or intellectual property rights of others.

We have implemented enhanced file management procedures at the Company in an effort to protect our proprietary rights; however,
there can be no assurance that our patents and other proprietary rights will not be challenged, invalidated, or circumvented, that others
will not assert intellectual property rights to technologies that are relevant to us, or that our rights will give us a competitive advantage.
In addition, the laws of some foreign countries may not protect our proprietary rights to the same extent as the laws of the China.

We have one registered trademark in China, with an expiration date of December 2011.

PRC Government Regulations

Environmental Regulations

The major environmental regulations applicable to us include the PRC Environmental Protection Law, the PRC Law on the Prevention
and Control of Water Pollution and its Implementation Rules, the PRC Law on the Prevention and Control of Air Pollution and its
Implementation Rules, the PRC Law on the Prevention and Control of Solid Waste Pollution, and the PRC Law on the Prevention and
Control of Noise Pollution.

We have not been named as a defendant in any legal proceedings alleging violation of environmental laws. We have no reasonable
basis to believe that there is any threatened claim, action or legal proceedings against us that would have a material adverse effect on
our business, financial condition or results of operations due to any non-compliance with environmental laws.

Patent Protection in China

The PRC’s intellectual property protection regime is consistent with those of other modern industrialized countries. The PRC has
domestic laws for the protection of rights in copyrights, patents, trademarks and trade secrets. The PRC is also a signatory to most of

the world’s major intellectual property conventions, including:

° Convention establishing the World Intellectual Property Organization (WIPO Convention) (June 4, 1980);



Paris Convention for the Protection of Industrial Property (March 19, 1985);
Patent Cooperation Treaty (January 1, 1994); and

11




) The Agreement on Trade-Related Aspects of Intellectual Property Rights (TRIPs) (November 11, 2001).

Patents in the PRC are governed by the China Patent Law and its Implementing Regulations, each of which went into effect in 1985.
Amended versions of the China Patent Law and its Implementing Regulations came into effect in 1992, 1993, 2001 and 2003,
respectively. The latest amended version of the China Patent Law was made on December 7, 2008 and will become effective on
October 1, 2009.

The PRC is signatory to the Paris Convention for the Protection of Industrial Property, in accordance with which any person who has
duly filed an application for a patent in one signatory country shall enjoy, for the purposes of filing in the other countries, a right of
priority during the period fixed in the convention (12 months for inventions and utility models, and 6 months for industrial designs).

The Patent Law covers three kinds of patents, i.e., patents for inventions, utility models and designs respectively. The Chinese patent
system adopts the principle of first to file. This means that, where more than one person files a patent application for the same
invention, a patent can only be granted to the person who first filed the application. Consistent with international practice, the PRC
only allows the patenting of inventions or utility models that possess the characteristics of novelty, inventiveness and practical
applicability. For a design to be patentable, it should not be identical with or similar to any design which, before the date of filing, has
been publicly disclosed in publications in the country or abroad or has been publicly used in the country, and should not be in conflict
with any prior right of another.

PRC law provides that anyone wishing to exploit the patent of another must conclude a written licensing contract with the patent holder
and pay the patent holder a fee. One rather broad exception to this, however, is that, where a party possesses the means to exploit a
patent but cannot obtain a license from the patent holder on reasonable terms and in reasonable period of time, the PRC State
Intellectual Property Office, or SIPO, is authorized to grant a compulsory license. A compulsory license can also be granted where a
national emergency or any extraordinary state of affairs occurs or where the public interest so requires. SIPO, however, has not granted
any compulsory license up to now. The patent holder may appeal such decision within three months from receiving notification by
filing a suit in a people’s court.

PRC law defines patent infringement as the exploitation of a patent without the authorization of the patent holder. A patent holder who
believes his patent is being infringed may file a civil suit or file a complaint with a PRC local Intellectual Property Administrative
Authority, which may order the infringer to stop the infringing acts. Preliminary injunction may be issued by the People’s Court upon
the patentee’s or the interested parties’ request before instituting any legal proceedings or during the proceedings. Evidence
preservation and property preservation measures are also available both before and during the litigation. Damages in the case of patent
infringement is calculated as either the loss suffered by the patent holder arising from the infringement or the benefit gained by the
infringer from the infringement. If it is difficult to ascertain damages in this manner, damages may be reasonably determined in an
amount ranging from one to three times of the license fee under a contractual license. In the case of false patents, if there is no license
fee for reference, the damages may be reasonably determined in an amount ranging from RMB 5,000 to RMB 500,000. After October
1, 2009, the range will be increased to RMB 10,000 to RMB 1,000,000.

Tax

Pursuant to the Provisional Regulation of China on Value Added Tax and their implementing rules, all entities and individuals that are
engaged in the sale of goods, the provision of repairs and replacement services and the importation of goods in China are generally
required to pay VAT at a rate of 17.0% of the gross sales proceeds received, less any deductible VAT already paid or borne by the
taxpayer. Further, when exporting goods, the exporter is entitled to a portion of or a full refund of the VAT that it has already paid or
borne. Our imported raw materials that are used for manufacturing export products and are deposited in bonded warehouses are exempt
from import VAT. The VAT for revenues from services, such as installation services and GPS subscription services, is 5%.

Foreign Currency Exchange

Under the PRC foreign currency exchange regulations applicable to us, the Renminbi is convertible for current account items,
including the distribution of dividends, interest payments, trade and service-related foreign exchange transactions. Conversion of
Renminbi for capital account items, such as direct investment, loan, security investment and repatriation of investment, however, is still
subject to the approval of the PRC State Administration of Foreign Exchange, or SAFE. Foreign-invested enterprises may only buy,
sell and/or remit foreign currencies at those banks authorized to conduct foreign exchange business after providing valid commercial
documents and, in the case of capital account item transactions, obtaining approval from the SAFE. Capital investments by foreign-
invested enterprises outside of China are also subject to limitations, which include approvals by the Ministry of Commerce, the SAFE
and the State Reform and Development Commission.

Dividend Distributions



Under applicable PRC regulations, foreign-invested enterprises in China may pay dividends only out of their accumulated profits, if
any, determined in accordance with PRC accounting standards and regulations. In addition, a foreign-invested enterprise in China are
required to set aside at least 10.0% of their after-tax profit based on PRC accounting standards each year to its general reserves until the
accumulative amount of such reserves reach 50.0% of its registered capital. These reserves are not distributable as cash dividends. The
board of directors of a foreign-invested enterprise has the discretion to allocate a portion of its after-tax profits to staff welfare and
bonus funds, which may not be distributed to equity owners except in the event of liquidation.
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Employees

As of March 29, 2010, we had approximately 97 employees. All of our employees are based in China. There are no collective
bargaining contracts covering any of our employees. We believe our relationship with our employees is satisfactory.

We are required to contribute a portion of our employees’ total salaries to the Chinese government’s social insurance funds, including
pension insurance, medical insurance, unemployment insurance, and work-related injury insurance, and maternity insurance, in
accordance with relevant regulations. Total contributions to the funds are approximately $18,821, $6,487 and $130,549 for the years
ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively. We expect that the amount of our contribution to the government’s social
insurance funds will increase in the future as we expand our workforce and operations.

We also provide housing facilities for our employees. At present, approximately 1% of our employees live in company-provided
housing facilities. Under PRC laws, we are also required to make contributions to a housing accumulation fund for employees.
Presently, contribution to such housing accumulation fund is not strictly enforced by the Zhengzhou Municipal Government and
therefore, we provide free housing facilities to all employees who need accommodation. We may commence contributions to the
housing assistance fund in the future.

Effective January 1, 2008, the PRC introduced a new labor contract law that enhances rights for the nation's workers, including open-
ended work contracts and severance pay. The legislation requires employers to provide written contracts to their workers, restricts the
use of temporary laborers and makes it harder to lay off employees. It also requires that employees with fixed-term contracts be entitled
to an indefinite-term contract after a fixed-term contract is renewed twice. Although the new labor contract law would increase our
labor costs, we do not anticipate there will be any significantly effects on our overall profitability in the near future since such amount
was historically not material to our operating cost. Management anticipates this may be a step toward improving candidate retention for
skilled workers.
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ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS.

Any investment in our common stock involves a high degree of risk. Potential investors should carefully consider the material risks
described below and all of the information contained in this Annual Report on Form 10-K/A before deciding whether to purchase any
of our securities. Our business, financial condition or results of operations could be materially adversely affected by these risks if any
of them actually occur. The trading price of our common stock could decline due to any of these risks, and an investor may lose all or
part of his investment. Some of these factors have affected our financial condition and operating results in the past or are currently
affecting us. This report also contains forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties. Our actual rvesults could differ
materially from those anticipated in these forward-looking statements as a result of certain factors, including the risks faced described
below and elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K/A.

Risks Related to Our Operations

We derive substantially all of our revenues from sales in the PRC and any downturn in the Chinese economy could have a material
adverse effect on our business and financial condition.

Substantially all of our revenues are generated from sales in the PRC. We anticipate that revenues from sales of our products in the
PRC will continue to represent the substantial portion of our total revenues in the near future. Our sales and earnings can also be
affected by changes in the general economy since purchases of cable television services are generally discretionary for consumers. Our
success is influenced by a number of economic factors which affect disposable consumer income, such as employment levels, business
conditions, interest rates, oil and gas prices and taxation rates. Adverse changes in these economic factors, among others, may restrict
consumer spending, thereby negatively affecting our sales and profitability.

We are and will continue to be subject to rapidly declining average selling prices, which may harm our results of operations.

Set-top boxes and networking products such as those we offer are often subject to declines in average selling prices due to rapidly
evolving technologies, industry standards and consumer preferences. These products are also subject to rapid technological changes
which often cause product obsolescence. Companies within our industry are continuously developing new products with heightened
performance and functionality. This puts pricing pressure on existing products and constantly threatens to make them, or causes them
to be, obsolete. Our typical product’s life cycle is short, typically generating lower average selling prices as the cycle matures. If we fail
to accurately anticipate the introduction of new technologies, we may possess significant amounts of obsolete inventory that can only
be sold at substantially lower prices and profit margins than we anticipated. In addition, if we fail to accurately anticipate the
introduction of new technologies, we may be unable to compete effectively due to our failure to offer products most demanded by the
marketplace. If any of these failures occur, our sales, profit margins and profitability will be adversely affected.

In addition, network systems operators expect suppliers, such as our Company, to cut their costs and lower the price of their products to
lessen the negative impact on their own profit margins. As a result, we have previously reduced the price of some of our products and
expect to continue to face market-driven downward pricing pressures in the future. Our results of operations will suffer if we are unable
to offset any declines in the average selling prices of our products by developing new or enhanced products with higher selling prices
or gross profit margins, increasing our sales volumes or reducing our production costs.

If we do not correctly forecast demand for our products, we could have costly excess production or inventories and we may not be
able to secure sufficient or cost effective quantities of our products or production materials and our revenues, cost of revenues and
financial condition could be adversely affected.

The demand for our products depends on many factors, including pricing and inventory levels, and is difficult to forecast due in part to
variations in economic conditions, changes in consumer and business preferences, relatively short product life cycles, changes in
competition, seasonality and reliance on key third party carriers. It is particularly difficult to forecast demand by individual product.
Significant unanticipated fluctuations in demand, the timing and disclosure of new product releases or the timing of key sales orders
could result in costly excess production or inventories or the inability to secure sufficient, cost-effective quantities of our products or
production materials. These inventory risks are particularly acute during end product transitions in which a new generation of set-top
boxes is being deployed and inventory of older generation set-top boxes is at a higher risk of obsolescence. Furthermore, because of the
competitive nature of the set-top box business and the short-term nature of our purchase orders, we could in the future be required to
reduce the average selling-prices of our set-top boxes, which in turn would adversely affect our gross margins and profitability. This
could adversely impact our revenues, cost of revenues and financial condition.

We depend on sales of set-top boxes for a substantial portion of our revenue, and if sales of our set-top boxes decline or we are not
able to penetrate new markets for set-up boxes, our business and financial position will suffer.



The substantial portion of our revenues consists primarily of sales of our set-top boxes. In addition, we currently derive, and expect to
continue to derive in the near term, revenue from sales of our set-top boxes to a limited number of customers. Continued market
acceptance of our set-top boxes is critical to our future success. If we are not able to expand sales of our set-top boxes to other
providers of digital television, our growth prospects will be limited, and our revenues will be substantially impacted.

Our set-up boxes were initially designed for, and have been deployed mostly by, providers of cable-delivered digital television. To date,
we have not made any sales of our set-top boxes to direct-to-home satellite providers. In addition, the set-top box market is highly
competitive and we expect competition to intensify in the future. In particular, we believe that most set-top boxes are sold by a small
number of well entrenched competitors who have long-standing relationships with direct-to-home satellite providers. This competition
may make it more difficult for us to sell home satellite set-top boxes, and may result in pricing pressure, small profit margins, high
sales and marketing expenses and failure to obtain market share, any of which could likely seriously harm our business, operating
results and financial condition.
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Our business may suffer if cable television operators, who currently comprise our customer base, do not compete successfully with
existing and emerging alternative platforms for delivering digital television, including terrestrial networks, internet protocol
television and direct-to-home satellite service providers.

Our existing customers are cable television operators, which compete with direct-to-home satellite video providers and terrestrial
broadcasters for the same pool of viewers. As technologies develop, other means of delivering information and entertainment to
television viewers are evolving. For example, some telecommunications companies are seeking to compete with terrestrial
broadcasters, cable television network operators and direct-to-home satellite services by offering internet protocol television, which
allows telecommunications companies to stream television programs through telephone lines or fiber optic lines. To the extent that the
terrestrial television networks, telecommunications companies and direct-to-home satellite providers compete successfully against
cable television networks services for viewers, the ability of our existing customer base to attract and retain subscribers may be
adversely affected. As a result, demand for our set-top boxes could decline and we may not be able to sustain our current revenue
levels.

Our products may contain errors or defects, which could result in the rejection of our products, damage to our reputation, lost
revenues, diverted development resources and increased service costs, warranty claims and litigation.

Our products are complex and must meet stringent user requirements. In addition, we must develop our products to keep pace with the
rapidly changing markets. Sophisticated products like ours are likely to contain undetected errors or defects, especially when first
introduced or when new models or versions are released. Our products may not be free from errors or defects after commercial
shipments have begun, which could result in the rejection of our products and jeopardize our relationship with carriers. End users may
also reject or find issues with our products and have a right to return them even if the products are free from errors or defects. In either
case, returns or quality issues could result in damage to our reputation, lost revenues, diverted development resources, increased
customer service and support costs, and warranty claims and litigation which could harm our business, results of operations and
financial condition.

We do not carry any business interruption insurance, products liability insurance or any other insurance policy. As a result, we may
incur uninsured losses, increasing the possibility that you would lose your entire investment in our company.

We could be exposed to liabilities or other claims for which we would have no insurance protection. We do not currently maintain any
business interruption insurance, products liability insurance, or any other comprehensive insurance policy. As a result, we may incur
uninsured liabilities and losses as a result of the conduct of our business. There can be no guarantee that we will be able to obtain
additional insurance coverage in the future, and even if we are able to obtain additional coverage, we may not carry sufficient insurance
coverage to satisfy potential claims. Should uninsured losses occur, any purchasers of our common stock could lose their entire
investment.

Because we do not carry products liability insurance, a failure of any of the products marketed by us may subject us to the risk of
product liability claims and litigation arising from injuries allegedly caused by the improper functioning or design of our products. We
cannot assure that we will have enough funds to defend or pay for liabilities arising out of a products liability claim. To the extent we
incur any product liability or other litigation losses, our expenses could materially increase substantially. There can be no assurance
that we will have sufficient funds to pay for such expenses, which could end our operations and you would lose your entire investment.

We intend to make significant investments in new products and services that may not be profitable.

Companies in our industry are under pressure to develop new designs and product innovations to support changing consumer tastes and
regulatory requirements. To date, we have engaged in modest research and development activities and much of our expenditures on
research and development have been reimbursed by the local government. However, we believe that substantial additional research and
development activities are necessary to allow us to offer technologically-advanced products to serve a broader array of customers. We
expect that our research and development budget will substantially increase as the scope of our operations expands and as we have
access to additional working capital to fund these activities. However, research and development and investments in new technology
are inherently speculative and commercial success depends on many factors including technological innovation, novelty, service and
support, and effective sales and marketing. We may not achieve significant revenue from new product and service investments for a
number of years, if at all. Moreover, new products and services may not be profitable, and even if they are profitable, operating
margins for new products and businesses may be minimal.
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We are subject to intense competition in the industry in which we operate, which could cause material reductions in the selling
price of our products or losses of our market share.

The market for set-top boxes and networking products is highly competitive, especially with respect to pricing and the introduction of
new products and features. Our products compete primarily on the basis of:

. reliability;

. brand recognition;

. quality;

. price;

. design; and

. quality service and support to retailers and our customers.

Currently, there are many significant competitors in the set-top box business including several established companies who have sold
set-top boxes to major cable operators for many years. These competitors include companies such as Motorola, Cisco Systems, and
Pace. In addition, a number of rapidly growing companies have recently entered the market, many of them with set-top box offerings
similar to our existing set-top box products. We also expect additional competition in the future from new and existing companies who
do not currently compete in the market for set-top boxes. As the set-top box business evolves, our current and potential competitors
may establish cooperative relationships among themselves or with third parties, including software and hardware companies that could
acquire significant market share, which could adversely affect our business. We also face competition from set-top boxes that have
been internally developed by digital video providers.

In recent years, we and many of our competitors, have regularly lowered prices, and we expect these pricing pressures to continue. If
these pricing pressures are not mitigated by increases in volume, cost reductions from our supplier or changes in product mix, our
revenues and profits could be substantially reduced. As compared to us, many of our competitors have:

. significantly longer operating histories;
. significantly greater managerial, financial, marketing, technical and other competitive resources; and
. greater brand recognition.

As a result, our competitors may be able to:

. adapt more quickly to new or emerging technologies and changes in customer requirements;
. devote greater resources to the promotion and sale of their products and services; and
. respond more effectively to pricing pressures.

These factors could materially adversely affect our operations and financial condition. In addition, competition could increase if:

. new companies enter the market;
. existing competitors expand their product mix; or
. we expand into new markets.

An increase in competition could result in material price reductions or loss of our market share.
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Changes in existing technologies or the emergence of new products or technologies could significantly harm our business.

Our businesses change rapidly as new technologies are developed. These new technologies may cause our services and products to
become obsolete. Changes in existing technologies could also cause demand for our products and services to decline. For example, if
changes in technology allow digital television subscribers to use devices such as personal computers, cable ready televisions and
network based digital video recording services in place of set-top boxes, our customers may not need to purchase our set-top boxes to
provide their digital television subscribers with digital video recording and other set-top box features. One or more new technologies
also could be introduced that compete favorably with our set-top boxes or that cause our set-top boxes to no longer be of significant
benefit to our customers.

We and our suppliers also may not be able to keep pace with technological developments. Alternatively, if the new technologies on
which we intend to focus our research and development investments fail to achieve acceptance in the marketplace, we could suffer a
material adverse effect on our future competitive position that could cause a reduction in our revenues and earnings. Our competitors
could also obtain or develop proprietary technologies that are perceived by the market as being superior to ours. Further, after we have
incurred substantial research and development costs, one or more of the technologies under development could become obsolete prior
to its introduction. Finally, delays in the delivery of components or other unforeseen problems may occur that could materially and
adversely affect our ability to generate revenue, offer new products and services and remain competitive.

Technological innovation is important to our success and depends, to a significant degree, on the work of technically skilled
employees. Competition for the services of these types of employees is intense. We may not be able to attract and retain these
employees. If we are unable to attract and maintain technically skilled employees, our competitive position could be materially and
adversely affected.

The loss or significant reduction in business of any of our key customers could materially and adversely affect our revenues and
earnings.

We are highly dependent upon sales of our products to certain of our customers. During our fiscal year ended December 31, 2009,
Nanyang Radio & Television Bureau, Kaifeng Radio & Television Bureau, Pingding Radio & Television Bureau, Mengzhou Radio &
Television Bureau, and Anyang Radio & Television Bureau each accounted for approximately 7%, 6%, 6%, 6% and 6%, respectively,
of our net revenues. During our fiscal year ended December 31, 2008, Neihuang Radio & Television Bureau and Kaifeng Radio &
Television Bureau each accounted for approximately 10% of our net revenues. During the fiscal year ended December 31, 2007,
Nanyang Radio & Television Bureau, Mengzhou Radio & Television Bureau and Xuchang Radio & Television Bureau accounted for
approximately 16%, 14% and 13%, respectively, of our net revenues. No other customer accounted for greater than 5% of our net
revenues during these periods. All purchases of our products by customers are made through purchase orders and we do not have long-
term contracts with any of our customers. The loss of any of our customers to which we sell a significant amount of our products or
any significant portion of orders from Cable TV Station of Pingdingshan and Cable TV Station of Nanyang, or such other customers or
any material adverse change in the financial condition of such customers could negatively affect our revenues and decrease our
earnings.

We cannot rely on long-term purchase orders or commitments to protect us from the negative financial effects of a decline in demand
for our products. The limited certainty of product orders can make it difficult for us to forecast our sales and allocate our resources in a
manner consistent with our actual sales. Moreover, our expense levels are based in part on our expectations of future sales and, if our
expectations regarding future sales are inaccurate, we may be unable to reduce costs in a timely manner to adjust for sales shortfalls.
Cancellations or reductions of customer orders could result in the loss of anticipated sales without allowing us sufficient time to reduce
our inventory and operating expenses. Furthermore, because we depend on a small number of customers for the vast majority of our
sales, the magnitude of the ramifications of these risks is greater than if our sales were less concentrated with a small number of
customers. As a result of our lack of long-term purchase orders and purchase commitments we may experience a rapid decline in our
sales and profitability.

In addition, there is a relatively small number of potential new customers for our set-top boxes and we expect this customer
concentration to continue for the foreseeable future. Therefore, our operating results will likely continue to depend on sales to a
relatively small number of customers, as well as the continued success of these customers. If we do not develop relationships with new
customers, we may not be able to expand our customer base or maintain or increase our revenue.
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We depend on a limited number of suppliers for components for our products. The inability to secure components for our products
could reduce our revenues and adversely affect our relationship with our customers.

We rely on a limited number of suppliers for our component parts and raw materials. Although there are many suppliers for each of our
component parts and raw materials, we are dependent on a limited number of suppliers for many of the significant components and raw
materials. This reliance involves a number of significant potential risks, including:

. lack of availability of materials and interruptions in delivery of components and raw materials from our suppliers;
. manufacturing delays caused by such lack of availability or interruptions in delivery;
. fluctuations in the quality and the price of components and raw materials, in particular due to the petroleum price impact

on such materials; and
. risks related to foreign operations.

We generally do not have any long-term or exclusive purchase commitments with any of our suppliers. Hangzhou Jingbao Electronic
Ltd., Sichuan Jinwangtong Technology Co. Ltd. and Jinbo Electronic Co. Ltd., are our largest suppliers of components of our products,
each of which accounted for more than 10% of our purchases of components for our products for the fiscal year ended December 31,
2009. Hangzhou Jingbao Electronic Ltd., Farway Electronics Factory and Henan Hui-ke Electronics Co., Ltd. each accounted for
more than 10% of our purchases of components for our products for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2008 and the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2007. Our failure to maintain existing relationships with our suppliers or to establish new relationships in the future
could also negatively affect our ability to obtain our components and raw materials used in our products in a timely manner. If we are
unable to obtain ample supply of products from our existing suppliers or alternative sources of supply, we may be unable to satisfy our
customers’ orders which could materially and adversely affect our revenues and our relationship with our customers.

Certain disruptions in supply of and changes in the competitive environment for components and raw materials integral to our
products may adversely affect our profitability.

We use a broad range of materials and supplies, including LCD components, ICs, flash memories, WiFi modules, GPS modules,
capacitors, resistors, switches, connectors, batteries and other electronic components in our products. A significant disruption in the
supply of these materials could decrease production and shipping levels, materially increase our operating costs and materially
adversely affect our profit margins. Shortages of materials or interruptions in transportation systems, labor strikes, work stoppages,
war, acts of terrorism or other interruptions to or difficulties in the employment of labor or transportation in the markets in which we
purchase materials, components and supplies for the production of our products, in each case may adversely affect our ability to
maintain production of our products and sustain profitability. If we were to experience a significant or prolonged shortage of critical
components and raw materials from any of our suppliers and could not procure the components from other sources, we would be
unable to meet our production schedules for some of our key products and to ship such products to our customers in a timely fashion,
which would adversely affect our sales, margins and customer relations.

Substantial defaults by our customers on accounts receivable or the loss of significant customers could have a material adverse
effect on our business.

A substantial portion of our working capital consists of accounts receivable from customers. If customers responsible for a significant
amount of accounts receivable were to become insolvent or otherwise unable to pay for products and services, or to make payments in
a timely manner, our business, results of operations or financial condition could be materially adversely affected. An economic or
industry downturn could materially adversely affect the servicing of these accounts receivable, which could result in longer payment
cycles, increased collection costs and defaults in excess of management’s expectations. A significant deterioration in our ability to
collect on accounts receivable could also impact the cost or availability of financing available to us.

In addition, our business is characterized by long periods for collection from our customers and short periods for payment to our
suppliers, the combination of which may cause us to have liquidity problems. We experience an average accounts settlement period
ranging from one month to as high as four months from the time we sell our products to the time we receive payment from our
customers. In contrast, we typically need to place certain deposits and advances with our suppliers on a portion of the purchase price in
advance and for some suppliers we must maintain a deposit for future orders. Because our payment cycle is considerably shorter than
our receivable cycle, we may experience working capital shortages. Working capital management, including prompt and diligent
billing and collection, is an important factor in our results of operations and liquidity. We cannot assure you that system problems,
industry trends or other issues will not extend our collection period, adversely impact our working capital.
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Our operations would be materially adversely affected if third-party carriers were unable to transport our products on a timely
basis.

All of our products are shipped through third party carriers. If a strike or other event prevented or disrupted these carriers from
transporting our products, other carriers may be unavailable or may not have the capacity to deliver our products to our customers. If
adequate third party sources to ship our products were unavailable at any time, our business would be materially adversely affected.

Our quarterly results may fluctuate because of many factors and, as a result, investors should not rely on quarterly operating
results as indicative of future results.

Fluctuations in operating results or the failure of operating results to meet the expectations of public market analysts and investors may
negatively impact the value of our securities. Quarterly operating results may fluctuate in the future due to a variety of factors that
could affect revenues or expenses in any particular quarter. Fluctuations in quarterly operating results could cause the value of our
securities to decline. Investors should not rely on quarter-to-quarter comparisons of results of operations as an indication of future
performance. As a result of the factors listed below, it is possible that in future periods results of operations may be below the
expectations of public market analysts and investors. This could cause the market price of our securities to decline. Factors that may
affect our quarterly results include:

. seasonal variations in operating results;

. variations in the sales of our products to our significant customers;

. the discretionary nature of our customers’ demands and spending patterns;

. variations in manufacturing and supplier relationships;

. fluctuation and unpredictability of costs related to the components and raw materials used to manufacture our products;
. if we are unable to correctly anticipate and provide for inventory requirements from quarter to quarter, we may not have

sufficient inventory to deliver our products to our customers in a timely fashion or we may have excess inventory that we
are unable to sell;

. competition from our competitors;

. changes in market and economic conditions;

. vulnerability of our business to a general economic downturn in China;

. changes in the laws of the PRC that affect our operations; and

. our ability to obtain necessary government certifications and/or licenses to conduct our business.

In addition, our quarterly operating results could be materially adversely affected by political instability, war, acts of terrorism or other
disasters.

As a result of these and other factors, revenues for any quarter are subject to significant variation, which may adversely affect our
results of operations and the market price for our common stock.

We depend upon a patent we license from a third party, Zhong Bo, our Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board. The
loss of this license, an increase in the costs of this license or Mr. Zhong’s failure to properly maintain or enforce the patent
underlying such license may require us to suspend our operations until we obtain replacements and/or redesign our products.

We rely upon certain patents licensed from our Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board, Zhong Bo, which gives us rights to
third party intellectual property that is necessary or useful for our business. On January 9, 2009, we entered into a patent license
agreement with Mr. Zhong for the right to use such patent in the operation of our business. In addition, we also applied to SIPO for the
transfer of the patent to Zhengzhou ZST and SIPO accepted the application regarding the patent transfer to Zhengzhou ZST on
December 31, 2008. The patent transfer to Zhengzhou ZST was approved on January 9, 2009. Mr. Zhong did not receive any
additional consideration for the transfer of the intellectual property rights to the Company, other than the execution of the patent license
agreement being a condition to the closing of the Share Exchange.
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We may also enter into additional licenses to third party intellectual property in the future. In addition, because we do not own any
patents relating to our technologies, we do not have the right to defend perceived infringements of patents relating to such
technologies. Thus, our success will depend in part on the ability and willingness of our licensors to obtain, maintain and enforce
patent protection for our licensed intellectual property, in particular, those patents to which we have secured exclusive rights. Our
licensors may not successfully prosecute the patent applications for the intellectual property we have licensed. Even if patents issue in
respect of these patent applications, our licensors may fail to maintain these patents, may determine not to pursue litigation against
other companies that are infringing these patents, or may pursue such litigation less aggressively than we would. Without protection for
the intellectual property we license, other companies might be able to offer substantially identical products for sale, which could
adversely affect our competitive business position and harm our business prospects.

Our ability to compete partly depends on the superiority, uniqueness and value of our technologies, including both internally developed
technology and technology licensed from third parties. To protect our proprietary rights, we rely on a combination of trademark, patent,
copyright and trade secret laws, confidentiality agreements with our employees and third parties, and protective contractual provisions.
Despite our efforts to protect our intellectual property, any of the following occurrences may reduce the value of our intellectual

property:

. our applications for trademarks or patents may not be granted and, if granted, may be challenged or invalidated;
. issued patents, copyrights and trademarks may not provide us with any competitive advantages;
. our efforts to protect our intellectual property rights may not be effective in preventing misappropriation of our

technology or dilution of our trademarks;

. our efforts may not prevent the development and design by others of products or technologies similar to or competitive
with, or superior to those that we develop; or

. another party may obtain a blocking patent that would force us to either obtain a license or design around the patent to
continue to offer the contested feature or service in our technologies.

We rely on trade secret protections through confidentiality agreements with our employees, customers and other parties; the breach
of such agreements could adversely affect our business and results of operations.

We also rely on trade secrets, which we seek to protect, in part, through confidentiality and non-disclosure agreements with our
employees, customers and other parties. There can be no assurance that these agreements will not be breached, that we would have
adequate remedies for any such breach or that our trade secrets will not otherwise become known to or independently developed by
competitors. To the extent that consultants, key employees or other third parties apply technological information independently
developed by them or by others to our proposed projects, disputes may arise as to the proprietary rights to such information that may
not be resolved in our favor. We may be involved from time to time in litigation to determine the enforceability, scope and validity of
our proprietary rights. Any such litigation could result in substantial cost and diversion of effort by our management and technical
personnel.

We intend to pursue future acquisitions. Our business may be adversely affected if we cannot consummate acquisitions on
satisfactory terms, or if we cannot effectively integrate acquired operations.

Part of our growth strategy involves the acquisition of other companies. Any future growth through acquisitions will be partially
dependent upon the availability of suitable acquisition candidates at favorable prices and upon advantageous terms and conditions. We
intend to pursue acquisitions that we believe will present opportunities consistent with our overall business strategy. However, we may
not be able to find suitable acquisition candidates to purchase or may be unable to acquire desired businesses or assets on economically
acceptable terms. In addition, we may not be able to raise the capital necessary to fund future acquisitions. In addition, acquisitions
involve risks that the businesses acquired will not perform in accordance with expectations and that business judgments concerning the
value, strengths and weaknesses of businesses acquired will prove incorrect.

We regularly engage in discussions with respect to potential acquisition and investment opportunities. If we consummate an
acquisition, our capitalization and results of operations may change significantly. Future acquisitions could likely result in the
incurrence of additional debt and contingent liabilities and an increase in interest and amortization expenses or periodic impairment
charges related to goodwill and other intangible assets as well as significant charges relating to integration costs.

In addition, we may not be able to successfully integrate any business we acquire into our existing business. The successful integration
of new businesses depends on our ability to manage these new businesses and cut excess costs. The successful integration of future
acquisitions may also require substantial attention from our senior management and the management of the acquired business, which



could decrease the time that they have to service and attract customers and develop new products and services. In addition, because we
may actively pursue a number of opportunities simultaneously, we may encounter unforeseen expenses, complications and delays,
including difficulties in employing sufficient staff and maintaining operational and management oversight.

20




We may need additional capital to implement our current business strategy, which may not be available to us, and if we raise
additional capital, it may dilute your ownership in us.

We currently depend on bank loans and net revenues to meet our short-term cash requirements. In order to grow revenues and sustain
profitability, we will need additional capital. We recently completed a public offering of shares of common stock, and we may conduct
additional financing transactions in the future. Obtaining additional financing will be subject to a number of factors, including market
conditions, our operating performance and investor sentiment. These factors may make the timing, amount, terms and conditions of
additional financing unattractive to us. We cannot assure you that we will be able to obtain any additional financing. If we are unable to
obtain the financing needed to implement our business strategy, our ability to increase revenues will be impaired and we may not be
able to sustain profitability.

The capital and credit markets have been experiencing extreme volatility and disruption for more than twelve months. In recent
months, the volatility and disruption have reached unprecedented levels. In some cases, the markets have exerted downward pressure
on availability of liquidity and credit capacity for certain issuers. We have historically relied on credit to fund our business and we need
liquidity to pay our operating expenses. Without sufficient liquidity, we will be forced to curtail our operations, and our business will
suffer. Disruptions, uncertainty or volatility in the capital and credit markets may also limit our access to capital required to operate our
business. Such market conditions may limit our ability to replace, in a timely manner, maturing liabilities and access the capital
necessary to operate and grow our business. As such, we may be forced to delay raising capital or bear an unattractive cost of capital
which could decrease our profitability and significantly reduce our financial flexibility. Our results of operations, financial condition,
cash flows and capital position could be materially adversely affected by disruptions in the financial markets.

Our failure to effectively manage growth could harm our business.

We have rapidly and significantly expanded the number and types of products we sell, and we will endeavor to further expand our
product portfolio. We must continually introduce new products and technologies, enhance existing products in order to remain
competitive, and effectively stimulate customer demand for new products and upgraded versions of our existing products.

This expansion of our products places a significant strain on our management, operations and engineering resources. Specifically, the
areas that are strained most by our growth include the following:

. New Product Launch. With the growth of our product portfolio, we experience increased complexity in coordinating
product development, manufacturing, and shipping. As this complexity increases, it places a strain on our ability to
accurately coordinate the commercial launch of our products with adequate supply to meet anticipated customer demand
and effective marketing to stimulate demand and market acceptance. If we are unable to scale and improve our product
launch coordination, we could frustrate our customers and lose retail shelf space and product sales;

. Forecasting, Planning and Supply Chain Logistics. With the growth of our product portfolio, we also experience
increased complexity in forecasting customer demand and in planning for production, and transportation and logistics
management. If we are unable to scale and improve our forecasting, planning and logistics management, we could
frustrate our customers, lose product sales or accumulate excess inventory; and

. Support Processes. To manage the growth of our operations, we will need to continue to improve our transaction
processing, operational and financial systems, and procedures and controls to effectively manage the increased
complexity. If we are unable to scale and improve these areas, the consequences could include: delays in shipment of
product, degradation in levels of customer support, lost sales, decreased cash flows, and increased inventory. These
difficulties could harm or limit our ability to expand.

We are dependent on certain key personnel and loss of these key personnel could have a material adverse effect on our business,
financial condition and results of operations.

Our success is, to a certain extent, attributable to the management, sales and marketing, and operational and technical expertise of
certain key personnel. Each of the named executive officers performs key functions in the operation of our business. The loss of a
significant number of these employees could have a material adverse effect upon our business, financial condition, and results of
operations.

We are dependent on a technically trained workforce and an inability to retain or effectively recruit such employees could have a
material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

We must attract, recruit and retain a sizeable workforce of technically competent employees to develop and manufacture our products
and provide service support. Our ability to implement effectively our business strategy will depend upon, among other factors, the



successful recruitment and retention of additional highly skilled and experienced engineering and other technical and marketing
personnel. There is significant competition for technologically qualified personnel in our business and we may not be successful in
recruiting or retaining sufficient qualified personnel consistent with our operational needs.
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Our facilities and information systems could be damaged as a result of disasters or unpredictable events, which could have an
adverse effect on our business operations.

Our headquarters and major facilities including sales offices and research and development centers are located in China. If major

disasters such as earthquakes, fires, floods, wars, terrorist attacks, computer viruses, transportation disasters or other events occur, or
our information system or communications network breaks down or operates improperly as a result of such events, our facilities may
be seriously damaged, and we may have to stop or delay production and shipment. We may incur expenses relating to such damages.

Risks Related to Doing Business in China

Substantially all of our assets are located in the PRC and substantially all of our revenues are derived from our operations in
China, and changes in the political and economic policies of the PRC government could have a significant impact upon the
business we may be able to conduct in the PRC and accordingly on the results of our operations and financial condition.

Our business operations may be adversely affected by the current and future political environment in the PRC. The Chinese
government exerts substantial influence and control over the manner in which we must conduct our business activities. Our ability to
operate in China may be adversely affected by changes in Chinese laws and regulations, including those relating to taxation, import and
export tariffs, raw materials, environmental regulations, land use rights, property and other matters. Under the current government
leadership, the government of the PRC has been pursuing economic reform policies that encourage private economic activity and
greater economic decentralization. There is no assurance, however, that the government of the PRC will continue to pursue these
policies, or that it will not significantly alter these policies from time to time without notice.

Our operations are subject to PRC laws and regulations that are sometimes vague and uncertain. Any changes in such PRC laws
and regulations, or the interpretations thereof, may have a material and adverse effect on our business.

The PRC legal system is a civil law system based on written statutes. Unlike the common law system prevalent in the United States,
decided legal cases have little value as precedent in China. There are substantial uncertainties regarding the interpretation and
application of PRC laws and regulations, including but not limited to, the laws and regulations governing our business, or the
enforcement and performance of our arrangements with customers in the event of the imposition of statutory liens, death, bankruptcy
or criminal proceedings. The Chinese government has been developing a comprehensive system of commercial laws, and considerable
progress has been made in introducing laws and regulations dealing with economic matters such as foreign investment, corporate
organization and governance, commerce, taxation and trade. However, because these laws and regulations are relatively new, and
because of the limited volume of published cases and judicial interpretation and their lack of force as precedents, interpretation and
enforcement of these laws and regulations involve significant uncertainties. New laws and regulations that affect existing and proposed
future businesses may also be applied retroactively.

Our principal operating subsidiary, Zhengzhou Shenyang Technology Company Limited (“Zhengzhou ZST”), is considered a foreign
invested enterprise under PRC laws, and as a result is required to comply with PRC laws and regulations, including laws and
regulations specifically governing the activities and conduct of foreign invested enterprises. We cannot predict what effect the
interpretation of existing or new PRC laws or regulations may have on our businesses. If the relevant authorities find us in violation of
PRC laws or regulations, they would have broad discretion in dealing with such a violation, including, without limitation:

. levying fines;

. revoking our business license, other licenses or authorities;

. requiring that we restructure our ownership or operations; and
. requiring that we discontinue any portion or all of our business.

Investors may experience difficulties in effecting service of legal process, enforcing foreign judgments or bringing original actions
in China based upon U.S. laws, including the federal securities laws or other foreign laws against us or our management.

Most of our current operations, including the manufacturing and distribution of our products, are conducted in China. Moreover, all of
our directors and officers are nationals and residents of China. All or substantially all of the assets of these persons are located outside
the United States and in the PRC. As a result, it may not be possible to effect service of process within the United States or elsewhere
outside China upon these persons. In addition, uncertainty exists as to whether the courts of China would recognize or enforce
judgments of U.S. courts obtained against us or such officers and/or directors predicated upon the civil liability provisions of the
securities laws of the United States or any state thereof, or be competent to hear original actions brought in China against us or such
persons predicated upon the securities laws of the United States or any state thereof.
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The scope of our business license in China is limited, and we may not expand or continue our business without government
approval and renewal, respectively.

Our principal operating subsidiary, Zhengzhou ZST, is a wholly foreign-owned enterprise, commonly known as a WFOE. A WFOE
can only conduct business within its approved business scope, which ultimately appears on its business license. Our license permits us
to design, manufacture, sell and market portable electronic products throughout the PRC and overseas. Any amendment to the scope of
our business requires further application and government approval. In order for us to expand our business beyond the scope of our
license, we will be required to enter into a negotiation with the PRC authorities for the approval to expand the scope of our business.
We cannot assure investors that Zhengzhou ZST will be able to obtain the necessary government approval for any change or expansion
of its business.

We are subject to a variety of environmental laws and regulations related to our manufacturing operations. Our failure to comply
with environmental laws and regulations may have a material adverse effect on our business and results of operations.

We cannot assure you that at all times we will be in compliance with environmental laws and regulations or that we will not be required
to expend significant funds to comply with, or discharge liabilities arising under, environmental laws, regulations and permits.

Recent PRC regulations relating to acquisitions of PRC companies by foreign entities may create regulatory uncertainties that
could restrict or limit our ability to operate. Our failure to obtain required prior approval for the share exchange, reverse merger
and the listing and trading of our common stock could have a material adverse effect on our business, operating results, reputation
and trading price of our common stock.

The PRC State Administration of Foreign Exchange, or “SAFE,” issued a public notice in November 2005, known as Circular 75,
concerning the use of offshore holding companies controlled by PRC residents in mergers and acquisitions in China. This circular
requires that (1) a PRC resident shall register with a local branch of the SAFE before he or she establishes or controls an overseas
special purpose vehicle, or SPV, for the purpose of overseas equity financing (including convertible debt financing); (2) when a PRC
resident contributes the assets of or his or her equity interests in a domestic enterprise to an SPV, or engages in overseas financing after
contributing assets or equity interests to an SPV, such PRC resident must register his or her interest in the SPV and any changes in such
interest with a local branch of the SAFE; and (3) when the SPV undergoes a material change outside of China, such as a change in
share capital or merger or acquisition, the PRC resident shall, within 30 days from the occurrence of the event that triggers the change,
register such change with a local branch of the SAFE. In addition, SAFE issued updated internal implementing rules, or the
Implementing Rules in relation to Circular 75. The Implementing Rules were promulgated and became effective on May 29, 2007.
Such Implementing Rules provide more detailed provisions and requirements regarding the overseas investment foreign exchange
registration procedures. However, even after the promulgation of Implementing Rules there still exist uncertainties regarding the SAFE
registration for PRC residents’ interests in overseas companies. If any PRC resident stockholder of a SPV fails to make the required
SAFE registration and amended registration, the onshore PRC subsidiaries of that offshore company may be prohibited from
distributing their profits and the proceeds from any reduction in capital, share transfer or liquidation to the offshore entity. Failure to
comply with the SAFE registration and amendment requirements described above could result in liability under PRC laws for evasion
of applicable foreign exchange restrictions. Because of uncertainty in how the SAFE notice will be interpreted and enforced, we cannot
be sure how it will affect our business operations or future plans. For example, Zhengzhou ZST’s ability to conduct foreign exchange
activities, such as the remittance of dividends and foreign currency-denominated borrowings, may be subject to compliance with the
SAFE notice by our PRC resident beneficial holders over whom we have no control. In addition, we cannot assure you that such PRC
residents will be able to complete the necessary approval and registration procedures required by the SAFE regulations. Failure by any
PRC resident beneficial holder to register as required with the relevant branch of SAFE could subject these PRC resident beneficial
holders to fines or legal sanctions, restrict our overseas or cross-border investment activities, limit Zhengzhou ZST’s ability to make
distributions or pay dividends or affect our ownership structure, which could adversely affect our business and prospects.

On August 8, 2006, the PRC Ministry of Commerce (“MOFCOM?”), joined by the State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration
Commission of the State Council, the State Administration of Taxation, the State Administration for Industry and Commerce, the
China Securities Regulatory Commission and SAFE, released a substantially amended version of the Provisions for Foreign Investors
to Merge with or Acquire Domestic Enterprises (the “Revised M&A Regulations”), which took effect September 8, 2006. These new
rules significantly revised China’s regulatory framework governing onshore-to-offshore restructurings and foreign acquisitions of
domestic enterprises. These new rules signify greater PRC government attention to cross-border merger, acquisition and other
investment activities, by confirming MOFCOM as a key regulator for issues related to mergers and acquisitions in China and requiring
MOFCOM approval of a broad range of merger, acquisition and investment transactions. Further, the new rules establish reporting
requirements for acquisition of control by foreigners of companies in key industries, and reinforce the ability of the Chinese
government to monitor and prohibit foreign control transactions in key industries.

Among other things, the revised M&A Regulations include new provisions that purport to require that an offshore special purpose
vehicle, or a SPV, formed for listing purposes and controlled directly or indirectly by PRC companies or individuals must obtain the



approval of the CSRC prior to the listing and trading of such SPV’s securities on an overseas stock exchange. On September 21, 2006,
the CSRC published on its official website procedures specifying documents and materials required to be submitted to it by SPVs
seeking CSRC approval of their overseas listings. However, the application of this PRC regulation remains unclear with no consensus
currently existing among the leading PRC law firms regarding the scope and applicability of the CSRC approval requirement.
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According to the M&A Regulations, a “Related Party Acquisition” is defined as having taken place when a PRC business that is owned
by PRC individual(s) is sold to a non-PRC entity that is established or controlled, directly or indirectly, by those same PRC
individual(s). Under the M&A Regulations, any Related Party Acquisition must be approved by MOFCOM and any indirect
arrangement or series of arrangements which achieves the same end result without the approval of MOFCOM is a violation of PRC
law.

Our BVI subsidiary, World Orient, World Orient’s BVI subsidiary, Global Asia, and Global Asia’s Hong Kong subsidiary, Everfair,
were owned by non-PRC individuals. Everfair obtained all the equity interests of Zhengzhou ZST (the “Restructuring”) further to an
Equity Purchase Agreement dated October 10, 2008 (the “Equity Purchase Agreement”) by and among Everfair, Zhong Bo, Wu Dexiu,
Huang Jiankang, Sun Hui and Li Yuting (the “ZST Management”). The Equity Purchase Agreement received approval by the
Zhengzhou Municipal Bureau of Commerce on November 10, 2008 and Zhengzhou ZST filed all required applications and received all
appropriate SAFE approvals from the Henan branch of SAFE. With respect to the Restructuring, the PRC legal counsel of Zhengzhou
ZST, Han Kun Law Offices, has opined on January 9, 2009 that: (1) the Equity Purchase Agreement and the Restructuring have
received all requisite approvals from the competent authorities, and all required registrations, certifications and approvals for the
Equity Purchase Agreement and the Restructuring have been received by Zhengzhou ZST; (2) Zhengzhou ZST has filed all required
applications for the Equity Purchase Agreement and the Restructuring and has received any and all foreign exchange registrations,
certifications and approvals as required, including, but not limited to, those as required from the appropriate national and local branches
of SAFE and MOFCOM,; and (3) to their best knowledge, the Equity Purchase Agreement and the Restructuring do not (a) contravene
or circumvent any provision of applicable PRC laws and regulations, including without limitation, the M&A Regulations, Circular 75
and its implementing rules; or (b) contravene the articles of association, business license or other constituent documents of Zhengzhou
ZST.

On January 14, 2009, Zhong Bo, our Chief Executive Officer, Wu Dexiu, Huang Jiankang, Sun Hui and Li Yuting (the “ZST
Management”) each entered into a Common Stock Purchase Agreement pursuant to which the Company issued and the ZST
Management agreed to purchase an aggregate of 5,090,315 shares of our common stock at a per share purchase price of $0.6907 (the
“Purchase Right”). The purchase price for the shares was paid in full on May 25, 2009. Each of the stockholders and warrantholders of
the Company prior to the Share Exchange agreed to cancel 0.3317 shares of common stock and warrants to purchase 0.5328 shares of
common stock held by each of them for each one (1) share of common stock purchased by the ZST Management pursuant to the
Purchase Right (the “Share and Warrant Cancellation”). After giving effect to the Purchase Right and Share and Warrant Cancellation,
Mr. Zhong beneficially owned approximately 59.87% of our outstanding common stock (after giving effect to the Series A
Conversion).

The PRC regulatory authorities may take the view that the acquisition of Zhengzhou ZST by Everfair, the Share Exchange, the
Purchase Right and the Share and Warrant Cancellation are part of an overall series of arrangements which constitute a Related Party
Acquisition, because at the end of these transactions, PRC individuals become majority owners and effective controlling parties of a
foreign entity that acquired ownership of Zhengzhou ZST. The PRC regulatory authorities may also take the view that the registration
of the acquisition of Zhengzhou ZST by Everfair with the Zhengzhou Municipal Bureau of Commerce and the filings with the Henan
SAFE may not evidence that the acquisition has been properly approved because the relevant parties did not fully disclose to the
Zhengzhou Bureau of Commerce or Henan SAFE of the overall restructuring arrangements, the existence of the Share Exchange and
its link with the acquisition of Zhengzhou ZST by Everfair .

We, however, cannot assure you that the PRC regulatory authorities, MOFCOM in particular, may take the same view as the PRC legal
counsel with respect to the Restructuring. If the PRC regulatory authorities take the view that the acquisition constitutes a Related
Party Acquisition under the M&A Regulations, we cannot assure you we may be able to obtain the approval required from the national
offices of MOFCOM.

If the PRC regulatory authorities take the view that the acquisition of Zhengzhou ZST by Everfair constitutes a Related Party
Acquisition without the approval of the national offices of MOFCOM, they could invalidate our acquisition and ownership of
Zhengzhou ZST. Additionally, the PRC regulatory authorities may take the view that the Share Exchange constitutes a transaction
which requires the prior approval of the China Securities Regulatory Commission, or CSRC. If this takes place, we would attempt to
find a way to re-establish control of Zhengzhou ZST’s business operations through a series of contractual arrangements rather than an
outright purchase of Zhengzhou ZST. But we cannot assure you that any such contractual arrangements will be protected by PRC law
or that the Company can receive as complete or effective economic benefit and overall control of Zhengzhou ZST’s business than if the
Company had direct ownership of Zhengzhou ZST. In addition, we cannot assure you that any such contractual arrangements can be
successfully effected under PRC law. If we cannot obtain MOFCOM or CSRC approval if required by the PRC regulatory authorities
to do so, and if we cannot put in place or enforce relevant contractual arrangements as an alternative and equivalent means of control of
Zhengzhou ZST, our business and financial performance will be materially adversely affected.

If the CSRC approval is not obtained, we may face regulatory actions or other sanctions from the CSRC or other PRC regulatory
agencies. These regulatory agencies may impose fines and penalties on our operations in the PRC, limit our operating privileges in the
PRC, delay or restrict the repatriation of the proceeds from any financings into the PRC, or take other actions that could have a material



adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations, reputation and prospects, as well as the trading price of our
common stock. The CSRC or other PRC regulatory agencies also may take actions requiring us, or making it advisable for us, to halt
the proposed public offering before settlement and delivery of the common stock offered thereby. Consequently, if investors engage in
market trading or other activities in anticipation of and prior to settlement and delivery, they do so at the risk that settlement and
delivery may not occur.
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Any uncertainties and/or negative publicity regarding this CSRC approval requirement could have a material adverse effect on the
trading price of our common stock. Furthermore, published news reports in China recently indicated that the CSRC may have curtailed
or suspended overseas listings for Chinese private companies. These news reports have created further uncertainty regarding the
approach that the CSRC and other PRC regulators may take with respect to us.

It is uncertain how our business operations or future strategy will be affected by the interpretations and implementation of the
aforementioned rules and regulations. It is anticipated that application of the new rules will be subject to significant administrative
interpretation, and we will need to closely monitor how MOFCOM and other ministries apply the rules to ensure that our domestic and
offshore activities continue to comply with PRC law. Given the uncertainties regarding interpretation and application of the new rules,
we may need to expend significant time and resources to maintain compliance.

Our labor costs are likely to increase as a result of changes in Chinese labor laws.

We expect to experience an increase in our cost of labor due to recent changes in Chinese labor laws which are likely to increase costs
further and impose restrictions on our relationship with our employees. In June 2007, the National People’s Congress of the PRC
enacted new labor law legislation called the Labor Contract Law and more strictly enforced existing labor laws. The new law, which
became effective on January 1, 2008, amended and formalized workers’ rights concerning overtime hours, pensions, layoffs,
employment contracts and the role of trade unions. As a result of the new law, the Company has had to reduce the number of hours of
overtime its employees can work, substantially increase the salaries of its employees, provide additional benefits to its employees, and
revise certain other of its labor practices. The increase in labor costs has increased the Company’s operating costs, which increase the
Company has not always been able to pass through to its customers. As a result, the Company has incurred certain operating losses as
its cost of manufacturing increased. In addition, under the new law, employees who either have worked for the Company for 10 years
or more or who have had two consecutive fixed-term contracts must be given an “open-ended employment contract” that, in effect,
constitutes a lifetime, permanent contract, which is terminable only in the event the employee materially breaches the Company’s rules
and regulations or is in serious dereliction of his duty. Such non-cancelable employment contracts will substantially increase its
employment related risks and limit the Company’s ability to downsize its workforce in the event of an economic downturn. No
assurance can be given that the Company will not in the future be subject to labor strikes or that it will not have to make other
payments to resolve future labor issues caused by the new laws. Furthermore, there can be no assurance that the labor laws will not
change further or that their interpretation and implementation will vary, which may have a negative effect upon our business and results
of operations.

The ability of our Chinese operating subsidiaries to pay dividends may be restricted due to foreign exchange control and other
regulations of China.

Under applicable PRC regulations, foreign-invested enterprises in China may pay dividends only out of their accumulated profits, if
any, determined in accordance with PRC accounting standards and regulations. In addition, a foreign-invested enterprise in China is
required to set aside at least 10.0% of its after-tax profit based on PRC accounting standards each year to its general reserves until the
accumulative amount of such reserves reach 50.0% of its registered capital. These reserves are not distributable as cash dividends. The
board of directors of a foreign-invested enterprise has the discretion to allocate a portion of its after-tax profits to staff welfare and
bonus funds, which may not be distributed to equity owners except in the event of liquidation.

Furthermore, the ability of our Chinese operating subsidiaries to pay dividends may be restricted due to the foreign exchange control
policies and availability of cash balance of the Chinese operating subsidiaries. Because substantially all of our operations are conducted
in China and a substantial majority of our revenues are generated in China, a majority of our revenue being earned and currency
received are denominated in Renminbi (RMB). RMB is subject to the exchange control regulation in China, and, as a result, we may
unable to distribute any dividends outside of China due to PRC exchange control regulations that restrict our ability to convert RMB
into U.S. Dollars.

Our inability to receive dividends or other payments from our Chinese operating subsidiary could adversely limit our ability to grow,
make investments or acquisitions that could be beneficial to our business, pay dividends, or otherwise fund and conduct our business.
Zhengzhou ZST’s funds may not be readily available to us to satisfy obligations which have been incurred outside the PRC, which
could adversely affect our business and prospects or our ability to meet our cash obligations. Accordingly, if we do not receive
dividends from our Chinese operating subsidiary, our liquidity, financial condition and ability to make dividend distributions to our
stockholders will be materially and adversely affected.

The foreign currency exchange rate between U.S. Dollars and Renminbi could adversely affect our financial condition.

To the extent that we need to convert U.S. Dollars into Renminbi for our operational needs, our financial position and the price of our
common stock may be adversely affected should the Renminbi appreciate against the U.S. Dollar at that time. Conversely, if we decide



to convert our Renminbi into U.S. Dollars for the operational needs or paying dividends on our common stock, the dollar equivalent of
our earnings from our subsidiaries in China would be reduced should the U.S. Dollar appreciate against the Renminbi.

Until 1994, the Renminbi experienced a gradual but significant devaluation against most major currencies, including U.S. Dollars, and
there was a significant devaluation of the Renminbi on January 1, 1994 in connection with the replacement of the dual exchange rate
system with a unified managed floating rate foreign exchange system. Since 1994, the value of the Renminbi relative to the U.S. Dollar
has remained stable and has appreciated slightly against the U.S. Dollar. Countries, including the United States, have argued that the
Renminbi is artificially undervalued due to China’s current monetary policies and have pressured China to allow the Renminbi to float
freely in world markets. In July 2005, the PRC government changed its policy of pegging the value of the Renminbi to the U.S. Dollar.
Under the new policy the Renminbi is permitted to fluctuate within a narrow and managed band against a basket of designated foreign
currencies. While the international reaction to the Renminbi revaluation has generally been positive, there remains significant
international pressure on the PRC government to adopt an even more flexible currency policy, which could result in further and more
significant appreciation of the Renminbi against the U.S. Dollar.
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Inflation in the PRC could negatively affect our profitability and growth.

While the PRC economy has experienced rapid growth, such growth has been uneven among various sectors of the economy and in
different geographical areas of the country. Rapid economic growth can lead to growth in the money supply and rising inflation. During
the past decade, the rate of inflation in China has been as high as approximately 20% and China has experienced deflation as low as
approximately minus 2%. If prices for our products and services rise at a rate that is insufficient to compensate for the rise in the costs
of supplies such as raw materials, it may have an adverse effect on our profitability. In order to control inflation in the past, the PRC
government has imposed controls on bank credits, limits on loans for fixed assets and restrictions on state bank lending. The
implementation of such policies may impede economic growth. In October 2004, the People’s Bank of China, the PRC’s central bank,
raised interest rates for the first time in nearly a decade and indicated in a statement that the measure was prompted by inflationary
concerns in the Chinese economy. In April 2006, the People’s Bank of China raised the interest rate again. Repeated rises in interest
rates by the central bank would likely slow economic activity in China which could, in turn, materially increase our costs and also
reduce demand for our products and services.

Failure to comply with the United States Foreign Corrupt Practices Act could subject us to penalties and other adverse
consequences.

As our ultimate holding company is a Delaware corporation, we are subject to the United States Foreign Corrupt Practices Act, which
generally prohibits United States companies from engaging in bribery or other prohibited payments to foreign officials for the purpose
of obtaining or retaining business. Foreign companies, including some that may compete with us, are not subject to these prohibitions.
Corruption, extortion, bribery, pay-offs, theft and other fraudulent practices may occur from time-to-time in the PRC. We can make no
assurance, however, that our employees or other agents will not engage in such conduct for which we might be held responsible. If our
employees or other agents are found to have engaged in such practices, we could suffer severe penalties and other consequences that
may have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

If we make equity compensation grants to persons who are PRC citizens, they may be required to register with the State
Administration of Foreign Exchange of the PRC, or SAFE. We may also face regulatory uncertainties that could restrict our ability
to adopt an equity compensation plan for our directors and employees and other parties under PRC law.

On April 6, 2007, SAFE issued the “Operating Procedures for Administration of Domestic Individuals Participating in the Employee
Stock Ownership Plan or Stock Option Plan of An Overseas Listed Company, also know as “Circular 78.” It is not clear whether
Circular 78 covers all forms of equity compensation plans or only those which provide for the granting of stock options. For any plans
which are so covered and are adopted by a non-PRC listed company after April 6, 2007, Circular 78 requires all participants who are
PRC citizens to register with and obtain approvals from SAFE prior to their participation in the plan. In addition, Circular 78 also
requires PRC citizens to register with SAFE and make the necessary applications and filings if they participated in an overseas listed
company’s covered equity compensation plan prior to April 6, 2007. We intend to adopt an equity compensation plan in the future and
make substantial option grants to our officers and directors, most of who are PRC citizens. Circular 78 may require our officers and
directors who receive option grants and are PRC citizens to register with SAFE. We believe that the registration and approval
requirements contemplated in Circular 78 will be burdensome and time consuming. If it is determined that any of our equity
compensation plans are subject to Circular 78, failure to comply with such provisions may subject us and participants of our equity
incentive plan who are PRC citizens, including or Chief Executive Officer, to fines and legal sanctions and prevent us from being able
to grant equity compensation to our PRC employees. In that case, our ability to compensate our employees and directors through equity
compensation would be hindered and our business operations may be adversely affected.
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Any recurrence of Severe Acute Respiratory Syndrome (SARS), Avian Flu, or another widespread public health problem in the
PRC could adversely affect our operations.

A renewed outbreak of SARS, Avian Flu or another widespread public health problem in China, where our manufacturing facilities are
located and where the substantial portion of our sales occur, could have a negative effect on our operations. Our business is dependent
upon its ability to continue to manufacture products. Such an outbreak could have an impact on our operations as a result of:

. quarantines or closures of some of our manufacturing facilities, which would severely disrupt our operations,
. the sickness or death of our key officers and employees, or
. a general slowdown in the Chinese economy.

Any of the foregoing events or other unforeseen consequences of public health problems could adversely affect our operations.

We face risks related to natural disasters, terrorist attacks or other events in China that may affect usage of public transportation,
which could have a material adverse effect on our business and results of operations.

Our business could be materially and adversely affected by natural disasters, terrorist attacks or other events in China. For example, in
early 2008, parts of China suffered a wave of strong snow storms that severely impacted public transportation systems. In May 2008,
Sichuan Province in China suffered a strong earthquake measuring approximately 8.0 on the Richter scale that caused widespread
damage and casualties. The May 2008 Sichuan earthquake has had a material adverse effect on the general economic conditions in the
areas affected by the earthquake. Any future natural disasters, terrorist attacks or other events in China could cause a reduction in
usage of or other severe disruptions to, public transportation systems and could have a material adverse effect on our business and
results of operations.

A downturn in the economy of the PRC may slow our growth and profitability.

The growth of the Chinese economy has been uneven across geographic regions and economic sectors. There can be no assurance that
growth of the Chinese economy will be steady or that any downturn will not have a negative effect on our business, especially if it
results in either a decreased use of our products or in pressure on us to lower our prices.

Because our business is located in the PRC, we may have difficulty establishing adequate management, legal and financial
controls, which we are required to do in order to comply with U.S. GAAP and securities laws, and which could cause a materially
adverse impact on our financial statements, the trading of our common stock and our business.

PRC companies have historically not adopted a Western style of management and financial reporting concepts and practices, which
includes strong corporate governance, internal controls and, computer, financial and other control systems. Most of our middle and top
management staff are not educated and trained in the Western system, and we may have difficulty hiring new employees in the PRC
with experience and expertise relating to U.S. GAAP and U.S. public-company reporting requirements. In addition, we may have
difficulty in hiring and retaining a sufficient number of qualified employees to work in the PRC. As a result of these factors, we may
experience difficulty in establishing management, legal and financial controls, collecting financial data and preparing financial
statements, books of account and corporate records and instituting business practices that meet Western standards. Therefore, we may,
in turn, experience difficulties in implementing and maintaining adequate internal controls as required under Section 404 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. This may result in significant deficiencies or material weaknesses in our internal controls which could
impact the reliability of our financial statements and prevent us from complying with SEC rules and regulations and the requirements
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. Any such deficiencies, material weaknesses or lack of compliance could result in restatements of
our historical financial information, cause investors to lose confidence in our reported financial information, have an adverse impact on
the trading price of our common stock, adversely affect our ability to access the capital markets and our ability to recruit personnel,
lead to the delisting of our securities from the stock exchange on which they are traded, lead to litigation claims, thereby diverting
management’s attention and resources, and which may lead to the payment of damages to the extent such claims are not resolved in
our favor, lead to regulatory proceedings, which may result in sanctions, monetary or otherwise, and have a materially adverse effect on
our reputation and business.

Contract drafting, interpretation and enforcement in China involves significant uncertainty.

We have entered into numerous contracts governed by PRC law, many of which are material to our business. As compared with
contracts in the United States, contracts governed by PRC law tend to contain less detail and are not as comprehensive in defining
contracting parties’ rights and obligations. As a result, contracts in China are more vulnerable to disputes and legal challenges. In
addition, contract interpretation and enforcement in China is not as developed as in the United States, and the result of any contract



dispute is subject to significant uncertainties. Therefore, we cannot assure you that we will not be subject to disputes under our material
contracts, and if such disputes arise, we cannot assure you that we will prevail.
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If our land use rights are revoked, we would have no operational capabilities.

Under Chinese law land is owned by the state or rural collective economic organizations. The state issues to the land users the land use
right certificate. Land use rights can be revoked and the land users forced to vacate at any time when redevelopment of the land is in
the public interest. The public interest rationale is interpreted quite broadly and the process of land appropriation may be less than
transparent. Each of our facilities rely on these land use rights as the cornerstone of their operations, and the loss of such rights would
have a material adverse effect on our company.

Under the New EIT Law, we, World Orient, Global Asia and EverFair may be classified as “resident enterprises” of China for tax
purpose, which may subject us , World Orient , Global Asia and EverFair to PRC income tax on taxable global income.

Under the new PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law (the “New EIT Law”) and its implementing rules, both of which became effective on
January 1, 2008. Under the New EIT Law, enterprises are classified as resident enterprises and non-resident enterprises. An enterprise
established outside of China with its “de facto management bodies” located within China is considered a “resident enterprise,” meaning
that it can be treated in a manner similar to a Chinese domestic enterprise for enterprise income tax purposes.

The implementing rules of the New EIT Law define de facto management body as a managing body that in practice exercises
“substantial and overall management and control over the production and operations, personnel, accounting, and properties” of the
enterprise. Due to the short history of the New EIT law and lack of applicable legal precedents, it remains unclear how the PRC tax
authorities will determine the PRC tax resident treatment of a foreign company such as us, World Orient, Global Asia and EverFair.
We, World Orient, Global Asia and EverFair all have members of management located in China. If the PRC tax authorities determine
that we, World Orient ,Global Asia or EverFair is a “resident enterprise” for PRC enterprise income tax purposes, a number of PRC tax
consequences could follow.

First, we may be subject to the enterprise income tax at a rate of 25% on our worldwide taxable income, as well as PRC enterprise
income tax reporting obligations. Second, the New EIT Law provides that dividend paid between “qualified resident enterprises” is
exempted from enterprise income tax. A recent circular issued by the State Administration of Taxation regarding the standards used to
classify certain Chinese-invested enterprises controlled by Chinese enterprises or Chinese group enterprises and established outside of
China as “resident enterprises” clarified that dividends and other income paid by such “resident enterprises” will be considered to be
PRC source income, subject to PRC withholding tax, currently at a rate of 10%, when recognized by non-PRC shareholders.

It is unclear whether the dividends that we, World Orient, Global Asia or EverFair receive from Zhengzhou ZST will constitute
dividends between “qualified resident enterprises” and would therefore qualify for tax exemption, because the definition of qualified
resident enterprises is unclear and the relevant PRC government authorities have not yet issued guidance with respect to the processing
of outbound remittances to entities that are treated as resident enterprises for PRC enterprise income tax purposes.

We are actively monitoring the possibility of “resident enterprise” treatment for the applicable tax years and are evaluating appropriate
organizational changes to avoid this treatment, to the extent possible. If we, World Orient, Global Asia or EverFair are required to pay
income tax on any dividends it receives from Zhengzhou ZST, the amount of dividends we, World Orient, Global Asia or EverFair
could pay to its shareholders would be materially reduced.

If we were treated as a “resident enterprise” by PRC tax authorities, we would be subject to taxation in both the U.S. and China, and
our PRC tax may not be credited against our U.S. tax. As a result of the New EIT Law, our historical operating results will not be
indicative of our operating results for future periods and the value of our common stock.

Dividends we, World Orient, Global Asia and EverFair receive from Zhengzhou ZST located in the PRC may be subject to PRC
withholding tax.

If we, World Orient, Global Asia and EverFair are not treated as a resident enterprise under the New EIT Law, then dividends that we,
World Orient, Global Asia and EverFair receive from Zhengzhou ZST may be subject to PRC withholding tax. The New EIT Law and
the implementing rules provide that an income tax rate of 10% will normally be applicable to dividends payable to investors that are
“non-resident enterprises,” or non-resident investors, which (i) do not have an establishment or place of business in the PRC or (ii)
have an establishment or place of business in the PRC, but the relevant income is not effectively connected with the establishment or
place of business to the extent such dividends are derived from sources within the PRC.

As described above, the PRC tax authorities determine the resident enterprise status of entities organized under the laws of foreign
jurisdictions, including ZST, World Orient, Global Asia or EverFair, on a case-by-case basis. Each of ZST, World Orient, Global Asia
or EverFair is a holding company and substantially all of its income may be derived from dividends it receives from Zhengzhou ZST.
Thus, if ZST, World Orient, Global Asia or EverFair is considered as a “non-resident enterprise” under the New EIT Law and the



dividends paid to ZST, World Orient, Global Asia or EverFair by Zhengzhou ZST in China are considered income sourced within
China, such dividends received by ZST, World Orient, Global Asia or EverFair may be subject to the 10% enterprise income tax.

The State Council of the PRC or a tax treaty between China and the jurisdictions in which the non-PRC investors reside may reduce
such income tax. Pursuant to the Double Tax Avoidance Agreement between Hong Kong and Mainland China, if the beneficial owner
in Hong Kong owns more than 25% of the registered capital in a company in China, the 10% withholding tax is reduced to 5%.
EverFair is incorporated in Hong Kong, which owns 100% equity interest in Zhengzhou ZST. If EverFair is considered as a “non-
resident enterprise” under the New EIT Law and the dividends paid to EverFair by Zhengzhou ZST are considered income sourced
from China, such dividends received by EverFair may be subject to the reduced income tax rate of 5% under the Double Tax
Avoidance Agreement.
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Dividends payable by us to our foreign investors and any gain on the sale of our shares may be subject to taxes under PRC tax laws.

If dividends payable to sharcholders by the Company are treated as income derived from sources within China, then the dividends that
shareholders receive from us, and any gain on the sale or transfer of our shares, may be subject to taxes under PRC tax laws.

Under the New EIT Law and its implementing rules, PRC enterprise income tax at the rate of 10% is applicable to dividends payable
by us to our investors that are non-resident enterprises so long as such non-resident enterprise investors do not have an establishment or
place of business in China or, despite the existence of such establishment of place of business in China, the relevant income is not
effectively connected with such establishment or place of business in China, to the extent that such dividends have their sources within
the PRC. Similarly, any gain realized on the transfer of our shares by such investors is also subject to a 10% PRC income tax if such
gain is regarded as income derived from sources within China and the Company is considered as a resident enterprise which is
domiciled in China for tax purpose. Additionally, there is a possibility that the relevant PRC tax authorities may take the view that the
purpose of the Company or World Orient, Global Asia or EverFair is holding Zhengzhou ZST, and the capital gain derived by our
overseas shareholders or investors from the share transfer is deemed China-sourced income, in which case such capital gain may be
subject to a PRC withholding tax at the rate of up to 10%. If we are required under the New EIT Law to withhold PRC income tax on
our dividends payable to our foreign shareholders or investors who are non-resident enterprises, or if you are required to pay PRC
income tax on the transfer or our shares under the circumstances mentioned above, the value of your investment in our shares may be
materially and adversely affected.

In January, 2009, the State Administration of Taxation promulgated the Provisional Measures for the Administration of Withholding of
Enterprise Income Tax for Non-resident Enterprises (‘“Measures”), pursuant to which, the entities which have the direct obligation to
make the following payment to a non-resident enterprise shall be the relevant tax withholders for such non-resident enterprise, and
such payment includes: incomes from equity investment (including dividends and other return on investment), interests, rents,
royalties, and incomes from assignment of property as well as other incomes subject to enterprise income tax received by non-resident
enterprises in China. Further, the Measures provides that in case of equity transfer between two non-resident enterprises which occurs
outside China, the non-resident enterprise which receives the equity transfer payment shall, by itself or engage an agent to, file tax
declaration with the PRC tax authority located at place of the PRC company whose equity has been transferred, and the PRC company
whose equity has been transferred shall assist the tax authorities to collect taxes from the relevant non-resident enterprise. However, it
is unclear whether the Measures refer to the equity transfer by a non-resident enterprise which is a direct or an indirect shareholder of
the said PRC company. Given these Measures, there is a possibility that Zhengzhou ZST may have an obligation to withhold income
tax in respect of the dividends paid to non-resident enterprise investors.

We face uncertainty from China’s Circular on Strengthening the Administration of Enterprise Income Tax on Non-Resident
Enterprises’ Share Transfer (“Circular 698”) that was released in December 2009 with retroactive effect from January 1, 2008.

The Chinese State Administration of Taxation released a circular (“Circular 698”’) on December 10, 2009 that addresses the transfer of
shares by nonresident companies. Circular 698, which is effective retroactively to January 1, 2008, may have a significant impact on
many companies that use offshore holding companies to invest in China. Pursuant to Circular 698, where the withholding agent does
not withhold in accordance with laws or cannot perform the withholding obligation, the non-resident enterprises shall file a tax
declaration with the PRC tax authority located at place of the resident enterprise whose equity has been transferred, within seven days
since the date of equity transfer provided under the contracts.

Where a foreign investor indirectly transfers equity interests in a Chinese resident enterprise by selling the shares in an offshore
holding company, and the latter is located in a country or jurisdiction where the effective tax burden is less than 12.5% or where the
offshore income of his, her, or its residents is not taxable, the foreign investor is required to provide the tax authority in charge of that
Chinese resident enterprise with the relevant information within 30 days of the transfers. Moreover, where a foreign investor indirectly
transfers equity interests in a Chinese resident enterprise through an abuse of form of organization and there are no reasonable
commercial purposes such that the corporate income tax liability is avoided, the PRC tax authority will have the power to re-assess the
nature of the equity transfer in accordance with PRC’s “substance-over-form” principle and deny the existence of the offshore holding
company that is used for tax planning purposes.

There is uncertainty as to the application of Circular 698. For example, while the term "indirectly transfer" is not defined, it is
understood that the relevant PRC tax authorities have jurisdiction regarding requests for information over a wide range of foreign
entities having no direct contact with China. Moreover, the relevant authority has not yet promulgated any formal provisions or
formally declared or stated how to calculate the effective tax in the country or jurisdiction and to what extent and the process of the
disclosure to the tax authority in charge of that Chinese resident enterprise. In addition, there are not any formal declarations with
regard to how to decide abuse of form of organization and reasonable commercial purpose, which can be utilized by us to balance if
our company complies with the Circular 698. As a result, we may become at risk of being taxed under Circular 698 and we may be
required to expend valuable resources to comply with Circular 698 or to establish that we should not be taxed under Circular 698,
which could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations.
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Risks Related to QOur Capital Structure
Our stock price is volatile.

Prior to the listing of our common stock on the NASDAQ Global Market in October 2009, there has been no public market for our
securities in the United States. . The stock market has experienced extreme volatility that often has been unrelated to the performance
of its listed companies. Moreover, only a limited number of our shares are traded each day, which could increase the volatility of the
price of our stock. These market fluctuations might cause our stock price to fall regardless of our performance. The market price of our
common stock might fluctuate significantly in response to many factors, some of which are beyond our control, including the
following:

e actual or anticipated fluctuations in our annual and quarterly results of operations;
e changes in securities analysts’ expectations;
e  variations in our operating results, which could cause us to fail to meet analysts’ or investors’ expectations;

e announcements by our competitors or us of significant new products, contracts, acquisitions, strategic partnerships, joint
ventures or capital commitments;

e conditions and trends in our industry;

e general market, economic, industry and political conditions;

e changes in market values of comparable companies;

e additions or departures of key personnel;

e stock market price and volume fluctuations attributable to inconsistent trading volume levels; and
o future sales of equity or debt securities, including sales which dilute existing investors.

Shares eligible for future sale may adversely affect the market price of our common stock, as the future sale of a substantial
amount of outstanding stock in the public marketplace could reduce the price of our common stock.

The market price of our common stock could decline as a result of sales of a large number of shares of our common stock in the market
or the perception that these sales could occur. These sales, or the possibility that these sales may occur, also might make it more
difficult for us to sell equity securities in the future at a time and at a price that we deem appropriate.

As of the date of this annual report, we had approximately 11,650,442 shares of common stock outstanding. In October 2009, we
conducted a registered public offering of 3,125,000 shares of common stock, and all of these shares are now freely tradable. Also in
October 2009, we registered 1,263,723 shares of common stock underlying shares of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock that were
issued in a series of equity financings that was conducted in connection with the Share Exchange (the “Private Placement

Shares”). Each private placement investor may sell or transfer any shares of the common stock pursuant to the effective registration
statement, except that they entered into a lock-up agreement pursuant to which holders holding an aggregate of 868,930 shares agreed
not to conduct any sales until six (6) months after our common stock began to be listed on the NASDAQ Global Market and holders of
the remaining 394,793 shares agreed that they will not sell any of such securities until 90 days after our common stock began to be
listed on the NASDAQ Global Market, when one-twelfth of their shares will be released from the lock-up restrictions, and after which
their shares will automatically be released from the lock-up restrictions every 30 days in eleven equal installments. We also registered
with the Private Placement Shares, 243,774 shares of common stock and 34,826 shares of common stock underlying warrants held by
certain of our stockholders immediately prior to the Share Exchange (the “SRKP Shares”). The SRKP Shares may be freely sold and
transferred pursuant to the effective registration statement, subject to a lock-up agreement pursuant to which the holders agreed not to
conduct any sales until six (6) months after our common stock began to be listed on the NASDAQ Global Market. In addition, the
Underwriters, in their discretion, may release some or all the shares earlier than the schedule set forth in this section. Any early release
by the Underwriters will apply equally to each of the investors in the Private Placement.

Furthermore, in October 2009, we registered 156,250 warrants and the shares of common stock underlying the warrants received by the
Underwriters in connection with the public offering. The warrants will become exercisable one year after October 20, 2009 and expire
five years from October 20, 2009. In addition, unless an exemption is available under FINRA Rule 5110(g)(2), these securities will be
subject to lock-up restrictions under FINRA Rule 5110(g). FINRA Rule 5110(g) provides that the warrants and underlying shares shall



not be sold, transferred, assigned, pledged or hypothecated, or be the subject of any hedging, short sale, derivative, put or call
transaction that would result in the effective economic disposition of the warrants or underlying shares by any person for a period of
180 days immediately following the date of effectiveness or commencement of sales of the public offering.
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In January 2010, we registered 1,086,400 shares of common stock held by affiliates of WestPark, all of which may be freely sold and
transferred, subject to a lock-up agreement pursuant to which the holders agreed not to conduct any sales until six (6) months after our
common stock began to be listed on the NASDAQ Global Market.

Additionally, the former stockholders of World Orient and/or their designees and the ZST Management, may be eligible to sell all or
some of our shares of common stock by means of ordinary brokerage transactions in the open market pursuant to Rule 144,
promulgated under the Securities Act (“Rule 144”) as early as January 2010, subject to certain limitations. Under Rule 144, an affiliate
stockholder who has satisfied the required holding period may, under certain circumstances, sell within any three-month period a
number of securities which does not exceed the greater of 1% of the then outstanding shares of common stock or the average weekly
trading volume of the class during the four calendar weeks prior to such sale. As of the date of this annual report, 1% of our issued and
outstanding shares of common stock was approximately 116,505 shares. Non-affiliate stockholders are not subject to volume
limitations. Any substantial sale of common stock pursuant to any resale prospectus or Rule 144 may have an adverse effect on the
market price of our common stock by creating an excessive supply.

However, each of our executive officers and directors, in additional to all of the stockholders that received shares issued in the Share
Exchange or pursuant to the Purchase Right, holding an aggregate of 5,171,565 shares of common stock, have agreed with the
Underwriters not to directly or indirectly sell, offer, contract or grant any option to sell, pledge, transfer (excluding intra-family
transfers, transfers to a trust for estate planning purposes or to beneficiaries of officers, directors and stockholders upon their death), or
otherwise dispose of or enter into any transaction which may result in the disposition of any shares of our common stock or securities
convertible into, exchangeable or exercisable for any shares of our common stock, without the prior written consent of the
Underwriters, for a period of 24 months after October 20, 2009. Holders of 725,158 shares of common stock have agreed with the
Underwriters to be bound by the same transfer restrictions described above, except that such restrictions shall be released on such dates
and amounts as follows: (i) 121,876 shares on the date that is six (6) months after our common stock began to be listed on the
NASDAQ Global Market, (ii) 121,876 shares on the date that is twelve (12) months after such listing date, (iii) 353,438 shares on the
date that is two (2) years after such listing date, and (iv) 127,968 shares shall be released from the restrictions as determined by
WestPark, in its sole discretion.

Compliance with changing regulation of corporate governance and public disclosure will result in additional expenses.

Changing laws, regulations and standards relating to corporate governance and public disclosure, including the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002 and related SEC regulations, have created uncertainty for public companies and significantly increased the costs and risks
associated with accessing the public markets and public reporting. Our management team will need to invest significant management
time and financial resources to comply with both existing and evolving standards for public companies, which will lead to increased
general and administrative expenses and a diversion of management time and attention from revenue generating activities to
compliance activities.

Changes in securities laws, regulations and financial reporting standards are increasing our costs.

The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 required changes in some of our corporate governance, public disclosure and compliance practices.
These changes resulted in increased costs and as we grow, we expect to see our costs increase. The SEC has passed, promulgated and
proposed new rules on a variety of subjects including the requirement that we must file our financial statements with the SEC using the
interactive data format eXtensible Business Reporting Language (commonly referred to as “XBRL”) and the possibility that we would
be required to adopt International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”). We may have to add additional accounting staff, engage
consultants or change our internal practices, standards and policies which could significantly increase our costs to comply with XBRL
and IFRS requirements. In addition, the NASDAQ Stock Market LLC (“NASDAQ?”) has revised its requirements for companies, such
as us, that are listed on NASDAQ. These changes are increasing our legal and financial compliance costs including making it more
difficult and more expensive for us to obtain director and officer liability insurance or maintain our current liability coverage. We
believe that these new and proposed laws and regulations could make it more difficult for us to attract and retain qualified members of
our Board of Directors, particularly to serve on our audit committee, and qualified executive officers.

If we fail to maintain effective internal controls over financial reporting, it may lead to a restatement of our financial information
and the price of our common stock may be adversely affected, as well as our ability to access the capital markets and our business.

We are required to establish and maintain appropriate internal controls over financial reporting. Failure to establish those controls, or
any failure of those controls once established, could adversely impact our public disclosures regarding our business, financial condition
or results of operations. Any failure of these controls could also prevent us from maintaining accurate accounting records and
discovering accounting errors and financial frauds. Rules adopted by the SEC pursuant to Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002 require annual assessment of our internal control over financial reporting, and attestation of this assessment by our independent
registered public accountants. The SEC extended the compliance dates for non-accelerated filers, as defined by the SEC. Accordingly,
the annual assessment of our internal controls requirement first applied to our annual report for the 2007 fiscal year and the attestation



requirement of management’s assessment by our independent registered public accountants will first apply to our annual report for the
2010 fiscal year. The standards that must be met for management to assess the internal control over financial reporting as effective are
new and complex, and require significant documentation, testing and possible remediation to meet the detailed standards. We may
encounter problems or delays in completing activities necessary to make an assessment of our internal control over financial reporting.
In addition, the attestation process by our independent registered public accountants is new and we may encounter problems or delays
in completing the implementation of any requested improvements and receiving an attestation of our assessment by our independent
registered public accountants. If we cannot assess our internal control over financial reporting as effective, or our independent
registered public accountants are unable to provide an unqualified attestation report on such assessment, investor confidence and share

value may be negatively impacted.
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In addition, management’s assessment of internal controls over financial reporting may identify weaknesses and conditions that need to
be addressed in our internal controls over financial reporting or other matters that may raise concerns for investors. Any actual or
perceived weaknesses and conditions that need to be addressed in our internal control over financial reporting, disclosure of
management’s assessment of our internal controls over financial reporting, or disclosure of our public accounting firm’s attestation to
or report on management’s assessment of our internal controls over financial reporting may cause investors to lose confidence in our
reported financial information, have an adverse impact on the trading price of our common stock, adversely affect our ability to access
the capital markets and our ability to recruit personnel, lead to the delisting of our securities from the stock exchange on which they are
traded, lead to litigation claims, thereby diverting management’s attention and resources, and which may lead to the payment of
damages to the extent such claims are not resolved in our favor, lead to regulatory proceedings, which may result in sanctions,
monetary or otherwise and have a materially adverse effect on our reputation and business.

We may be exposed to risks relating to our disclosure controls and our internal controls and may need to incur significant costs to
comply with applicable requirements.

Based on the evaluation done by our management at December 31, 2009, our disclosure controls were deemed ineffective, in that we
could not assure that information required to be disclosed in our SEC reports is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within
the time periods specified in the Securities and Exchange Commission’s rules and forms, and communicated to our management, so as
to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosures. Factors which led our management to conclude that our disclosure controls
and procedures were not effective include, but are not limited to, the late filing of our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter
ended March 31, 2009. Our controls and procedures were primarily adversely affected by the lack of experience within the company
in complying with the requirements of a publicly reporting entity, specifically, having insufficient personnel resources with sufficient
technical accounting expertise within our accounting function. We are seeking to engage experienced professionals to further augment
our financial staff to address issues of timeliness and completeness in financial reporting when we are preparing SEC filings. No
assurances can be given that we will be able to adequately remediate existing deficiencies in disclosure controls and not have
deficiencies when we report on internal controls. Although we believe that these corrective steps will enable management to conclude
that our disclosure controls are effective and these measures will remediate the material weaknesses discussed above when all of the
additional financial staff positions are filled and other remediation plans are implemented, we cannot assure you that this will be
sufficient. Also, as we hire more experienced staff and advisors, additional deficiencies may be identified that will need to be
remediated. These additional deficiencies may also have caused our historical financial results to be incorrect, which, if material, could
require a restatement. As a result, we may be required to expend additional resources to identify, assess and correct any additional
weaknesses in disclosure or internal control and to otherwise comply with the internal controls rules under Section 404 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act, when applicable.

Our common stock may be considered a “penny stock,” and thereby be subject to additional sale and trading regulations that may
make it more difficult to sell.

Our common stock may be considered to be a “penny stock” if it does not qualify for one of the exemptions from the definition of
“penny stock” under Section 3a51-1 of the Exchange Act. Our common stock may be a “penny stock” if it meets one or more of the
following conditions: (i) the stock trades at a price less than $5.00 per share; (ii) it is NOT traded on a “recognized” national exchange;
(iii) it is NOT quoted on the NASDAQ Capital Market, or even if so, has a price less than $5.00 per share; or (iv) is issued by a
company that has been in business less than three years with net tangible assets less than $5 million.

The principal result or effect of being designated a “penny stock™ is that securities broker-dealers participating in sales of our common
stock will be subject to the “penny stock” regulations set forth in Rules 15-2 through 15g-9 promulgated under the Exchange Act. For
example, Rule 15g-2 requires broker-dealers dealing in penny stocks to provide potential investors with a document disclosing the risks
of penny stocks and to obtain a manually signed and dated written receipt of the document at least two business days before effecting
any transaction in a penny stock for the investor’s account. Moreover, Rule 15g-9 requires broker-dealers in penny stocks to approve
the account of any investor for transactions in such stocks before selling any penny stock to that investor. This procedure requires the
broker-dealer to (i) obtain from the investor information concerning his or her financial situation, investment experience and
investment objectives; (ii) reasonably determine, based on that information, that transactions in penny stocks are suitable for the
investor and that the investor has sufficient knowledge and experience as to be reasonably capable of evaluating the risks of penny
stock transactions; (iii) provide the investor with a written statement setting forth the basis on which the broker-dealer made the
determination in (ii) above; and (iv) receive a signed and dated copy of such statement from the investor, confirming that it accurately
reflects the investor’s financial situation, investment experience and investment objectives. Compliance with these requirements may
make it more difficult and time consuming for holders of our common stock to resell their shares to third parties or to otherwise
dispose of them in the market or otherwise.

We do not foresee paying cash dividends in the foreseeable future and, as a result, our investors’ sole source of gain, if any, will
depend on capital appreciation, if any.



We do not plan to declare or pay any cash dividends on our shares of common stock in the foreseeable future and currently intend to
retain any future earnings for funding growth. As a result, investors should not rely on an investment in our securities if they require
the investment to produce dividend income. Capital appreciation, if any, of our shares may be investors’ sole source of gain for the
foreseeable future. Moreover, investors may not be able to resell their shares of the Company at or above the price they paid for them.
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ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS.
Not applicable.
ITEM 2. PROPERTIES.

In China, only the PRC government and peasant collectives may own land. In 2001, Zhong Bo, our Chief Executive Officer and
Chairman of the Board, acquired a total of approximately 115 square meters of real estate for approximately RMB Yuan 665,000
(equivalent to approximately USD$97,000) under a land use right grant from the Zhengzhou State-Owned Land Resource Bureau. Our
registered principal office is located on the property at Building 28, Huzhu Road, Zhongyuan District, Zhengzhou, China. Mr. Zhong
permits the Company to use such property for free. We have the right to use the real estate until 2069. In the event we wish to continue
to use the real estate after this expiration date, we must apply for an extension at least one year prior to the land grant’s expiration.

We also lease a property, with a floor area of approximately 200 square meters, located at No. 170 Gongren Road, Zhongyuan District,
Zhengzhou, China where we conduct the same operations as we do at our principal offices. The lease expires on September 15, 2010
and the annual rent is RMB 50,000, which is approximately USD$7,300.

On April 24, 2009, the Company entered into a House Lease Agreement for the property located at 206 Tongbo Street, Boyaxicheng
Second Floor, Zhengzhou City, Henan Province, People’s Republic of China 450007, with a floor area of approximately 945 square
meters (the “Lease”). The Lease has a term from May 21, 2009 to April 30, 2011 and the annual rent is RMB 400,000, which is
approximately USD$58,485. The Company entered into the Lease because it required additional space to conduct its business
operations.

We believe our current facilities will be adequate to meet our operating needs for the foreseeable future. Should we need additional
space, we believe we will be able to secure additional space at commercially reasonable rates.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS.

There are not any material pending legal proceedings to which the Company is a party or as to which any of its property is subject, and
no such proceedings are known to the Company to be threatened or contemplated against it.

ITEM 4. [REMOVED AND RESERVED.]

33




PART II

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES.

Market Information

Prior to October 20, 2009, our shares of common stock were not listed or quoted for trading on any national securities exchange or
national quotation system. On October 20, 2009, we completed the initial public offering and our common stock began trading on the
NASDAQ Global Market under the symbol “ZSTN.”

On March 29, 2010 the closing sales price for our common stock on the NASDAQ Global Market was $9.32 per share.

The following table summarizes the high and low sales price of our common stock as reported by the NASDAQ Global Market for
each quarter in the year ended December 31, 2009 and 2008.

High Low

Year ended December 31, 2009

Fourth Quarter (October 20, 2009 to December 31, 2009) $ 935 § 5.60
Third Quarter N/A N/A
Second Quarter N/A N/A
First Quarter N/A N/A
Year ended December 31, 2008

Fourth Quarter N/A N/A
Third Quarter N/A N/A
Second Quarter N/A N/A
First Quarter N/A N/A

The stock market in general has experienced extreme stock price fluctuations in the past few years. In some cases, these fluctuations
have been unrelated to the operating performance of the affected companies. Many companies have experienced dramatic volatility in
the market prices of their common stock. We believe that a number of factors, both within and outside our control, could cause the
price of our common stock to fluctuate, perhaps substantially. Factors such as the following could have a significant adverse impact on
the market price of our common stock:

. Our ability to obtain additional financing and, if available, the terms and conditions of the financing;
. Our financial position and results of operations;
. Concern as to, or other evidence of, the reliability and efficiency of our proposed products and services or our

competitors’ products and services;

. Announcements of innovations or new products or services by us or our competitors;

. Federal and state governmental regulatory actions and the impact of such requirements on our business;

° The development of litigation against us;

. Period-to-period fluctuations in our operating results;

. Changes in estimates of our performance by any securities analysts;

. The issuance of new equity securities pursuant to a future offering or acquisition;

. Changes in interest rates;

. Competitive developments, including announcements by competitors of new products or services or significant

contracts, acquisitions, strategic partnerships, joint ventures or capital commitments;

. Investor perceptions of our Company; and



General economic and other national conditions.
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Holders

As of March 29, 2010, we had 132 stockholders of record of 11,650,442 shares of our common stock. This number does not include an
indeterminate number of stockholders whose shares are held by brokers in street name.

Dividends

We do not expect to declare or pay any cash dividends on our common stock in the foreseeable future, and we currently intend to retain
future earnings, if any, to finance the expansion of our business. The decision whether to pay cash dividends on our common stock will
be made by our board of directors, in their discretion, and will depend on our financial condition, operating results, capital
requirements and other factors that the board of directors considers significant. We did not pay cash dividends in the years ended
December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007.

Under applicable PRC regulations, foreign-invested enterprises in China may pay dividends only out of their accumulated profits, if
any, determined in accordance with PRC accounting standards and regulations. In addition, a foreign-invested enterprise in China is
required to set aside at least 10.0% of its after-tax profit based on PRC accounting standards each year to its general reserves until the
accumulative amount of such reserves reach 50.0% of its registered capital. These reserves are not distributable as cash dividends. The
board of directors of a foreign-invested enterprise has the discretion to allocate a portion of its after-tax profits to staff welfare and
bonus funds, which may not be distributed to equity owners except in the event of liquidation.

Furthermore, the ability of our Chinese operating subsidiaries to pay dividends may be restricted due to the foreign exchange control
policies and availability of cash balance of the Chinese operating subsidiaries. Because substantially all of our operations are conducted
in China and a substantial majority of our revenues are generated in China, a majority of our revenue being earned and currency
received are denominated in Renminbi (RMB). RMB is subject to the exchange control regulation in China, and, as a result, we may
unable to distribute any dividends outside of China due to PRC exchange control regulations that restrict our ability to convert RMB
into US Dollars.

Our inability to receive dividends or other payments from our Chinese operating subsidiary could adversely limit our ability to grow,
make investments or acquisitions that could be beneficial to our business, pay dividends, or otherwise fund and conduct our

business. Zhengzhou ZST’s funds may not be readily available to us to satisfy obligations which have been incurred outside the PRC,
which could adversely affect our business and prospects or our ability to meet our cash obligations. Accordingly, if we do not receive
dividends from our Chinese operating subsidiary, our liquidity, financial condition and ability to make dividend distributions to our
stockholders will be materially and adversely affected.

Transfer Agent

The transfer agent and registrar for our common stock is Corporate Stock Transfer, Inc.

Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Compensation Plans

As of December 31, 2009, we did not have an equity compensation plan.

Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities

None.

Additional Information

Copies of our annual reports, quarterly reports, current reports, and any amendments to those reports, are available free of charge on
the internet at www.sec.gov. All statements made in any of our filings, including all forward-looking statements, are made as of the
date of the document in which the statement is included, and we do not assume or undertake any obligation to update any of those

statements or documents unless we are required to do so by law.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA.

The following summary financial information contains consolidated statement of operations data for each of the years in the five-year
period ended December 31, 2009 and the consolidated balance sheet data as of year-end for each of the years in the five-year period
ended December 31, 2009. The consolidated statement of operations data and balance sheet data were derived from the audited
consolidated financial statements, except for data for the year ended and as of December 31, 2005. Such financial data should be read
in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and the notes to the consolidated financial statements starting on page F-1 and
with “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.”

Consolidated Statements of Operations (U.S. Dollars in Thousands, except per share amounts)

For the Year
Ended
December 31,
2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
(unaudited)

Revenue $§ 100,414 $ 55,431 3 28,717  $ 5,650 § 2,129

Cost of goods sold 83,333 45,594 23,221 4,478 1,501
Gross Profit 17,081 9,837 5,496 1,172 628
Operating Costs and Expenses

Selling expenses 364 146 3 19 57

Depreciation 13 21 44 42 26

General and administrative 1,888 1,006 715 230 -

Merger cost 567 - - - -

Research and development 221 - 89 - 304

Total operating costs and expenses 3,053 1,173 851 291 387
Income from operations 14,028 8,664 4,645 881 241
Other income (expenses)

Gain on disposal of assets - (11) - 48 -

Interest income 59 10 3 - 44

Interest expense (156) (339) (196) (12) @)

Imputed interest 31 (71) (70) (20) -

Government grant 380 - - - -

Sundry income (expense), net (16) (11) - 55 -

Total other income (expenses) 236 (422) (263) 71 37
Income before income taxes 14,264 8,242 4,382 952 278
Income taxes (4,085) (2,133) (1,515) (314) (92)
Net income $ 10,179 § 6,109 $ 2,867 $ 638 3 186
Basic earnings per share $ 1.16 $ 1.04 $ 049 $ 0.11 $ 0.03
Weighted average shares outstanding, basic 8,776,491 5,896,723 5,896,723 5,896,723 5,896,723
Diluted earnings per share $ 1.16 $ 1.04 $ 049 $ 0.11 § 0.03
Weighted average shares outstanding, diluted 8,776,491 5,896,723 5,896,723 5,896,723 5,896,723
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Consolidated Balance Sheets (U.S. Dollars in Thousands)

December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31,

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
(unaudited)
Total current assets $ 48223 $ 17,270  $ 16,918 $ 8,069 $ 3,103
Total assets 50,128 17,304 16,980 8,150 4,189
Total current liabilities 2,348 8,321 14,413 6,381 1,786
Total liabilities 2,348 8,321 14,413 6,381 2,042
Total stockholders' equity 47,780 8,983 2,567 1,769 2,147
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS.

Forward-Looking Statements

The following discussion of our financial condition and results of operations should be read in conjunction with our financial
statements and the related notes, and the other financial information included in this annual report.

o« ETaNT ¢

This annual report contains forward-looking statements. The words “anticipated,” “believe,” “expect, “plan,” “intend,” “seek,”
“estimate,” “project,” “could,” “may,” and similar expressions are intended to identify forward-looking statements. These statements
include, among others, information regarding future operations, future capital expenditures, and future net cash flow. Such statements
reflect our management’s current views with respect to future events and financial performance and involve risks and uncertainties,
including, without limitation, general economic and business conditions, changes in foreign, political, social, and economic conditions,
regulatory initiatives and compliance with governmental regulations, the ability to achieve further market penetration and additional
customers, and various other matters, many of which are beyond our control. Should one or more of these risks or uncertainties occur,
or should underlying assumptions prove to be incorrect, actual results may vary materially and adversely from those anticipated,
believed, estimated or otherwise indicated. Consequently, all of the forward-looking statements made in this annual report are

qualified by these cautionary statements and there can be no assurance of the actual results or developments.

€« ETINT

Overview
Business Summary

The Company is principally engaged in supplying digital and optical network equipment to cable system operators in the Henan
Province of China. The Company has developed a line of internet protocol television (“IPTV”) set-top boxes that are used to provide
bundled cable television, Internet and telephone services to residential and commercial customers. The Company has assisted in the
installation and construction of over 400 local cable networks covering more than 90 municipal districts, counties, townships, and
enterprises. The Company’s services and products have been recognized with various certifications, including “integrated computer
information system qualification class I1I” issued by the Ministry of Industry Information, “communication user cable construction
enterprise qualification” issued by the Henan Province Administration of Communication, “Henan Province Security Technology
Prevention Engineering Qualification Class II1”, a certificate of “ISO09001:2000 Quality System Authentication”, and “Double High”
certification, high-tech product and high-tech enterprise issued by the Henan Province government.

At present, the Company’s main clients are broadcasting TV bureaus and cable network operators serving various cities and

counties. The Company has over 30 main customers, including the broadcasting TV bureaus and cable network operators of the cities
of Nanyang, Mengzhou, Xuchang, Pingdingshan, Kaifeng, Zhoukou and Gongyi, and the counties of Yuanyang, Luoning, Neihuang,
Yinyang, Xixia, Kaifeng, Nanzhao, and Gushi.

In the near future, the Company plans to joint venture with cable network operators to provide bundled television programming,
Internet and telephone services to residential customers in cities and counties located in the Henan Province. We are also currently in
the process of establishing a partnership with China Unicom, a wireless network provider, in connection with the Company’s
development and sale of its GPS tracking units. In March 2009, the Company entered into a network access right agreement with the
Henan Subsidiary of China Unicom that allows the Company to use the China Unicom wireless network for providing GPS location
and tracking services to third parties. In the near future, the Company intends to negotiate a reseller agreement with the Henan
Subsidiary of China Unicom whereby GPS tracking units supplied by the Company would be sold in the Henan Subsidiary of China
Unicom retail stores, with the Company receiving a share of subscriber revenue collected by the Henan Subsidiary of China Unicom.

General Factors

We expect that for the foreseeable future that the largest source of revenue for our business will be the sale of set-top boxes sold to
cable system operators. Because the number of potential new customers for our set-top box and fixed satellite services businesses is
small, our current customer concentration is likely to continue for the foreseeable future and our operating results will consequently
likely continue to depend on sales to a relatively small number of customers and on the continued success of these customers relative to
their competitors.

Our profitability will be affected by costs associated with our efforts to expand our sales, marketing, product development and general
and administrative capabilities in all of our businesses, as well as expenses that we incur as a publicly-traded company. These costs
include costs associated with, among other things, financial reporting, information technology, complying with federal securities laws
(including compliance with the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002), tax administration and human resources related functions. If in the



future we expand internationally, we may also incur additional costs to conform our set-top boxes to comply with local laws or local
specifications and to ship our set-top boxes to our international customers.

In order to grow or even maintain our current level of revenue we will be required to attract new customers and to increase sales to
existing customers which may require us to design, market and sell new set-top boxes. If we do not develop relationships with new
customers, we may not be able to expand our customer base and our ability to increase or even maintain our revenue will be impacted.

We believe that substantial opportunities for developing potential new customers lie in international markets and if we were to expand
our operations overseas, we expect our performance in international markets would be a significant factor in determining whether we
would be able to generate revenue and income growth in future periods. However, we do not currently intend to expand our operations
overseas and if we decide to do so in the future, there can be no assurance we will be able to successfully commence or grow an
international business.
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In addition, unfavorable events in the economy, including a continuation or further deterioration in the current downturn in real estate
mortgage and credit markets, could cause consumer demand for subscription TV services and consequently sales of our set-top boxes
to materially decline because consumers may delay purchasing decisions or change or reduce their discretionary spending.

Our ability to sustain or increase profitability will also depend in large part on our ability to control or reduce our costs of producing
our set-top boxes. The market for our set-top boxes, like other electronic products, has been characterized by regular reductions in
selling prices and production costs. Therefore, we will likely be required to reduce production costs in order to maintain the margins
we earn on set-top boxes and the profitability of our set-top box business.

Recent Events
Share Exchange

On December 11, 2008, we entered into a share exchange agreement, as amended on January 9, 2009 (the “Exchange Agreement”),
with World Orient and its stockholders, pursuant to which the stockholders would transfer all of the issued and outstanding shares of
World Orient to the Company in exchange for 806,408 shares of our common stock (the “Share Exchange”). On January 9, 2009, the
Share Exchange closed and World Orient became our wholly-owned subsidiary and we immediately changed our name from “SRKP
18, Inc.” to “ZST Digital Networks, Inc.” A total of 806,408 shares were issued to the former stockholders of World Orient.

Purchase Right

On January 14, 2009, Zhong Bo, our Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board, Wu Dexiu, Huang Jiankang, Sun Hui and Li
Yuting (the “ZST Management”) each entered into a Common Stock Purchase Agreement pursuant to which the Company issued and
the ZST Management agreed to purchase an aggregate of 5,090,315 shares of our common stock at a per share purchase price of
$0.6907 (the “Purchase Right”). The purchase price for the shares was paid in full on May 25, 2009. Each of the stockholders and
warrantholders of the Company prior to the Share Exchange agreed to cancel 0.3317 shares of common stock and warrants to purchase
0.5328 shares of common stock held by each of them for each one (1) share of common stock purchased by the ZST Management
pursuant to the Purchase Right (the “Share and Warrant Cancellation™). Pursuant to the Share and Warrant Cancellation, an aggregate
of 1,688,532 shares of common stock and warrants to purchase 2,712,283 shares of common stock held by certain of our stockholders
and warrantholders prior to the Share Exchange were cancelled.

Private Placement

On May 5, 2009, we completed the final closing in a series of five closings beginning January 9, 2009 of a private placement
transaction (the “Private Placement”). Pursuant to subscription agreements entered into with the investors, we sold an aggregate of
1,263,723 shares of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock at $3.94 per share. As a result, we received gross proceeds in the amount of
approximately $4.98 million. In connection with the initial closing of the Private Placement, the Company issued a promissory note in
the principal amount of $170,000, bearing no interest (the “Note”), to WestPark Capital Financial Services, LLC, the parent company
of the placement agent for the Private Placement, WestPark Capital, Inc. (“WestPark™). The principal was due and payable by the
Company on or before the earlier of (a) thirty (30) days from the date of issuance of the Note or (b) upon the receipt by the Company
of at least $4 million in the Private Placement. The Company repaid the Note in full on January 23, 2009 using the proceeds from the
second closing of the Private Placement.

Restructuring

Our BVI subsidiary, World Orient, its wholly-owned BVI subsidiary, Global Asia, and Global Asia’s wholly-owned Hong Kong
subsidiary, Everfair, were owned by non-PRC individuals. Everfair obtained all the equity interests of Zhengzhou ZST further to an
Equity Purchase Agreement dated October 10, 2008 (the “Equity Purchase Agreement”) by and among Everfair, Zhong Bo, our Chief
Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board, Wu Dexiu, Huang Jiankang, Sun Hui and Li Yuting (the “ZST Management”). The
Equity Purchase Agreement received approval by the Zhengzhou Municipal Bureau of Commerce on November 10, 2008 and
Zhengzhou ZST filed all required applications and received all appropriate SAFE approvals from the Henan branch of SAFE.

Upon the consummation of the Purchase Right and Share and Warrant Cancellation, our Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the
Board, Zhong Bo, beneficially owned approximately 59.87% of our outstanding common stock (after giving effect to the Series A
Conversion).

Reverse Stock Split

On October 6, 2009, we effected a 1-for-2.461538462 reverse stock split of all of our issued and outstanding shares of common stock
and Series A Convertible Preferred Stock (the “Reverse Stock Split”) by filing an amendment to our Certificate of Incorporation with



the Secretary of State of Delaware. The par value and number of authorized shares of our common stock and Series A Convertible
Preferred Stock remained unchanged. The number of shares and per share amounts included in the consolidated financial statements
and the accompanying notes included in the F- section have been adjusted to reflect the Reverse Stock Split retroactively. Unless

otherwise indicated, all references to number of shares, per share amounts and earnings per share information contained in this annual
report give effect to the Reverse Stock Split.
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Public Offering

In October 2009, we completed a public offering consisting of 3,125,000 shares of our common stock. Rodman & Renshaw, LLC and
WestPark Capital, Inc. (together, the “Underwriters”) acted as co-underwriters in the public offering. Our shares of common stock
were sold to the public at a price of $8.00 per share, for gross proceeds of approximately $25 million. Compensation for the
Underwriters’ services included discounts and commissions of $1,875,000, a $250,000 non-accountable expense allowance, roadshow
expenses of approximately $10,000, and legal counsel fees (excluding blue sky fees) of $40,000. The Underwriters also received
warrants to purchase an aggregate of 156,250 shares of our common stock at an exercise price of $10.00 per share. The warrants,
which have a term of five years, are not exercisable until at least one year from the date of issuance. The warrants also carry
registration rights.

Retention Agreement/Consulting and Personal Services Agreements

On November 14, 2009 (the “Effective Date”), the Company entered into a Retention Agreement with Zhong Lin, the Company’s
Chief Operating Officer and a member of its board of directors (the “Retention Agreement”). Pursuant to the Retention Agreement,
Mr. Zhong will receive one-time retention payment equal to $285,000 (the “Retention Amount”) if Mr. Zhong remains continuously
employed with the Company for a period of 24 months from the Effective Date (the “Expiration Date”). The Company advanced the
entire Retention Amount upon the Effective Date, which will be earned ratably over a period of 24 months. Upon the occurrence of
certain termination events (the “Disqualifying Termination Date’’), Mr. Zhong will be required to return the pro-rata amount of the
Retention Amount based on a daily amortization rate of $390.41 times the number of days remaining from the Disqualifying
Termination Date to the Expiration Date to the Company within 10 days of the Disqualifying Termination Date.

On December 30, 2009, we entered into a Consulting Agreement (the “Consulting Agreement”) with Finance Access, Inc. (“Finance
Access”). In connection with the Consulting Agreement, we also entered into professional services agreements with other third parties
(together with the Consulting Agreement, the “Services Agreements”). Pursuant to the Services Agreement, Finance Access and the
third parties agreed to provide the Company with certain professional and business development services in order to aid and augment
the Company’s business development efforts. The term of the Services Agreement is 24 months. The Company paid an aggregate of
$1.55 million as compensation to Finance Access and the third parties, which will be amortized on a quarterly basis over the twenty-
four (24) month period at a daily rate of $2,123.29.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations is based upon our financial statements which have been
prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. The preparation of these financial
statements requires us to make estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities. On an on-going basis,
we evaluate our estimates including the allowance for doubtful accounts, the salability and recoverability of inventory, income taxes
and contingencies. We base our estimates on historical experience and on other assumptions that we believes to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form our basis for making judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions.

We cannot predict what future laws and regulations might be passed that could have a material effect on our results of operations. We
assess the impact of significant changes in laws and regulations on a regular basis and update the assumptions and estimates used to
prepare our financial statements when we deem it necessary.

Revenue recognition. The Company recognizes revenues for product sales, subscriber fees for service contract, and installation service
when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred pursuant to PRC law, including such factors as when
persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, delivery has occurred, the sales price is fixed or determinable, sales and value-added tax
laws have been complied with, and collectability is reasonably assured.

The Company generally recognizes revenue on IPTV device sales when its products are shipped. The IPTV device sales contracts
include a one-year quality assurance warranty for defects. According to the sales contract terms, customers are able to hold back 10%
of the total contract balance payable to the Company for one year. In accordance with the standard of "Revenue Recognition When
Right of Return Exists", the Company records the holdback as revenue at the time of sale when its products are shipped to customers
because:

(a) The contract price to the customer is predetermined and fixed at the date of sale.

(b) The customer is obligated to pay the Company the 10% holdback after one year and the obligation is not contingent on
resale of the product.



(©) The customer’s obligation to the Company would not be changed in the event of theft or physical destruction or
damage of the product because the Company entrust the suppliers to ship the products to the customers, therefore the
suppliers bear the liability for products lost or damaged when in transit to the customers.
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(d) The customer acquiring the product for resale has economic substance apart from that provided by the Company.

(e) The Company does not have significant obligations for future performance to directly bring about resale of the product
by the customer other than replacement of defective product due to hardware defects in materials and workmanship.

) The amount of future returns can be reasonably estimated based on the historical returns experience.

The Company determined that the costs associated with such assurance were immaterial in monetary terms based on the historical
returns experience. The Company has a return policy where the customers must make a request within 30 days of receipt to return the
products when the products delivered have more than 40% defects or the products are not delivered on time. As of December 31, 2009,
the Company has not received any returns.

In the event of defective product returns, the Company has the right to seek replacement of such returned units from its supplier. Based
on the agreement, the supplier will replace the defective product when the defects are caused by hardware defects in materials and
workmanship during manufacturing process for a period of one year. The Company incurred quality assurance costs of $0 for the year
ended December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

Based on the facts above, the Company recognizes costs related to the quality assurance when incurred.

In October 2009, the Company introduced GPS device for sale along with subscription service and installation service for its GPS
device. The Company generally recognizes revenue from the sale of GPS device hardware with the bundled software that is essential to
the functionality of the GPS device when there are no continuing obligations upon shipment. If a continuing obligation exists, such as
installation, the Company recognizes revenue from the sale of hardware bundled with software upon completion of installation.

The Company generally recognizes revenue relating to the sale of installation service on the GPS device sold when there are no
continuing obligations upon completion of installation.

The Company sells the services to customers with term of service contracts offered ranges from 12 to 24 months and are payable in full
upon activation of the related unit or renewal of a previous service contract. The subscription services are deferred and recognized over
the life of the contract upon activation.

In instances where the Company sells a GPS device unit along with subscription service and/or installation service, the Company
recognizes revenue related to the combined sale by allocating between the two or three deliverables using the relative selling price
method determined by using the hierarchy of the following principles: (1) vendor-specific objective evidence of fair value (“VSOE”),
(2) third-party evidence of selling price (“TPE”), and (3) best estimate of the selling price (“ESP”’). VSOE generally exists only when
the Company sells the deliverable separately and it is the price actually charged by the Company.

The Company has a return policy where the customers must make a request within 30 days of receipt to return the products when the
products delivered are defective. As of December 31, 2009, the Company has not received any returns. The Company has a policy that
provides coverage on repairs of its GPS devices for a period of one year after date of purchase. In the event when a repair is needed, the
customers will be responsible for the cost of the parts while the cost of labor will be covered by the Company. The Company estimates
the costs to service its obligations based on historical experience and expectation of future conditions. The Company incurred warranty
costs of $0 for the year ended December 31, 2009.

Allowance for doubtful accounts. In estimating the collectability of accounts receivable we analyze historical write-offs, changes in
our internal credit policies and customer concentrations when evaluating the adequacy of our allowance for doubtful accounts
periodically. Differences may result in the amount and timing of expenses for any period if we make different judgments or uses
difference estimates. Our accounts receivable represent a significant portion of our current assets and total assets. Our realization on
accounts receivable, expressed in terms of United States dollars may be affected by fluctuations in currency rates since the customer’s
currency is frequently a currency other than United States dollars.

Inventories. Inventories comprise raw materials and finished goods are stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value, using the
first-in first-out (“FIFO”) method. Substantially all inventory costs are determined using the weighted average basis. Costs of finished
goods include direct labor, direct materials, and production overhead before the goods are ready for sale. We evaluate the need for
reserves associated with obsolete, slow-moving and non-salable inventory by reviewing net realizable values on a periodic basis.
Inventory costs do not exceed net realizable value.

Taxation. The Company is registered in the PRC and has no tax advantages granted by the local government for corporate income
taxes and sales taxes because it is a domestic corporation. On March 16, 2007, the National People’s Congress of China enacted a new
Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”) law, under which foreign invested enterprises and domestic companies will be subject to a uniform rate



of 25%. The new law became effective on January 1, 2008. The new standard EIT rate of 25% replaces the 33% rate applicable to both
foreign invested enterprises and domestic companies, except for high-tech companies that pay a reduced rate of 15%, subject to
government verification of high-tech status every three years. Companies established before March 16, 2007 continue to enjoy a tax
holiday treatment approved by the local government for a grace period of either five years or until the tax holiday term is completed,
whichever is sooner.
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Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2009, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued a standard that established the FASB Accounting Standards
Codification (ASC) and amended the hierarchy of generally accepted accounting principles (ASC) and amended the hierarchy of
generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) such that the ASC became the single source of authoritative nongovernmental U.S.
GAAP. The ASC did not change current U.S. GAAP, but was intended to simplify user access to all authoritative U.S. GAAP by
providing all the authoritative literature related to a particular topic in one place. All previously existing accounting standard
documents were superseded and all other accounting literature not included in the ASC is considered non-authoritative. New
accounting standards issued subsequent to June 30, 2009 are communicated by the FASB through Accounting Standards Updates
(ASUs). The Company adopted the ASC on July 1, 2009. This standard did not have an impact on the Company’s consolidated results
of operations or financial condition. However, throughout the notes to the consolidated financial statements references that were
previously made to various former authoritative U.S. GAAP pronouncements have been changed to coincide with the appropriate
section of the ASC.

In September 2006, the FASB issued an accounting standard codified in ASC 820, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures. This
standard established a single definition of fair value and a framework for measuring fair value, set out a fair value hierarchy to be used
to classify the source of information used in fair value measurements, and required disclosures of assets and liabilities measured at fair
value based on their level in the hierarchy. This standard applies under other accounting standards that require or permit fair value
measurements. One of the amendments deferred the effective date for one year relative to nonfinancial assets and liabilities that are
measured at fair value, but are recognized or disclosed at fair value on a nonrecurring basis. This deferral applied to such items as
nonfinancial assets and liabilities initially measured at fair value in a business combination (but not measured at fair value in
subsequent periods) or nonfinancial long-lived asset groups measured at fair value for an impairment assessment. The adoption of the
fair value measurement standard did not have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated results of operations or financial
condition.

In December 2007, the FASB issued and, in April 2009, amended a new business combinations standard codified within ASC 805,
which changed the accounting for business acquisitions. Accounting for business combinations under this standard requires the
acquiring entity in a business combination to recognize all (and only) the assets acquired and liabilities assumed in the transaction and
establishes the acquisition-date fair value as the measurement objective for all assets acquired and liabilities assumed in a business
combination. Certain provisions of this standard impact the determination of acquisition-date fair value of consideration paid in a
business combination (including contingent consideration); exclude transaction costs from acquisition accounting; and change
accounting practices for acquisition-related restructuring costs, in-process research and development, indemnification assets, and tax
benefits. The Company adopted the standard for business combinations for its business combination during the period ended March 31,
20009.

In April 2009, the FASB issued an accounting standard which provides guidance on (1) estimating the fair value of an asset or liability
when the volume and level of activity for the asset or liability have significantly declined and (2) identifying transactions that are not
orderly. The standard also amended certain disclosure provisions for fair value measurements and disclosures in ASC 820 to require,
among other things, disclosures in interim periods of the inputs and valuation techniques used to measure fair value as well as
disclosure of the hierarchy of the source of underlying fair value information on a disaggregated basis by specific major category of
investment. The standard was effective prospectively beginning April 1, 2009. The adoption of this standard did not have a material
impact on the Company’s consolidated results of operations or financial condition.

In April 2009, the FASB issued an accounting standard which modifies the requirements for recognizing other-than-temporarily
impaired debt securities and changes the existing impairment model for such securities. The standard also requires additional
disclosures for both annual and interim periods with respect to both debt and equity securities. Under the standard, impairment of debt
securities will be considered other-than-temporary if an entity (1) intends to sell the security, (2) more likely than not will be required
to sell the security before recovering its cost, or (3) does not expect to recover the security’s entire amortized cost basis (even if the
entity does not intend to sell). The standard further indicates that, depending on which of the above factor(s) causes the impairment to
be considered other-than-temporary, (1) the entire shortfall of the security’s fair value versus its amortized cost basis or (2) only the
credit loss portion would be recognized in earnings while the remaining shortfall (if any) would be recorded in other comprehensive
income. The standard requires entities to initially apply its provisions to previously other-than-temporarily impaired debt securities
existing as of the date of initial adoption by making a cumulative-effect adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings in the
period of adoption. The cumulative-effect adjustment potentially reclassifies the noncredit portion of a previously other-than-
temporarily impaired debt security held as of the date of initial adoption from retained earnings to accumulated other comprehensive
income. The adoption of this standard did not have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated results of operations or financial
condition.

In April 2009, the FASB issued an accounting standard regarding interim disclosures about fair value of financial instruments. The
standard essentially expands the disclosure about fair value of financial instruments that were previously required only annually to also



be required for interim period reporting. In addition, the standard requires certain additional disclosures regarding the methods and
significant assumptions used to estimate the fair value of financial instruments. The adoption of this standard did not have a material
impact on the Company’s consolidated results of operations or financial condition.
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In May 2009, the FASB issued a new accounting standard regarding subsequent events. This standard incorporates into authoritative
accounting literature certain guidance that already existed within generally accepted auditing standards, with the requirements
concerning recognition and disclosure of subsequent events remaining essentially unchanged. This guidance addresses events which
occur after the balance sheet date but before the issuance of financial statements. Under the new standard, as under previous practice,
an entity must record the effects of subsequent events that provide evidence about conditions that existed at the balance sheet date and
must disclose but not record the effects of subsequent events which provide evidence about conditions that did not exist at the balance
sheet date. This standard added an additional required disclosure relative to the date through which subsequent events have been
evaluated and whether that is the date on which the financial statements were issued. For the Company , this standard was effective
beginning April 1, 2009.

In June 2009, the FASB issued a new standard regarding the accounting for transfers of financial assets amending the existing guidance
on transfers of financial assets to, among other things, eliminate the qualifying special-purpose entity concept, include a new unit of
account definition that must be met for transfers of portions of financial assets to be eligible for sale accounting, clarify and change the
derecognition criteria for a transfer to be accounted for as a sale, and require significant additional disclosure. The standard is effective
for new transfers of financial assets beginning January 1, 2010. The adoption of this standard is not expected to have a material impact
on the Company’s consolidated results of operations or financial condition.

In June 2009, the FASB issued an accounting standard that revised the consolidation guidance for variable-interest entities. The
modifications include the elimination of the exemption for qualifying special purpose entities, a new approach for determining who
should consolidate a variable-interest entity, and changes to when it is necessary to reassess who should consolidate a variable-interest
entity. The standard is effective January 1, 2010. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of this standard, but would not
expect it to have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated results of operations or financial condition.

In August 2009, the FASB issued ASU No. 2009-05, Measuring Liabilities at Fair Value, which provides additional guidance on how
companies should measure liabilities at fair value under ASC 820. The ASU clarifies that the quoted price for an identical liability
should be used. However, if such information is not available, a entity may use, the quoted price of an identical liability when traded as
an asset, quoted prices for similar liabilities or similar liabilities traded as assets, or another valuation technique (such as the market or
income approach). The ASU also indicates that the fair value of a liability is not adjusted to reflect the impact of contractual
restrictions that prevent its transfer and indicates circumstances in which quoted prices for an identical liability or quoted price for an
identical liability traded as an asset may be considered level 1 fair value. This ASU is effective October 1, 2009. The Company is
currently evaluating the impact of this standard, but would not expect it to have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated
results of operations or financial condition.

In October 2009, the FASB issued ASU No. 2009-13, Multiple-Deliverable Revenue Arrangements—a consensus of the FASB
Emerging Issues Task Force , that provides amendments to the criteria for separating consideration in multiple-deliverable
arrangements. As a result of these amendments, multiple-deliverable revenue arrangements will be separated in more circumstances
than under existing U.S. GAAP. The ASU does this by establishing a selling price hierarchy for determining the selling price of a
deliverable. The selling price used for each deliverable will be based on vendor-specific objective evidence if available, third-party
evidence if vendor-specific objective evidence is not available, or estimated selling price if neither vendor-specific objective evidence
nor third-party evidence is available. A vendor will be required to determine its best estimate of selling price in a manner that is
consistent with that used to determine the price to sell the deliverable on a standalone basis. This ASU also eliminates the residual
method of allocation and will require that arrangement consideration be allocated at the inception of the arrangement to all deliverables
using the relative selling price method, which allocates any discount in the overall arrangement proportionally to each deliverable
based on its relative selling price. Expanded disclosures of qualitative and quantitative information regarding application of the
multiple-deliverable revenue arrangement guidance are also required under the ASU. The ASU does not apply to arrangements for
which industry specific allocation and measurement guidance exists, such as long-term construction contracts and software
transactions. The ASU is effective beginning January 1, 2011. Early adoption is permitted. The Company has adopted the standard and
it did not have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated results of operations or financial condition, as the Company did not
have a significant amount of sales that contain multiple elements.

In October 2009, the FASB issued ASU No. 2009-14, Certain Revenue Arrangements That Include Software Elements—a consensus of
the FASB Emerging Issues Task Force , that reduces the types of transactions that fall within the current scope of software revenue
recognition guidance. Existing software revenue recognition guidance requires that its provisions be applied to an entire arrangement
when the sale of any products or services containing or utilizing software when the software is considered more than incidental to the
product or service. As a result of the amendments included in ASU No. 2009-14, many tangible products and services that rely on
software will be accounted for under the multiple-element arrangements revenue recognition guidance rather than under the software
revenue recognition guidance. Under the ASU, the following components would be excluded from the scope of software revenue
recognition guidance: the tangible element of the product, software products bundled with tangible products where the software
components and non-software components function together to deliver the product’s essential functionality, and undelivered
components that relate to software that is essential to the tangible product’s functionality. The ASU also provides guidance on how to



allocate transaction consideration when an arrangement contains both deliverables within the scope of software revenue guidance
(software deliverables) and deliverables not within the scope of that guidance (non-software deliverables). The ASU is effective
beginning January 1, 2011. The Company has adopted this guidance and it did not have a material impact on the Company’s financial
condition or operating results in 2009, as the Company does not have a significant amount of sales that contain undelivered software
components that are not essential to the product’s functionality.
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Results of Operations

The following table sets forth information from our statements of operations for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and

2007 (in thousands):

For the Year Ended
December 31,
2009 2008 2007

Revenue $ 100,414 $ 55,431 % 28,717

Cost of goods sold 83,333 45,594 23,221
Gross Profit 17,081 9,837 5,496
Operating Costs and Expenses

Selling expenses 364 146 3

Depreciation 13 21 44

General and administrative 1,888 1,006 715

Merger cost 567 - -

Research and development 221 - 89

Total operating costs and expenses 3,053 1,173 851
Income from operations 14,028 8,664 4,645
Other income (expenses)

Gain on disposal of assets - (11) -

Interest income 59 10 3

Interest expense (156) (339) (196)

Imputed interest (31 (71) (70)

Government grant 380 - -

Sundry income (expense), net (16) (11) -

Total other income (expenses) 236 (422) (263)
Income before income taxes 14,264 8,242 4,382
Income taxes (4,085) (2,133) (1,515)
Net income $ 10,179 $ 6,109 $ 2,867
Basic earnings per share $ 1.16 $ 1.04 §$ 0.49
Weighted average shares outstanding, basic 8,776,491 5,896,723 5,896,723
Diluted earnings per share $ 1.16 $ 1.04 $ 0.49
Weighted average shares outstanding, diluted 8,776,491 5,896,723 5,896,723

Revenues consist of sales of our set-top box, digital networking and commercial GPS products and services and revenues recorded
under network installation projects. Revenues from sales and service were $100.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2009, an
increase of $45 million, or 81%, compared to $55.4 million for the same period in 2008. The increase in revenue was attributed mainly
to the increased demand for our set-top and digital networking products, which we believe is a result of our market expansion efforts as
well as the launch of our commercial GPS products. We believe the increases in sales revenue and volume are a result of our emphasis
on brand promotion and utilizing our sales channels to continually increase our market share. Regional TV broadcast stations are
upgrading their broadcast systems to the digital network, and as a result, we have seen the demand for our IPTV set-top boxes increase
accordingly. In 2008, the regional government provided incentives for TV broadcast stations to expand their broadcast coverage to

suburban areas, which will result in an increase of new subscribers of digital networks for the next two years.

Furthermore, demand for our set-top products increased during the year ended December 31, 2009 due to various governmental
regulations and policies. The State Administration of Radio & Television required the use of digital broadcasting and television in
every province and city and IPTV set-top boxes transmits the analog signals to digital signals. In addition, digital network broadcast
providers began to upgrade their set-top boxes for their subscribers. Consequently, the demand for our IPTV set-top boxes increased
significantly. The central government also launched several policies to boost domestic demand of various consumer products, such as



automobiles and electronics, especially in the farming provinces, in order to cope with the financial crisis that occurred during the year
ended December 31, 2009. The central government set an allowance rate of 13% of the product price in order to stimulate the purchase
of such products, which led to the increase in sales of IPTV set-top boxes as well.
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Cost of goods sold, which include raw material, labor and amounts due to contract manufacturers, was $83.3 million for the year ended
December 31, 2009, an increase of $37.7 million, or 83%, compared to $45.6 million for the same period in 2008. This increase in cost
of sales was caused by an increase in sales and was consistent with the increase in revenue. As a percentage of revenues, cost of sales
for the year ended December 31, 2009 and 2008 were 83% and 82%, respectively.

Gross profit for year ended December 31, 2009 was $17.1 million, or 17% of revenues, compared to $9.8 million, or 18% of revenues,
for the comparable period in 2008. Management considers gross profit to be a key performance indicator in managing our business.
Gross profit margins are a factor of cost of sales, product mix and product demand.

Selling expenses, which mainly include marketing, shipping, insurance, wage and other expenses, were $364,302 for the year ended
December 31, 2009, an increase of $217,843, or 150%, compared to $146,459 for the same period in 2008. The increase was primarily
due to prepaid post-market support and maintenance fee for the Company’s legacy products. Going forward, the Company will
expense such maintenance fee on a quarterly basis.

Other general and administrative expenses, which include wage, benefit, utility, consulting, turnover taxes, professional fees and other
expenses, were $1,901,023 for the year ended December 31, 2009, an increase of $874,164, or 85%, compared to $1,026,859 for the
same period in 2008. The increase was primarily due to the Company’s expanded operations and revenue base as well as additional
expenses incurred as result of being a publicly reporting company in the United States. In addition, during the quarter ended December
31, 2009, we entered into a 24 month consulting arrangements to broaden our marketing effort. During the same period, we also
entered into a 24 month retention bonus arrangement with our Chief Operating Officer .

For the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008, we invested approximately $221,467 and $10,419, respectively, in research and
development. However, we received a reimbursement from the local government for all of our research and development expenses for
the year ended December 31, 2008, and therefore research and development expenses net of reimbursement was nil.

Interest expenses for interest-bearing debts for the year ended December 31, 2009 was $187,137, a decrease of $222,674, or 100%,
compared to $409,811 in 2008. The decrease is mainly the result of the continued paid down of our loan.

For the year ended December 31, 2009, we recorded a provision for income taxes of $4.1 million, compared to $2.1 million for the
same period in 2008. The tax rate for the year ended December 31, 2008 was 25%. Our income tax rate for the year ended December
31, 2009 was 25%.

Years Ended December 31, 2008 and 2007

Revenues consist of sales of our set-top and digital networking products and revenues recorded under network installation projects.
Revenues from sales, service and construction were $55.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2008, an increase of $26.7 million,
or 93%, compared to $28.7 million for the same period in 2007. The increase in revenue was attributed mainly to the increased demand
for our set-top and digital networking products, which we believe is a result of our market expansion efforts as well as price increases
of some of our products. We believe the increases in sales revenue and volume are a result of our emphasis on brand promotion and
utilizing our sales channels to continually increase our market share. Regional TV broadcast stations are upgrading their broadcast
systems to the digital network, and as a result, every household is required to upgrade their IPTV set-top boxes. In 2008, the regional
government provided incentives for TV broadcast stations to expand their broadcast coverage to suburban areas, which will result in an
increase of new subscribers of digital networks for the next two years.

Furthermore, demand for our set-top products increased during the year ended December 31, 2008 due to various governmental
regulations and policies. The State Administration of Radio & Television required the use of digital broadcasting and television in
every province and city and IPTV set-top boxes transmits the analog signals to digital signals. In addition, digital network broadcast
providers began to upgrade their set-top boxes for their subscribers. Consequently, the demand for our IPTV set-top boxes increased
significantly. The central government also launched several policies to boost domestic demand of various consumer products, such as
automobiles and electronics, especially in the farming provinces, in order to cope with the financial crisis that occurred during the year
ended December 31, 2008. The central government set an allowance rate of 13% of the product price in order to stimulate the purchase
of such products, which led to the increase in sales of IPTV set-top boxes as well.

Cost of goods sold, which include raw material, labor and amounts due to contract manufacturers, was $45.6 million for the year ended
December 31, 2008, an increase of $22.4 million, or 97%, compared to $23.2 million for the same period in 2007. This increase in cost
of sales was caused by an increase in sales and was consistent with the increase in revenues. As a percentage of revenues, cost of sales
for the year ended December 31, 2008 and 2007 were 82% and 81%, respectively.

Gross profit for year ended December 31, 2008 was $9.8 million, or 18% of revenues, compared to $5.5 million, or 19% of revenues,
for the comparable period in 2007. Management considers gross profit to be a key performance indicator in managing our business.



Gross profit margins are a factor of cost of sales, product mix and product demand.

Selling expenses, which mainly include marketing, shipping, insurance, wage and other expenses, were $146,459 for the year ended
December 31, 2008, an increase of $143,872, or 5,561%, compared to $2,587 for the same period in 2007. The increase was primarily
due to increased shipping costs. In order to expand the business of the IPTV set-up boxes, the Company offered favorable shipping
terms to attract customers.
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Other general and administrative expenses, which include wage, benefit, utility, consulting, turnover taxes, professional fees and other
expenses, were $1,026,859 for the year ended December 31, 2008, an increase of $268,249, or 36%, compared to $758,610 for the
same period in 2007. The increase was primarily a result of an increase in office expenses. We expect our general and administrative
expenses to increase as a result of professional fees incurred as a result of being a publicly reporting company in the United States.

For the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007, we invested approximately $10,419 and $88,864, respectively, in research and
development. However, we received a reimbursement from the local government for all of our research and development expenses for
the year ended December 31, 2008, and therefore research and development expenses net of reimbursement was nil.

Interest expenses for interest-bearing debts for the year ended December 31, 2008 was $409,811, an increase of $142,419, or 73%,
compared to $196,323 in 2007. The increase is mainly the result of increased bank debt.

For the year ended December 31, 2008, we recorded a provision for income taxes of $2.1 million, compared to $1.5 million for the
same period in 2007. The tax rate for the year ended December 31, 2007 was 33%. Our income tax rate for the year ended December
31, 2008 was 25%.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
We had cash and cash equivalents of $13,627,992 as of December 31, 2009, as compared to $1,134,954 as of December 31, 2008.

We had working capital of approximately $45,874,781 and $8,948,772 as at December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively. The increase
of working capital was largely caused by the increase in accounts receivable.

Also in connection with the Share Exchange, we paid $350,000 to WestPark and $125,000 to a third party unaffiliated with the
Company, SRKP 18 or WestPark.

Our trade receivables has been an increasingly significant portion of our current assets, representing $24,885,497 and $12,322,099, or
52% and 71% of current assets, as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively. As our sales volume increases, trade receivables
increase accordingly. If customers responsible for a significant amount of accounts receivable were to become insolvent or otherwise
unable to pay for our products, or to make payments in a timely manner, our liquidity and results of operations could be materially
adversely affected. An economic or industry downturn could materially adversely affect the servicing of these accounts receivable,
which could result in longer payment cycles, increased collections costs and defaults in excess of management’s expectations. A
significant deterioration in our ability to collect on accounts receivable could affect our cash flow and working capital position and
could also impact the cost or availability of financing available to us.

We provide our major customers with payment terms ranging from 30 to 90 days. We typically offer certain of our customers 30 to 90
days credit terms for payment. Allowance for doubtful accounts is based on our assessment of the collectability of specific customer
accounts, the aging of accounts receivable, our history of bad debts, and the general condition of the industry. If a major customer’s
credit worthiness deteriorates, or our customers’ actual defaults exceed historical experience, our estimates could change and impact
our reported results. We have not experienced any significant amount of bad debt since the inception of our operation.

As of December 31, 2009, inventories amounted to $1,245,803 , compared to $775,185 as of December 31, 2008. The increase is due
to the increase of sales and the increase in the Company’s inventory of GPS products.

As of December 31, 2009, accounts payable and accrued liabilities amounted to $885,841, compared to $1,771,272 as of December 31,
2008. The decrease in accounts payable and accrued liabilities is due to continued paid down of various accrued liabilities.

As of December 31, 2009, corporate and various taxes payable amounted to $403,622, compared to $188,539 as of December 31,
2008. The increase in various taxes payable is due to the rise of sales and unpaid corporate taxes.

As of December 31, 2009, wages payable amounted to $66,370, compared to $59,501 as of December 31, 2008. The increase in wages
payable is due to increased personnel costs.

As of May 5, 2009, we received gross proceeds of approximately $4.98 million, and net proceeds of approximately $3.86 million, in a
private placement transaction (the “Private Placement”). Pursuant to subscription agreements entered into with the investors, we sold
an aggregate of 1,263,723 shares of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock at $3.94 per share. In connection with the initial closing of
the Private Placement, the Company issued a promissory note in the principal amount of $170,000, bearing no interest (the “Note™), to
WestPark Capital Financial Services, LLC, the parent company of WestPark. The principal was due and payable by the Company on or
before the earlier of (a) thirty (30) days from the date of issuance of the Note or (b) upon the receipt by the Company of at least $4



million in the Private Placement. The Company repaid the Note in full on January 23, 2009 using the proceeds from the second closing
of the Private Placement.

For its services as placement agent, WestPark was paid a commission of 12% of the gross proceeds from the Private Placement plus a

4% non-accountable expense allowance. No other consideration was paid to WestPark or to SRKP 18 in connection with the Share
Exchange or Private Placement.

46




We agreed to file a registration statement covering the common stock underlying the Series A Convertible Preferred Stock sold in the
Private Placement and to pay for all costs related to the registration of the shares. The registration statement covering such shares was
declared effective by the Securities and Exchange Commission in October 2009. We have used the proceeds from the Private
Placement to provide working capital for research and development, to perform upgrades to the technology used in our existing
products, and to improve our marketing strategies and efforts to capture new customers and expand our market size. We have
developed technologies for GPS devices as a new product line for the Company, which began to be marketed in the fourth quarter of
2009.

In October 2009, we completed a public offering consisting of 3,125,000 shares of our common stock. Rodman & Renshaw, LLC and
WestPark Capital, Inc. (together, the “Underwriters”) acted as co-underwriters in the public offering. Our shares of common stock were
sold to the public at a price of $8.00 per share, for gross proceeds of approximately $25 million. Compensation for the Underwriters’
services included discounts and commissions of $1,875,000, a $250,000 non-accountable expense allowance, roadshow expenses of
approximately $10,000, and legal counsel fees (excluding blue sky fees) of $40,000. The Underwriters also received warrants to
purchase an aggregate of 156,250 shares of our common stock at an exercise price of $10.00 per share. The warrants, which have a
term of five years, are not exercisable until at least one year from the date of issuance. The warrants also carry registration rights.

We are required to contribute a portion of our employees’ total salaries to the Chinese government’s social insurance funds, including
pension insurance, medical insurance, unemployment insurance, and job injuries insurance, and maternity insurance, in accordance
with relevant regulations. Total contributions to the funds are $18,821, $6,487 and $130,549 for the years ended December 31, 2009,
2008 and 2007. We expect that the amount of our contribution to the government’s social insurance funds will increase in the future as
we expand our workforce and operations and commence contributions to an employee housing fund.

The ability of Zhengzhou ZST to pay dividends may be restricted due to the foreign exchange control policies and availability of cash
balance. A majority of our revenue being earned and currency received are denominated in RMB, which is subject to the exchange
control regulation in China, and, as a result, we may be unable to distribute any dividends outside of China due to PRC exchange
control regulations that restrict our ability to convert RMB into US Dollars. Accordingly, Zhengzhou ZST’s funds may not be readily
available to us to satisfy obligations which have been incurred outside the PRC, which could adversely affect our business and
prospects or our ability to meet our cash obligations.

Net cash used in operating activities was $8.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2009, compared to net cash provided by
operating activities of $3.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2008. The change was due to increase in trade receivable and
advances to suppliers.

Net cash used in investing activities amounted to approximately $1.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2009, compared to net
cash provided by investing activities of nil for the year ended December 31, 2008. The change was due to purchase of both fixed and
intangible assets for the GPS product line.

Net cash provided by financing activities amounted to $21.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2009, compared to net cash used
in financing activities of $3.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2008. The change was a result of net proceed from the initial
public offering completed in the quarter ended December 31, 2009.

Historically, we have financed our operations through the issuance and sale of equity securities, specifically through proceeds from
private placements of our securities, and payments from our customers. Based upon our present plans, we believe that cash on hand,
cash flow from operations, funds available to use through low-cost domestic financing as well as cash through our recent public
offering financing, we will be sufficient to fund our capital needs for the next 12 months. Our ability to maintain sufficient liquidity
depends partially on our ability to achieve anticipated levels of revenue, while continuing to control costs. If we did not have sufficient
available cash, we would have to seek additional debt or equity financing through other external sources, which may not be

available on acceptable terms, or at all. Failure to maintain financing arrangements on acceptable terms would have a material adverse
effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.

Our ability to maintain sufficient liquidity depends partially on our ability to achieve anticipated levels of revenue, while continuing to
control costs. If we did not have sufficient available cash, we would have to seek additional debt or equity financing through other
external sources, which may not be available on acceptable terms, or at all. Failure to maintain financing arrangements on acceptable
terms would have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.

We developed a new product, a GPS device, which became available for sale in the market in the fourth quarter of 2009. We are also
expanding our customer base to obtain new customers in return for sales revenue growth. We believe that our efforts to develop new
products and expand our customer base will increase our future cash flows. We also plan to obtain additional cash from financings
and/or loans from banks to fund our business operations and to provide additional working capital. However, there is no assurance that



such financing will be obtained. We expect to continue to raise capital in the future, but cannot guarantee that such financing activities
will be sufficient to fund our current and future projects and our ability to meet our cash and working capital needs.
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Contractual Obligations

None.

Seasonality

Our business is not seasonal in nature. The seasonal effect does not have material impact on our sales.
Quarterly Information

The table below presents selected results of operations for the quarters indicated. All amounts are in thousands, except share and per
share amounts.

Quarter Ended
December 31, 2009  September 30, 2009 June 30,2009 March 31, 2009 Total
Revenues $ 30,347 $ 28,628 $ 23,679 $ 17,761 $ 100,414
Operating Income 4,198 4,454 3,400 1,945 14,028
Net Income 3,078 3,292 2,652 1,246 10,179
Net Income Per Share 0.28 0.39 0.15 0.07 1.16
Basic and Diluted 0.28 0.39 0.15 0.07 1.16
Quarter Ended
December 31,2008 September 30, 2008 June 30,2008 March 31, 2008 Total
Revenues $ 14,443 $ 15209 $ 12,263  $ 13,515 $ 55,431
Operating Income 1,994 4,454 1,845 2,394 8,063
Net Income 1,302 1,682 1,403 1,723 6,108
Net Income Per Share 0.22 0.29 0.10 0.12 0.82
Basic and Diluted 0.22 0.29 0.10 0.12 0.82

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
We have no material off-balance sheet transactions.
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ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK.
Interest Rate Risk

We may face some risk from potential fluctuations in interest rates, although our debt obligations are primarily short-term in nature, but
some bank loans have variable rates. If interest rates have great fluctuations, our financing cost may be significantly affected.

Foreign Currency Risk

Substantially all of our operations are conducted in the PRC and our primary operational currency in Chinese Renminbi (“RMB”). As
a result, currently the effect of the fluctuations of RMB exchange rates only has minimum impact on our business operations, but will
be increasingly material if we introduce our products widely into new international markets. Substantially all of our revenues and
expenses are denominated in RMB. However, we use the United States dollar for financial reporting purposes. Conversion of RMB
into foreign currencies is regulated by the People’s Bank of China through a unified floating exchange rate system. Although the PRC
government has stated its intention to support the value of the RMB, there can be no assurance that such exchange rate will not again
become volatile or that the RMB will not devalue significantly against the U.S. dollar. Exchange rate fluctuations may adversely affect
the value, in U.S. dollar terms, of our net assets and income derived from our operations in the PRC.

Country Risk

The substantial portion of our assets and operations are located and conducted in China. While the PRC economy has experienced
significant growth in the past twenty years, growth has been uneven, both geographically and among various sectors of the economy.
The Chinese government has implemented various measures to encourage economic growth and guide the allocation of resources.
Some of these measures benefit the overall economy of China, but may also have a negative effect on us. For example, our operating
results and financial condition may be adversely affected by government control over capital investments or changes in tax regulations
applicable to us. If there are any changes in any policies by the Chinese government and our business is negatively affected as a result,
then our financial results, including our ability to generate revenues and profits, will also be negatively affected.

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA.

The information required by this Item 8 is incorporated by reference to ZST Digital Networks, Inc.’s Financial Statements and
Independent Auditors’ Report beginning at page F-1 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K/A.

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL
DISCLOSURE.

None.
ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES.
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Disclosure controls and procedures are controls and other procedures that are designed to ensure that information required to be
disclosed by us in the reports that we file or submit under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within
the time periods specified in the Securities and Exchange Commission’s rules and forms. Disclosure controls and procedures include,
without limitation, controls and procedures designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed by us in the reports that we file
under the Exchange Act is accumulated and communicated to our management, including our principal executive and financial
officers, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

As of the end of the period covered by this Annual Report on Form 10-K/A, we conducted an evaluation, under the supervision and
with the participation of our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, of our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined
in Rule 13a-15(e) and Rule 15d-15(e) of the Exchange Act). Based upon this evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer concluded that the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures are ineffective in that we could not assure that that
information required to be disclosed by the Company in the reports that we file or submit under the Exchange Act is recorded,
processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the SEC’s rules and forms and which also are ineffective in
ensuring that information required to be disclosed by the Company in the reports that it files or submits under the Exchange Act is
accumulated and communicated to the Company’s management, including the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial
Officer, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.



Factors which led our management to conclude that our disclosure controls and procedures were not effective include, but are not
limited to, the late filing of our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2009. Our controls and procedures
were primarily adversely affected by the lack of experience within the company in complying with the requirements of a publicly
reporting entity, specifically, having insufficient personnel resources with sufficient technical accounting expertise within our
accounting function. We are seeking to engage experienced professionals to further augment our financial staff to address issues of
timeliness and completeness in financial reporting when we are preparing SEC filings.
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Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting. Internal control
over financial reporting, as defined in Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(f), is a process designed by, or under the supervision of, our principal
executive and principal financial officers and effected by our board of directors, management and other personnel, to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and includes those policies and procedures that:

. pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of our assets;

. provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that our receipts and expenditures are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of our management and directors; and

. provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use of disposition of
our assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. All internal control systems, no matter
how well designed, have inherent limitations. Therefore, even those systems determined to be effective can provide only reasonable
assurance with respect to financial statement preparation and presentation.

Our management assessed the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2009. In making this
assessment, our management used the criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission
(COSO) in Internal Control-Integrated Framework. Based on this assessment, management believes that as of December 31, 2009, our
internal control over financial reporting is effective based on those criteria.

Attestation Report of the Registered Public Accounting Firm

This Annual Report on Form 10-K/A does not include an attestation report of the Company’s registered public accounting firm
regarding internal control over financial reporting. Management’s report was not subject to attestation by the Company’s registered
public accounting firm pursuant to temporary rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission that permit the Company to provide
only management’s report in this Annual Report on Form 10-K/A.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Based on the evaluation of our management as required by paragraph (d) of Rule 13a-15 or 15d-15 of the Exchange Act, we believe
that there were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting that occurred during our last fiscal quarter that have

materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.
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ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION.
Stockholder Approval of Reverse Stock Split

On September 1, 2009, stockholders holding an aggregate of 17,539,600 shares of capital stock, or 85.3%, of all eligible votes,
constituting a majority of our outstanding voting capital stock, delivered an executed written consent of stockholders authorizing and
approving an amendment to our Certificate of Incorporation (the “Amendment”) to effect a 1-for-2.461538462 reverse stock split of all
issued and outstanding shares of our common stock at a reverse stock split ratio of 1-for-2.461538462 (the “Reverse Stock Split”).

Retention Agreement with Zhong Lin

On November 14, 2009 (the “Effective Date”), the Company entered into a Retention Agreement with Zhong Lin, the Company’s
Chief Operating Officer and a member of its board of directors (the “Retention Agreement”). Pursuant to the Retention Agreement,
Mr. Zhong will receive one-time retention payment equal to $285,000 (the “Retention Amount”) if Mr. Zhong remains continuously
employed with the Company for a period of 24 months from the Effective Date (the “Expiration Date”). The Company advanced the
entire Retention Amount upon the Effective Date, which will be earned ratably over a period of 24 months. Upon the occurrence of
certain termination events (the “Disqualifying Termination Date’’), Mr. Zhong will be required to return the pro-rata amount of the
Retention Amount based on a daily amortization rate of $390.41 times the number of days remaining from the Disqualifying
Termination Date to the Expiration Date to the Company within 10 days of the Disqualifying Termination Date.

Consulting Agreements

On December 30, 2009, we entered into a Consulting Agreement (the “Consulting Agreement”)with Finance Access, Inc. (“Finance
Access”). In connection with the Consulting Agreement, we also entered into professional services agreements with other third parties
(together with the Consulting Agreement, the “Services Agreements”). Pursuant to the Services Agreement, Finance Access and the
third parties agreed to provide the Company with certain professional and business development services in order to aid and augment
the Company’s business development efforts. The term of the Services Agreement is 24 months. The Company paid an aggregate of
$1.55 million as compensation to Finance Access and the third parties, which will be amortized on a quarterly basis over the twenty-
four (24) month period at a daily rate of $2,123.29.

Employment Agreements

On December 13, 2009, the Company entered into an employment agreement with Zhong Bo to serve as President of the
Company. Mr. Zhong is paid an annual salary of RMB 102,000, which is approximately USD$14,941.

On December 13, 2009, the Company entered into an employment agreement with Xue Na to serve as a Vice President of the
Company. Ms. Xue is paid an annual salary of RMB 63,900, which is approximately USD$9,360.

On December 14, 2009, the Company entered into an employment agreement with Zhong Lin to serve as a Vice President of the
Company. Mr. Zhong is paid an annual salary of RMB 71,800, which is approximately USD$10,517.

The term of each of the employment agreements is three years. The employment agreement provides that the parties may terminate the
agreement upon mutual agreement or, under certain conditions, the Company may terminate the agreement upon 30 day prior written
notice to the employee. The employee may terminate his or her employment immediately under certain circumstances including if the
Company fails to provide certain required labor protection or working conditions, fails to pay compensation on time and in full, or acts
in such a way to harm the employee’s right and interests or threaten his or her personal safety. The employment agreement also
provides that the Company may terminate such agreement immediately under certain circumstances including if the employee violates
any criminal laws, does not satisfy the conditions for employment during the probation period, materially breaches the Company’s
rules and regulations, or neglects his or her duties thereby causing substantial damage to the Company. The employment agreement
restricts the Company’s ability to terminate the employment agreement under certain circumstances including if the employee has
proven that he or she is unable to work due to a work-related injury, or has contracted an illness or sustained a non-work-related injury
and the prescribed period of medical care has not yet expired. In addition, the employment agreement provides that under certain
circumstances, the employee may have to compensate the Company for economic losses incurred. Under the employment agreement,
the employee has an obligation to maintain commercial secrets of the Company. The employment agreement contains general
provisions for mediation and arbitration in the case of any dispute arising out of the employment agreement that cannot first be settled
by consultation and negotiation.

51




PART III
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE.
Executive Officers, Directors and Key Employees

The following individuals constitute our board of directors and executive management:

Name  Age Position Term

Zhong Bo 59  Chairman of the Board and January 9, 2009 thru Present
Chief Executive Officer

Zhong Lin 27  Director and Chief Operating Officer January 9, 2009 thru Present

Yang Ai Mei 59  Director January 9, 2009 thru Present

Tian Li Zhi 36  Director January 9, 2009 thru Present

Sheng Yong 47  Director January 9, 2009 thru Present

Liu Hui Fang 31  Director January 9, 2009 thru Present

John Chen 32 Chief Financial Officer October 20, 2009 thru Present

Xue Na 32 Corporate Secretary, Deputy General Manager and December 11, 2009 thru Present (Corporate
President of the Labor Union Secretary); January 9, 2009 thru Present (Deputy

General Manager and President of the Labor Union)

Zhong Bo has been chairman of the board of Zhengzhou ZST since 1996. He has also served as the director of the Henan Association
for the Promotion of Non-Governmental Entrepreneurs since July 1999, as the President of the Federation of Industry and Commerce
(General Chamber of Commerce) since January 2001 and as a committee member of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference since January 2004. From October 1989 to September 1992, Mr. Zhong served as the manager of the Zhengzhou and
Luoyang Offices of Beijing CEC Video & Audio Technology Jointly Developed Corporation. From September 1970 to September
1989, Mr. Zhong served as the technical principal of the Zhumadian Branch of the Wuhan Times Academy of Sciences. Mr. Zhong
obtained a degree in Electronics in September 1989 from the Electronic Engineering Department of Tsinghua University and a
Master’s degree in Business Management in 2003 from Asia International Open University in Macau. The Company believes that Mr.
Zhong’s business expertise and management positions give him the qualifications and skills to serve as a director.

Zhong Lin has served as general manager of Zhengzhou ZST since January 2008. Prior to serving as general manager, Mr. Zhong
served as the manager of the system integration department of Zhengzhou ZST, from April 2005 to December 2007. From 1997 to
2001, Mr. Zhong studied Computer Information Management at Nanjing University of Science and Technology. The Company

believes that Mr. Zhong’s business expertise and management positions give him the qualifications and skills to serve as a director.

Yang Ai Mei has served as managing director of Zhengzhou Guangda Textiles Co., Ltd., a cotton manufacturing company, since May
1995, where she has worked since 1988. From January 1978 to January 1988, Ms. Yang was the manager of Zhongyuan Labour
Services Company, a company which engages in the sale and trade of textiles. Ms. Yang received a Bachelor of Economics in the field
of Management in 1975 from Zheng Zhau University. The Company believes that Ms. Yang’s business expertise and management
positions give her the qualifications and skills to serve as a director.

Tian Li Zhi has been employed as an attorney for the Henan Image Law Firm since May 2000. From May 1997 to May 2000, Ms. Tian
was a legal consultant for Zhengzhou Asia Group, a company which manages commercial properties. Ms. Tian received a law degree
in 1997 from Zheng Zhau University. The Company believes that Ms. Tian’s legal expertise give her the qualifications and skills to
serve as a director.

Sheng Yong has served as the general manager of laoning Unified Biological Energy Sources Co., Ltd., a biological energy company,
since January 2004. From January 1988 to January 2004, Mr. Sheng was the deputy general manager of Zhengzhou Yinhe Joint-Stock
Co., Ltd., a textile manufacturing company. Mr. Sheng received a Bachelor of Economics in Management from the Air Force Polities
Academy of the Chinese People’s Liberation Army in 1999. The Company believes that Mr. Sheng’s business expertise and
management positions give him the qualifications and skills to serve as a director.

Liu Hui Fang has served as finance manager of Henan Zhongfu Container Co., Ltd., a company which engages in the production and
sale of plastic packaging, since August 2002. From July 1999 to August 2002, Ms. Liu served as chief accountant of Zhengzhou
Fukang Medical Equipment Co., Ltd., a distributor of medical equipment. Ms. Liu received a degree in business accounting in 1999
from Henan Business College. She is also a member of The Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The Company believes
that Ms. Liu’s business and financial expertise give her the qualifications and skills to serve as a director.

52






John Chen previously served as the Vice President, Investment Banking-China Practice of Brean Murray, Carret & Co., from
December 2007 to January 2009. From June 2007 to November 2007, Dr. Chen served as the Senior Vice President, Investment
Banking of Global Hunter Securities LLC. Dr. Chen served as the Associate Vice President, Business Development of Paramount
BioCapital from March 2006 to December 2006. Prior to that, he was a Clinical Research Fellow, on a one year fellowship, at the
National Cancer Institute from August 2005 to August 2006. Dr. Chen also served as a Biotechnology Associate Analyst at Friedman,
Billings, Ramsey, Inc. from September 2004 to August 2005. Dr. Chen received a M.D./MBA in health management from Tufts
University School of Medicine and Brandeis University, Northeastern University in 2004 and a B.S. in Biology from the University of
California, Irvine in 2000.

Xue Na has served as deputy general manager of Zhengzhou ZST since September 2005 and as president of the labor union for
Zhengzhou ZST since 2003. From January 2002 to August 2005, Ms. Xue served as the assistant general manager of Zhengzhou ZST
and from July 1997 to December 2001, she held the position of office director of Zhengzhou ZST. Ms. Xue received her MBA in 2002
from Asia International Open University (Macau). From 1995 to 1997, Ms. Xue studied public relations at Zhengzhou Huanghe
Science and Technology College.

Except as noted above, the above persons do not hold any other directorships in any company with a class of securities registered
pursuant to Section 12 of the Exchange Act or subject to the requirements of Section 15(d) of the Exchange Act.

Family Relationships

Zhong Bo is the father of Zhong Lin. Except as noted herein, there are no family relationships among of the directors and executive
officers.

Involvement in Certain Legal Proceedings

There have been no events under any bankruptcy act, no criminal proceedings and no judgments, injunctions, orders or decrees
material to the evaluation of the ability and integrity of any director, executive officer, promoter or control person of the Company
during the past five years.

There have been no material proceedings to which any director, officer or affiliate of the Company, any owner of record or beneficially
of more than five percent of any class of voting securities of the Company, or any associate of any such director, officer, affiliate of the
Company, or security holder is a party adverse to the Company or any of its subsidiaries or has a material interest adverse to the
Company or any of its subsidiaries.

The Board of Directors and Committees
Board Composition

Subject to certain exceptions, under the listing standards of the NASDAQ Global Market, a listed company’s board of directors must
consist of a majority of independent directors. Currently, our board of directors has determined that each of the following non-
management directors, Yang Ai Mei, Tian Li Zhi, Sheng Yong and Liu Hui Fang, is an “independent” director as defined by the listing
standards of the NASDAQ Global Market currently in effect and approved by the SEC and all applicable rules and regulations of the
SEC. All members of the Audit, Compensation and Nominating Committees satisfy the “independence” standards applicable to
members of each such committee. The board of directors made this affirmative determination regarding these directors’ independence
based on discussions with the directors and on its review of the directors’ responses to a standard questionnaire regarding employment
and compensation history; affiliations, family and other relationships; and transactions with the Company. The board of directors
considered relationships and transactions between each director or any member of his immediate family and the Company and its
subsidiaries and affiliates. The purpose of the board of director’s review with respect to each director was to determine whether any
such relationships or transactions were inconsistent with a determination that the director is independent under the NASDAQ Global
Market rules.

Audit Committee

We established our Audit Committee in February 2009. The Audit Committee consists of Liu Hui Fang, Yang Ai Mei and Tian Li Zhi,
each of whom is an independent director. Liu Hui Fang, Chairman of the Audit Committee, is an “audit committee financial expert” as
defined under Item 407(d) of Regulation S-K. The purpose of the Audit Committee is to represent and assist our board of directors in
its general oversight of our accounting and financial reporting processes, audits of the financial statements and internal control and
audit functions. The Audit Committee’s responsibilities include:

. The appointment, replacement, compensation, and oversight of work of the independent auditor, including resolution of



disagreements between management and the independent auditor regarding financial reporting, for the purpose of
preparing or issuing an audit report or performing other audit, review or attest services.

Reviewing and discussing with management and the independent auditor various topics and events that may have
significant financial impact on our Company or that are the subject of discussions between management and the

independent auditors.
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The board of directors has adopted a written charter for the Audit Committee. A copy of the Audit Committee Charter is posted on our
corporate website at: www.shenyangkeji.com.

Compensation Committee

We established our Compensation Committee in February 2009. The Compensation Committee consists of Liu Hui Fang and Tian Li
Zhi, each of whom is an independent director. Liu Hui Fang is the Chairman of the Compensation Committee. The Compensation
Committee is responsible for the design, review, recommendation and approval of compensation arrangements for our directors,
executive officers and key employees, and for the administration of our equity incentive plans, including the approval of grants under
such plans to our employees, consultants and directors. The Compensation Committee also reviews and determines compensation of
our executive officers, including our Chief Executive Officer. The board of directors has adopted a written charter for the
Compensation Committee. A copy of the Compensation Committee Charter is posted on our corporate website

at: www.shenyangkeji.com.

Nominating Committee

We established our Nominating Committee in February 2009. The Nominating Committee consists of Tian Li Zhi and Sheng Yong,
each of whom is an independent director. Tian Li Zhi is the Chairman of the Nominating Committee. The Nominating Committee
assists in the selection of director nominees, approves director nominations to be presented for stockholder approval at our annual
general meeting and fills any vacancies on our board of directors, considers any nominations of director candidates validly made by
stockholders, and reviews and considers developments in corporate governance practices. The board of directors has adopted a written
charter for the Nominating Committee. A copy of the Nominating Committee Charter is posted on our corporate website

at: www.shenyangkeji.com.

Code of Business Conduct and Ethics

Our board of directors has adopted a code of ethics, which applies to all our directors, officers and employees. Our code of ethics is
intended to comply with the requirements of Item 406 of Regulation S-K. A copy of our code of ethics will be posted on our corporate
website at www.shenyangkeji.com. We will provide our code of ethics in print without charge to any stockholder who makes a written
request to: Corporate Secretary, ZST Digital Networks, Inc., 206 Tongbo Street, Boyaxicheng Second Floor, Zhengzhou City, Henan
Providence, People’s Republic of China 450007. Any waivers of the application and any amendments to our code of ethics must be
made by our board of directors. Any waivers of, and any amendments to, our code of ethics will be disclosed promptly on our
corporate website.

Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance

Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act requires the Company’s directors and officers, and persons who beneficially own more than 10% of
a registered class of the Company’s equity securities, to file reports of beneficial ownership and changes in beneficial ownership of the
Company’s securities with the SEC on Forms 3, 4 and 5. Officers, directors and greater than 10% stockholders are required by SEC
regulation to furnish the Company with copies of all Section 16(a) forms they file.

Based solely on the Company’s review of the copies of the forms received by it during the fiscal year ended December 31, 2009 and
written representations that no other reports were required, the Company believes that the following person(s) who, at any time during
such fiscal year, was a director, officer or beneficial owner of more than 10% of the Company’s common stock failed to comply with
all Section 16(a) filing requirements during such fiscal years:

Number of Transactions

Number of not Reported on a Timely Failure to File a Required
Name Late Reports Basis Form
John Fan Chen 1 1 Form 4
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ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION.
Compensation Discussion and Analysis

Prior to the closing of the Share Exchange, our current named executive officers were compensated by Zhengzhou ZST until the
closing of the Share Exchange, including for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2008 and the period from January 1, 2009 to
January 9, 2009. The Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board of Zhengzhou ZST, Zhong Bo, determined the compensation
for himself and the other executive officers of Zhengzhou ZST that was earned in fiscal 2007 and 2008 and the period from January 1,
2009 to January 9, 2009 after consulting with the board members of Zhengzhou ZST. In addition, the Board of Directors of Zhengzhou
ZST approved the compensation. From January 1, 2009 to January 9, 2009 and during the fiscal years of 2008 and 2007, the
compensation for Zhengzhou ZST’s named executive officers consisted solely of each executive officer’s salary and cash bonus. The
Board of Directors of Zhengzhou ZST believe that the salaries paid to our executive officers during 2007, 2008 and the period from
January 1, 2009 to January 9, 2009 are indicative of the objectives of its compensation program and reflect the fair value of the services
provided to Zhengzhou ZST, as measured by the local market in China.

Upon the closing of the Share Exchange, the executive officers of Zhengzhou ZST were appointed as our executive officers and we
adopted the compensation policies of Zhengzhou ZST, as modified for a company publicly reporting in the United

States. Compensation for our current executive officers is determined with the goal of attracting and retaining high quality executive
officers and encouraging them to work as effectively as possible on our behalf. Compensation is designed to reward executive officers
for successfully meeting their individual functional objectives and for their contributions to our overall development. For these reasons,
the elements of compensation of our executive officers are salary and bonus. Salary is paid to cover an appropriate level of living
expenses for the executive officers and the bonus is paid to reward the executive officer for individual and company achievement.

Salary is designed to attract, as needed, individuals with the skills necessary for us to achieve our business plan, to motivate those
individuals, to reward those individuals fairly over time, and to retain those individuals who continue to perform at or above the levels
that we expect. When setting and adjusting individual executive salary levels, we consider the relevant established salary range, the
named executive officer’s responsibilities, experience, potential, individual performance and contribution. We also consider other
factors such as our overall corporate budget for annual merit increases, unique skills, demand in the labor market and succession
planning.

We determine the levels of salary as measured primarily by the local market in China. We determine market rate by conducting a
comparison with the local geographic area averages and industry averages in China. In determining market rate, we review statistical
data collected and reported by the Zhengzhou City Labor Bureau, which is published monthly. The statistical data provides the high,
median, low and average compensation levels for various positions in various industry sectors. In particular, we use the data for the
manufacturing sector as our benchmark to determine compensation levels because we operate in Zhengzhou City as a consumer
electronics manufacturer. Our compensation levels are at roughly the 80th-90th percentile of the compensation spectrum for the
manufacturing sector. Once we determine the overall compensation levels for our officers based on the benchmarks, we allocate a
certain portion of the total compensation to salary, which is paid during the fiscal year, and allocate the remainder to bonus, which will
be paid after the end of the fiscal year if corporate and individual performance goals are met.

Corporate performance goals include sales targets, research and development targets, production yields, and equipment utilization.
Additional key areas of corporate performance taken into account in setting compensation policies and decisions are cost control,
profitability, and innovation. The key factors may vary depending on which area of business a particular executive officer’s work is
focused. Individual performance goals include subjective evaluation, based on an employee’s team-work, creativity and management
capability, and objective goals such as sales targets. Generally, the amount of a bonus, when awarded, will be equal to one month's
salary plus 5% to 25% of the individual's annual salary. If the corporate and individual goals are fully met, the bonus will be closer to
the top end of the range. If the goals are only partially met, the amount of the bonus will be closer to the bottom end of the range. In
no event will there be a bonus equal to more than one month's salary if the corporate goals are not met by at least 50%. For 2009, the
amounts of the bonuses were determined in relation to overall compensation levels, which were based on roughly the 80th-90th
percentile of the compensation spectrum for the manufacturing sector in Zhengzhou City, China. A certain portion of total
compensation was allocated to salary and the remainder was allocated to bonus based on achievement of corporate and individual
performance goals. In 2009, our corporate performance had improved in line with internal goals, including an increase in revenue and
profitability.

Our board of directors established a Compensation Committee in February 2009 comprised of non-employee directors. The
Compensation Committee will perform, at least annually, a strategic review of the compensation program for our executive officers to
determine whether it provides adequate incentives and motivation to our executive officers and whether it adequately compensates our
executive officers relative to comparable officers in other companies with which we compete for executives. Those companies may or
may not be public companies or companies located in the PRC or even, in all cases, companies in a similar business. Prior to the
formation of the Compensation Committee, Zhong Bo, upon consulting with our board members, determined the compensation for



himself and our other current executive officers. Beginning in February 2009, our Compensation Committee currently determines
compensation levels for our executive officers. We have established a compensation program for executive officers for 2010 that is
designed to attract, as needed, individuals with the skills necessary for us to achieve our business plan, to motivate those individuals, to
reward those individuals fairly over time, and to retain those individuals who continue to perform at or above the levels that we

expect. For 2010, bonuses for executive officers will be based on company and individual performance factors, as described above.
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Having listed on the NASDAQ Global Market in October 2009, we intend to adjust our bonus evaluations upwards in 2010, but, in
such case, we do not intend to increase them by more than 20%. We believe that adopting higher compensation in the future may be
based on the increased amount of responsibilities assumed by each of the executive officers after we became a publicly listed company.

We also intend to expand the scope of our compensation, such as the possibility of granting options to executive officers and tying
compensation to predetermined performance goals. We intend to adopt an equity incentive plan and intend to issue stock-based awards
under the plan to aid our company’s long-term performance, which we believe will create an ownership culture among our named
executive officers that fosters beneficial, long-term performance by our company. We do not currently have a general equity grant
policy with respect to the size and terms of grants that we intend to make in the future, but we expect that our Compensation
Committee will evaluate our achievements for each fiscal year based on performance factors and results of operations such as revenues
generated, cost of revenues, and net income.

Summary Compensation Table

The following table sets forth information concerning the compensation for the two fiscal years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and
2007 of our principal executive officer, our principal financial officer, our three most highly compensated officers whose annual
compensation exceeded $100,000, and up to two additional individuals for whom disclosure would have been required but for the fact
that the individual was not serving as an executive officer of the registrant at the end of the last fiscal year (the “named executive
officers”).

All Other

Name and Position Year Salary Bonus Compensation Total
Zhong Bo (1) 2009 § 14,941 $ — S — S 14,941
Chief Executive Officer and 2008 6,594 — — 6,594
Chairman of the Board 2007 6,297 — — 6,297
John Chen (2) 2009 § 37,500 $ 10,274(3) $ — S 47,774
Chief Financial Officer 2008 — — —

2007 — — —
Zeng Yun Su (4) 2009 $ 9,153 $ — S — S 9,153
Former Chief Financial Officer 2008 — — — —
and Former Corporate Secretary 2007 — — —
Richard Rappaport (5) 2009 $ $ — 3 — 3 —
Former Chief Executive Officer 2008 — — —
and Former Director 2007 — — —

1) Mr. Zhong was appointed the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board upon the closing of the Share
Exchange on January 9, 2009. The compensation Mr. Zhong received in 2007 and 2008 was paid by Zhengzhou ZST, our
wholly-owned subsidiary which we acquired upon the closing of the Share Exchange on January 9, 2009.

2) Mr. Chen was appointed the Company’s Chief Financial Officer effective on October 20, 2009.

3) Pursuant to his employment agreement, Mr. Chen was granted a signing bonus, which is calculated as follows: $410.96 per
day multiplied by the number of days between September 25, 2009 and October 20, 2009.

@) Mr. Zeng resigned as Chief Financial Officer of the Company effective on October 20, 2009 and as Corporate Secretary of the
Company effective on December 11, 2009.

5) Mr. Rappaport resigned from all positions with the Company upon the closing of the Share Exchange on January 9, 2009.
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Grants of Plan-Based Awards in 2009

The following table summarizes our awards made to our named executive officers in 2009.

Number of Grant Date of
Shares of Exercise of Fair Value of
Common Stock Base Price of Stock and
Underlying the Options Options
Name Grant Date (1) Options Award ($/Sh) Awarded ($)(1)
Zhong Bo
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer — — — —
John Chen
Chief Financial Officer (1) 10/20/2009 25,000 $ 8.00 $ 172,863
)] The amounts disclosed reflect the value of awards for grants of non-qualified stock options. These non-qualified stock options

are performance-based compensation for purposes of Section 162(m) of the Internal Revenue Code and reflect the full grant
date fair values in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 718. For assumptions used in calculation of option awards, see note 20
to our consolidated financial statements included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2009.

Outstanding Equity Awards at 2009 Fiscal Year End

The following table presents the outstanding equity awards held by each of the named executive officers as of the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2009.

Equity
Incentive Plan
Awards:
Number of Number of Number of
Securities Securities Securities
Underlying Underlying Underlying
Unexercised  Unexercised Unexercised Option
Options (#) Options (#) Unearned Option Expiration
Name Exercisable Unexercisable Options (#) Exercise Price Date
Zhong Bo
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive
Officer — — — — —
John Chen
Chief Financial Officer (1) 25,000 — — 8.00 10/20/2014
) Mr. Chen’s options are immediately exercisable but, to the extent they are exercised, will be subject to a repurchase right of

the Company, which will lapse as follows: 50% of the options will vest six (6) months after October 20, 2009 and the
remaining 50% will vest twelve (12) months after October 20, 2009. The options will expire five (5) years from the grant
date, provided, however, that Dr. Chen remains continuously employed by the Company during the applicable five-year

period.

Option Exercises and Stock Vested in Fiscal 2009

There were no option exercises or stock vested in fiscal 2009.

Pension Benefits

There were no pension benefit plans in effect in 2009.

Nongqualified Defined Contribution and Other Nonqualified Deferred Compensation Plans

There were no nonqualified defined contribution or other nonqualified deferred compensation plans in effect in 2009.

Employment Agreements



On December 13, 2009, we entered into an employment agreement with Zhong Bo, our Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the
Board, which has a term of three years. Mr. Zhong is paid an annual salary of RMB 102,000, which is approximately

USD$14,941. The employment agreement provides that the parties may terminate the agreement upon mutual agreement or, under
certain conditions, the Company may terminate the agreement upon 30 day prior written notice to Mr. Zhong. Mr. Zhong may
terminate his employment immediately under certain circumstances including if the Company fails to provide certain required labor
protection or working conditions, fails to pay compensation on time and in full, or acts in such a way to harm Mr. Zhong’s right and
interests or threaten his personal safety. The employment agreement also provides that the Company may terminate such agreement
immediately under certain circumstances including if Mr. Zhong does not satisfy the conditions for employment during the probation
period, materially breaches the Company’s rules and regulations, or neglects his duties thereby causing substantial damage to the
Company. The employment agreement restricts the Company’s ability to terminate the employment agreement under certain
circumstances including if Mr. Zhong has proven that he is unable to work due to a work-related injury, or has contracted an illness or
sustained a non-work-related injury and the prescribed period of medical care has not yet expired. In addition, the employment
agreement provides that under certain circumstances, Mr. Zhong may have to compensate the Company for economic losses incurred.
Under the employment agreement, Mr. Zhong has an obligation to maintain commercial secrets of the Company. The employment
agreement contains general provisions for mediation and arbitration in the case of any dispute arising out of the employment agreement
that cannot first be settled by consultation and negotiation.
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On October 8, 2009, we entered into an employment agreement with Dr. Chen regarding his employment by the Company as its new
Chief Financial Officer effective on October 20, 2009 (the "Effective Date"). Pursuant to the employment agreement, Dr. Chen is
entitled to a base salary at an annual rate of $150,000. Dr. Chen was also granted a signing bonus which is calculated as follows:
$410.96 per day multiplied by the number of days between September 25, 2009 and the Effective Date. The initial term of the
employment agreement will be eighteen (18) months, with automatic one-year extensions.

Upon the Effective Date, we also granted Dr. Chen options to purchase 25,000 shares of the common stock of the Company at an
exercise price of $8.00 per share (the “Initial Options™). The Initial Options will be immediately exercisable but, to the extent they are
exercised, will be subject to a repurchase right of the Company, which will lapse as follows: 50% of the Initial Options will vest six (6)
months after the Effective Date and the remaining 50% will vest twelve (12) months after the Effective Date. Upon the 1-year
anniversary of the Effective Date, Dr. Chen will be granted additional options to purchase 12,500 shares of the common stock of the
Company at an exercise price equal to the market price on the grant date that are not immediately exercisable, and which will vest six
(6) months from the date of grant (the “Subsequent Options™”). The Initial Options and Subsequent Options will expire five (5) years
from their respective grant dates, provided, however, that Dr. Chen remains continuously employed by the Company during the
applicable five-year period.

Potention Payments Upon Termination or Change-in-Control

In the event of the termination of Mr. Chen’s employment under his employment agreement, the Company shall pay Mr. Chen on the
date of termination only the amount of his salary that is earned but unpaid as of the date of termination, as well as any accrued but
unused paid leave and any unreimbursed business expenses incurred as of the termination date. In the event of the termination of Mr.
Chen’s employment for Good Reason (as defined in the employment agreement), the Company shall pay Mr. Chen a severance
payment in an amount equal to three (3) months of Mr. Chen’s annual salary at the time of termination, less applicable statutory
deductions and withholdings, to be paid, at the Company’s discretion, in a lump sum or such regular intervals over the 3-month period
as shall be determined by the Company, provided that Mr. Chen signs a standard release of all claims as presented by the Company. In
the event of the termination of Mr. Chen’s employment without Cause (as defined in the employment agreement), the Company shall
pay Mr. Chen a severance payment in an amount equal to Mr. Chen’s annual salary at the time of termination for remainder of the term
of employment, less applicable statutory deductions and withholdings, to be paid, at the Company’s discretion, in a lump sum or such
regular intervals over the period as shall be determined by the Company, provided that Mr. Chen signs a standard release of all claims
as presented by the Company.

Director Compensation

The Company did not and does not currently have an established policy to provide compensation to members of its board of directors
for their services in that capacity. The Company intends to develop such a policy in the near future.

Indemnifications of Directors and Executive Officers and Limitations of Liability

Under Section 145 of the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware, we can indemnify our directors and officers against
liabilities they may incur in such capacities, including liabilities under the Securities Act. Our certificate of incorporation provides that,
pursuant to Delaware law, our directors shall not be liable for monetary damages for breach of the directors’ fiduciary duty of care to us
and our stockholders. This provision in the certificate of incorporation does not eliminate the duty of care, and in appropriate
circumstances equitable remedies such as injunctive or other forms of non-monetary relief will remain available under Delaware law.
In addition, each director will continue to be subject to liability for breach of the director’s duty of loyalty to us or our stockholders, for
acts or omissions not in good faith or involving intentional misconduct or knowing violations of the law, for actions leading to
improper personal benefit to the director, and for payment of dividends or approval of stock repurchases or redemptions that are
unlawful under Delaware law. The provision also does not affect a director’s responsibilities under any other law, such as the federal
securities laws or state or federal environmental laws.

Our bylaws provide for the indemnification of our directors to the fullest extent permitted by the Delaware General Corporation Law.
Our bylaws further provide that our board of directors has discretion to indemnify our officers and other employees. We are required to
advance, prior to the final disposition of any proceeding, promptly on request, all expenses incurred by any director or executive officer
in connection with that proceeding on receipt of an undertaking by or on behalf of that director or executive officer to repay those
amounts if it should be determined ultimately that he or she is not entitled to be indemnified under the bylaws or otherwise. We are not,
however, required to advance any expenses in connection with any proceeding if a determination is reasonably and promptly made by
our board of directors by a majority vote of a quorum of disinterested board members that (i) the party seeking an advance acted in bad
faith or deliberately breached his or her duty to us or our stockholders and (ii) as a result of such actions by the party seeking an
advance, it is more likely than not that it will ultimately be determined that such party is not entitled to indemnification pursuant to the
applicable sections of its bylaws.
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We have been advised that in the opinion of the Securities and Exchange Commission, insofar as indemnification for liabilities arising
under the Securities Act may be permitted to our directors, officers and controlling persons pursuant to the foregoing provisions, or
otherwise, such indemnification is against public policy as expressed in the Securities Act and is therefore unenforceable. In the event a
claim for indemnification against such liabilities (other than our payment of expenses incurred or paid by our director, officer or
controlling person in the successful defense of any action, suit or proceeding) is asserted by such director, officer or controlling person
in connection with the securities being registered, we will, unless in the opinion of our counsel the matter has been settled by
controlling precedent, submit to a court of appropriate jurisdiction the question of whether such indemnification by us is against public
policy as expressed in the Securities Act and will be governed by the final adjudication of such issue.

We may enter into indemnification agreements with each of our directors and officers that are, in some cases, broader than the specific
indemnification provisions permitted by Delaware law, and that may provide additional procedural protection. As of the closing of the
Share Exchange, we have not entered into any indemnification agreements with our directors or officers, but may choose to do so in the
future. Such indemnification agreements may require us, among other things, to:

° indemnify officers and directors against certain liabilities that may arise because of their status as officers or directors;

° advance expenses, as incurred, to officers and directors in connection with a legal proceeding, subject to limited
exceptions; or

° obtain directors’ and officers’ insurance.

At present, there is no pending litigation or proceeding involving any of our directors, officers or employees in which indemnification
is sought, nor are we aware of any threatened litigation that may result in claims for indemnification.

Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation

The Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors is composed of the following two Board members: Liu Hui Fang (Chair) and
Tian Li Zhi. No member of the Compensation Committee is a former or current officer or employee of the Company or had any
relationship requiring disclosure under Item 404 of Regulation S-K promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended. No interlocking relationship exists between our board of directors and the board of directors or compensation committee of
any other company.
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COMPENSATION COMMITTEE REPORT (1)
The Compensation Committee has reviewed and discussed with management the Compensation Discussion and Analysis, or CD&A,
contained in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Based on this review and discussion, the Compensation Committee has recommended
to the board of directors that the CD&A be included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Compensation Committee

Liu Hui Fang
Tian Li Zhi

€8 The material in this report is not deemed to be "soliciting material," or to be "filed" with the Securities and Exchange
Commission, and is not to be incorporated by reference into any filing of ZST Digital Networks, Inc. under the Securities Act or the
Exchange Act.
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ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS.

Beneficial ownership is determined in accordance with the rules of the SEC. In computing the number of shares beneficially owned by
a person and the percentage of ownership of that person, shares of common stock subject to options and warrants held by that person
that are currently exercisable or become exercisable within 60 days of the date of this report are deemed outstanding even if they have
not actually been exercised. Those shares, however, are not deemed outstanding for the purpose of computing the percentage
ownership of any other person.

The following table sets forth certain information with respect to beneficial ownership of our common stock based on issued and
outstanding shares of common stock, by:

. Each person known to be the beneficial owner of 5% or more of the outstanding common stock of our Company;
. Each named executive officer;

. Each director; and

. All of the executive officers and directors as a group.

The number of shares of our common stock outstanding as of April 29, 2010 is 11,650,442, which excludes 156,250 shares of common
stock that are issuable upon the exercise of outstanding warrants. Unless otherwise indicated, the persons and entities named in the
table have sole voting and sole investment power with respect to the shares set forth opposite the stockholder’s name, subject to
community property laws, where applicable. Unless otherwise indicated, the address of each stockholder listed in the table is ¢c/o ZST
Digital Networks, Inc., 206 Tongbo Street, Boyaxicheng Second Floor, Zhengzhou City, Henan Province, People’s Republic of China
450007.

Amount and Percent of
Nature of Class
Name and Address of Beneficial Beneficially
Beneficial Owner Title Ownership Owned (1)
Directors and Executive Olfficers:
Zhong Bo Chairman of the Board of
Directors and Chief Executive
Officer 5,002,251(2) 42.94%
John Chen Chief Financial Officer 25,000(3) *
Zhong Lin Director and Chief Operating
Officer — —
Yang Ai Mei Director — —
Tian Li Zhi Director — —
Sheng Yong Director — —
Liu Hui Fang Director — —
All Officers and Directors as a Group (total of eight (8)
persons) 5,027,251 43.06%
5% Stockholders:
Richard Rappaport
1900 Avenue of the Stars,
Suite 310
Los Angeles, CA 90067 736,290(4) 6.32%

* Indicates lesss than 1%.

(1) Based on 11,650,442 shares of common stock issued and outstanding as of April 29, 2010.

(2)  Includes 4,559,393 shares of common stock owned by Mr. Zhong. Also includes 442,858 shares of common stock owned by Mr.
Zhong’s wife, Wu Dexiu. Mr. Zhong may be deemed the beneficial owner of these securities since he has voting and investment

control over the securities.

(3)  Includes options to purchase 25,000 shares of common stock exercisable within 60 days of the date of this report.



(4)  Includes 292,993 shares of common stock owned by Mr. Rappaport. Also includes 61,425 shares of common stock owned by
each of the Amanda Rappaport Trust and the Kailey Rappaport Trust as well as 320,447 shares of common stock owned by
WestPark Capital Financial Services, LLC. Mr. Rappaport, as Trustee of the Rappaport Trusts and Chief Executive Officer and
Chairman of WestPark Capital Financial Services, LLC, may be deemed the indirect beneficial owner of these securities since
he has sole voting and investment control over the securities.
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Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Compensation Plans
As of December 31, 2009, the Company did not have an equity compensation plan.
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ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE.
Share Exchange

On January 9, 2009, we completed the Share Exchange with World Orient and the former stockholders of World Orient. At the closing,
World Orient became our wholly-owned subsidiary and 100% of the issued and outstanding securities of World Orient were exchanged
for securities of the Company. An aggregate of 806,408 shares of common stock were issued to the stockholders of World Orient. As of
the close of the Share Exchange, the former stockholders of World Orient owned approximately 22% of our issued and outstanding
common stock.

Upon the closing of the Share Exchange, the Company’s board of directors resigned in full and appointed Zhong Bo, Zhong Lin, Yang
Ai Mei, Tian Li Zhi, Sheng Yong and Liu Hui Fang to the board of directors of our Company, with Zhong Bo serving as Chairman.
The Company’s board of directors also appointed Zhong Bo as Chief Executive Officer, Zeng Yun Su as Chief Financial Officer and
Corporate Secretary, Zhong Lin as Chief Operating Officer and Xue Na as Deputy General Manager and President of the Labor Union,
each of whom were executive officers and/or directors of Zhengzhou ZST. Also in connection with the Share Exchange, we paid
$350,000 to WestPark and $125,000 to a third party unaffiliated with the Company, SRKP 18 or WestPark.

Purchase Right and Share and Warrant Cancellation

On January 14, 2009, Zhong Bo, our Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board, Wu Dexiu, Huang Jiankang, Sun Hui and Li
Yuting (the “ZST Management”) each entered into a Common Stock Purchase Agreement pursuant to which the Company issued and
the ZST Management agreed to purchase an aggregate of 5,090,315 shares of our common stock at a per share purchase price of
$0.6907 (the “Purchase Right”). The purchase price for the shares was paid in full on May 25, 2009. Each of the stockholders and
warrantholders of the Company prior to the Share Exchange agreed to cancel 0.3317 shares of common stock and warrants to purchase
0.5328 shares of common stock held by each of them for each one (1) share of common stock purchased by the ZST Management
pursuant to the Purchase Right (the “Share and Warrant Cancellation”). Pursuant to the Share and Warrant Cancellation, an aggregate
of 1,688,532 shares of common stock and warrants to purchase 2,712,283 shares of common stock held by certain of our stockholders
and warrantholders prior to the Share Exchange were cancelled.

Private Placement and Underwriting Services

Richard Rappaport, our President and one of our controlling stockholders prior to the Share Exchange, indirectly holds a 100% interest
in WestPark. Anthony C. Pintsopoulos, our officer, director and significant stockholder prior to the Share Exchange, is the Chief
Financial Officer of WestPark. Kevin DePrimio and Jason Stern, each employees of WestPark, are also stockholders of the Company.
Thomas J. Poletti is a former stockholder of the Company and a partner of K&L Gates LLP, our U.S. legal counsel. Richard Rappaport
is the sole owner of the membership interests of WestPark Capital Financial Services, LLC. Each of Messrs. Rappaport and
Pintsopoulos resigned from all of their executive and director positions with the Company upon the closing of the Share Exchange.

WestPark, the placement agent for our $4.98 million equity financing, received a commission equal to 12% of the gross proceeds from
the financing plus a 4% non-accountable expense allowance. No other consideration was paid to WestPark or SRKP 18 in connection
with the Share Exchange or Private Placement. Furthermore, in connection with the initial closing of the Private Placement, the
Company issued a promissory note in the principal amount of $170,000, bearing no interest (the “Note”), to WestPark Capital Financial
Services, LLC, the parent company of WestPark. The principal was due and payable by us on or before the earlier of (a) thirty (30)
days from the date of issuance of the Note or (b) upon the receipt by us of at least $4 million in the Private Placement. We repaid the
Note in full on January 23, 2009 using the proceeds from the second closing of the Private Placement.

In addition, WestPark acted as a co-underwriter, along with Rodman & Renshaw, LLC, in our public offering that we closed in October
2009. We sold a total of 3,125,000 shares of common stock in the public offering at $8.00 per share, for gross proceeds of
approximately $25 million. As compensation for its services, WestPark received discounts, commissions and management fees of
$348,136, a non-accountable expense allowance of $100,000, and reimbursement of roadshow expenses of approximately $6,100 and
legal counsel fees (excluding blue sky fees) of $40,000. WestPark also received a five-year warrant to purchase 62,500 shares of our
common stock at an exercise price of $10.00 per share.

Patent License Agreement and Patent Transfer

Our Chief Executive Officer, Zhong Bo, has legal ownership of one patent in China that we rely on in the operation of our business. On
January 9, 2009, we entered into a patent license agreement with Mr. Zhong for the right to use such patent in the operation of our
business. In addition, we also applied to SIPO for the transfer of the patent to Zhengzhou ZST and SIPO accepted the application
regarding the patent transfer to Zhengzhou ZST on December 31, 2008. The patent transfer to Zhengzhou ZST was approved on



January 9, 2009. Mr. Zhong did not receive any additional consideration for the license of the intellectual property rights to us, other
than the execution of the patent license agreement being a condition to the closing of the Share Exchange.
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Policy for Approval of Related Party Transactions

In February 2009, we established an Audit Committee and adopted an Audit Committee Charter. The Audit Committee Charter
contains our policy for approval of related party transactions. Our policy is to have our Audit Committee review and pre-approve any
related party transactions and other matters pertaining to the integrity of management, including potential conflicts of interest, trading
in our securities, or adherence to standards of business conduct as required by our policies.

Director Independence

See the section entitled “Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance” beginning on page 52 for a discussion of board
member independence.
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ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES.

During the fiscal years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008, we retained Kempisty & Company, PC, CPAs and AJ. Robbins, P.C.,
Certified Public Accountants, respectively, to provide services as follows:

Fees for the Year Ended
December 31,

Services 2009 2008

Audit fees (1) $ 458,500 $ 15,370
Audit-related fees (2) - -
Tax fees (3) 3,500 1,855
All other fees (4) - -
Total audit and non-audit fees $ 462,000 $ 17,225

(1) These are fees for professional services performed by our principal accountants for the audit of our annual financial statements,
review of our quarterly reports, and review of our Registration Statements on Form S-1.

(2) No fees were billed for each of fiscal year 2009 and fiscal year 2008 for assurance and related services by our principal accountants
reasonably related to the performance of the audit or review of the Company’s financial statements.

(3) These are tax return preparation fees for fiscal year 2009 and fiscal year 2008 paid to our principal accountants.

(4) No fees were billed for each of fiscal year 2009 and fiscal year 2008 for products and services provided by our principal
accountants, other than the services reported above.

Pre-Approval Policy

In accordance with our Audit Committee Charter, the Audit Committee pre-approves all auditing services and permitted non-audit
services, if any, including tax services, to be performed for us by our independent auditor, subject to the de minimis exceptions for
non-audit services described in Section 10A(1)(1)(B) of the Exchange Act which are approved by the Audit Committee prior to the
completion of the audit. The scope of the pre-approval shall include pre-approval of all fees and terms of engagement. The Audit
Committee may form and delegate authority to subcommittees consisting of one or more members when appropriate, including the
authority to grant pre-approvals of audit and permitted non-audit services, provided that decisions of such subcommittee to grant pre-
approvals shall be presented to the full Audit Committee at its next scheduled meeting.
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PART IV
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES.
1. Financial Statements: See “Index to Financial Statements” in Part II, Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K/A.
2. Financial Statement Schedules: None.

3. Exhibits: The exhibits listed in the accompanying “Exhibit Index” are filed or incorporated by reference as part of this Annual
Report on Form 10-K/A.

Exhibit Index
Exhibit No. Exhibit Description

2.1 Equity Purchase Agreement dated October 10, 2008 by and among Zhong Bo, Wu Dexiu, Huang Jiankang, Sun
Hui, Li Yuting and Everfair Technologies, Ltd. (translated to English) (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 2.1 to
the Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on January 15, 2009).

2.2 Share Exchange Agreement dated December 11, 2008 by and among the Registrant, World Orient Universal
Limited and all of the stockholders of World Orient Universal Limited (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 2.2
to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on January 15, 2009).

23 Amendment No. 1 to Share Exchange Agreement dated January 9, 2009 by and among the Registrant, World Orient
Universal Limited and all of the stockholders of World Orient Universal Limited (incorporated by reference from
Exhibit 2.3 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on January 15,
2009).

3.1 Certificate of Incorporation (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 3.1 to the Registration Statement on Form 10-
SB filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on November 26, 2007).

3.2 Bylaws (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 3.2 to the Registration Statement on Form 10-SB filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on November 26, 2007).

33 Certificate of Designations, Preferences and Rights of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock as filed with the
Secretary of State of Delaware on January 5, 2009 (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 3.3 to the Current Report
on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on January 15, 2009).

34 Certificate of Ownership and Merger effecting name change filed with the Secretary of State of Delaware on
January 9, 2009 (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 3.4 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on January 15, 2009).

3.5 Certificate of Amendment to the Company’s Certificate of Incorporation effecting reverse stock split as filed with
the Secretary of State of Delaware on October 6, 2009 (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 3.1 to the Current
Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on October 7, 2009).

4.1 Form of Warrant dated January 3, 2007 (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 4.1 to the Registration Statement on
Form 10-SB (File No. 000-52934) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on November 26, 2007).

10.1 Form of Subscription Agreement (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on January 15, 2009).

10.2 Registration Rights Agreement dated January 9, 2009 by and between the Registrant and the Stockholders
(incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.2 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and

Exchange Commission on January 15, 2009).
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10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7

10.8

10.9

10.10

10.11

10.12

10.13

10.14

10.15

10.16

Share and Warrant Cancellation Agreement dated January 9, 2009 by and between the Registrant and the
Stockholders (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.3 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on January 15, 2009).

Promissory Note dated January 9, 2009 by and between SRKP 18, Inc. and WestPark Capital, Inc (incorporated by
reference from Exhibit 10.4 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission
on January 15, 2009).

Form of 2008 Employment Agreement entered into with executive officers indicated in Schedule A attached to the
Form of Agreement (translated to English) (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.5 to the Current Report on
Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on January 15, 2009).

Patent License Agreement dated January 9, 2009 by and between Zhengzhou Shenyang Technology Company
Limited and Zhong Bo (translated to English) (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.6 to the Current Report on
Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on January 15, 2009).

House Lease Agreement dated August 29, 2007 by and between Zhengzhou Green City Advertisement Co., Ltd.
And Zhengzhou Shenyang Technology Company Limited (translated to English) (incorporated by reference from
Exhibit 10.7 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on January 15,
2009).

Accounts Receivable Financing Agreement dated January 4, 2008, as amended, by and between Zhengzhou
Shenyang Technology Company Limited and Raiffeisen Zentralbank Oesterreich AG Beijing Branch (translated to
English) (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.8 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities
and Exchange Commission on January 15, 2009).

Receivable Pledge Agreement dated January 4, 2008 by and between Zhengzhou Shenyang Technology Company
Limited and Austria Central Cooperation Bank Beijing Branch (translated to English) (incorporated by reference
from Exhibit 10.9 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on
January 15, 2009).

Form of Common Stock Purchase Agreement dated January 14, 2009 (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.1
to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on January 21, 2009).

House Lease Agreement dated April 24, 2009 by and between Zhengzhou Zhong Xing Real Estate Co., Ltd. And
Zhengzhou Shenyang Technology Company Limited (translated to English) (incorporated by reference from Exhibit
10.1 to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on June 12, 2009).

Value Added Service Cooperation Agreement dated March 19, 2009 by and between China Unicom Henan Branch
and Zhengzhou Shenyang Technology Company Limited (translated to English).

Employment Agreement dated October 8, 2009 by and between the Registrant and John Chen, M.D. (incorporated
by reference from Exhibit 10.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on October 9, 2009).

Stock Option Agreement by and between the Registrant and John Chen, M.D. (incorporated by reference from
Exhibit 10.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on October 21,
2009).

Form of Stock Purchase Agreement by and between the Registrant and John Chen, M.D. (incorporated by reference
from Exhibit 10.15 to the Registration Statement on Form S-1/A (File No. 333-160343) filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on October 16, 2009).

GPS Device Supply and Terminal Service Agreement dated October 25, 2009 (incorporated by reference from
Exhibit 10.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on November

10, 2009).
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10.17 Retention Agreement dated November 14, 2009 by and between the Registrant and Zhong Lin.

10.18 Employment Agreement dated December 13, 2009 by and between the Registrant and Zhong Bo.

10.19 Employment Agreement dated December 14, 2009 by and between the Registrant and Zhong Lin.

10.20 Employment Agreement dated December 13, 2009 by and between the Registrant and Xue Na.

10.21 Consulting Agreement dated December 30, 2009 by and between the Registrant and Finance Access, Inc.

10.22 Professional Services Agreement dated October 28, 2009 by and between the Registrant and Fabulous Worldwide
Limited.

10.23 Professional Services Agreement dated October 28, 2009 by and between the Registrant and Practical Worldwide
Limited.

14.1 Code of Business Conduct and Ethics.

21.1 List of Subsidiaries (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 21.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the

Securities and Exchange Commission on January 15, 2009).

31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

32.1% Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002.

* This exhibit shall not be deemed “filed” for purposes of Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 or otherwise subject to
the liabilities of that section, nor shall it be deemed incorporated by reference in any filing under the Securities Act or the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, whether made before or after the date hereof and irrespective of any general incorporation language in any
filings.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or Section 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this
report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

ZST DIGITAL NETWORKS, INC.

(Registrant)
May 18, 2010 By: /s/ Zhong Bo
Zhong Bo

Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board
(Principal Executive Officer)

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed by the following persons on behalf of
the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

SIGNATURE TITLE DATE
/s/ Zhong Bo Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board May 18, 2010
Zhong Bo (Principal Executive Officer)
/s/ John Chen Chief Financial Officer May 18, 2010
John Chen (Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)
/s/ Zhong Lin Chief Operating Officer and Director May 18, 2010
Zhong Lin
/s/ Xue Na May 18, 2010
Xue Na Director and Corporate Secretary
/s/ Yang Ai Mei May 18, 2010
Yang Ai Mei Director
/s/ Tian Li Zhi May 18, 2010
Tian Li Zhi Director
/s/ Sheng Yong May 18, 2010
Sheng Yong Director
/s/ Liu Hui Fang May 18, 2010
Liu Hui Fang Director
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KEMPISTY & COMPANY

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS, P.C.
15 MAIDEN LANE — SUITE 1003 — NEW YORK, NY 10038 — TEL (212) 406-7272 — FAX (212) 513-1930

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Board of Directors
ZST Digital Networks, Inc. and Subsidiaries

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of ZST Digital Networks, Inc. and Subsidiaries as of December 31,
2009 and 2008 and the related consolidated statements of operations, consolidated cash flows and consolidated changes in
stockholders’ equity and comprehensive income for each of the years in the three year period ended December 31, 2009. These
financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. The Company is not required at this time, to have, nor were we engaged to perform, an audit of its internal
control over financial reporting. Our audit included consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We
believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

As discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, the accompanying consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2009
and the related statements of operations and statement of stockholders’ equity and comprehensive income for the year then ended have
been restated.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
ZST Digital Networks, Inc. and Subsidiaries at December 31, 2009 and 2008 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for
each of the years in the three year period ended December 31, 2009 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
in the United States of America.

Kempisty & Company
Certified Public Accountants PC
New York, New York

March 30, 2010 (except Footnote 18, 19, 20, 22 and 24 dated May 13, 2010)
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KEMPISTY & COMPANY

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS, P.C.
15 MAIDEN LANE — SUITE 1003 — NEW YORK, NY 10038 — TEL (212) 406-7272 — FAX (212) 513-1930

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Board of Directors
ZST Digital Networks, Inc. (Formerly SRKP 18, Inc.)

We have audited the condensed Parent Only balance sheet of ZST Digital Networks, Inc. as of December 31, 2009 and 2008 and the
related condensed Parent Only statements of operations and cash flows for each of the years in the two year period ended December
31, 2009 included in Footnote 23 to the Consolidated Financial Statements of ZST Digital Networks, Inc. These Parent Only
condensed financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. The Company is not required at this time, to have, nor were we engaged to perform, an audit of its internal
control over financial reporting. Our audit included consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We
believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

As discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, the accompanying consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2009
and the related statements of operations and statement of stockholders’ equity and comprehensive income for the year then ended have
been restated.

In our opinion, the condensed Parent Only financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of ZST Digital Networks, Inc. at December 31, 2009 and 2008 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of
the years in the two year period ended December 31, 2009 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the in the
United States of America.

Kempisty & Company
Certified Public Accountants PC
New York, New York

March 30, 2010 (except Footnote 18, 19, 20, 22 and 24 dated May 13, 2010)
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ZST DIGITAL NETWORKS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Assets
Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Trade receivables, net (Note 4)
Employee advances (Note 6)
Inventories, net (Note 5)
Advances to suppliers (Note 12)
Prepaid expenses and other receivables

Total current assets

Consolidated Balance Sheets
(In U.S. Dollars)

Prepaid expenses and other receivables — long term

Property and equipment, net (Note 7)
Intangible asset, net (Note 8)
Total assets

Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity

Current liabilities
Accounts payable — trade
Deferred revenues
Customer deposit
Accrued liabilities and other payable
Various taxes payable
Short-term loans (Note 9)
Employee security deposit payable
Wages payable
Corporate tax payable (Note 13)
Due to related parties (Note 11)

Total current liabilities

Commitments and contingencies (Note 14)

Stockholders' Equity

Preferred Stock, $0.0001 par value, 10,000,000 shares authorized, 7,513,723 shares undesignated,
0 and 0 shares issued and outstanding at December 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008,

respectively (Note 18)

Preferred Stock Series A Convertible, $0.0001 par value, 2,486,277 shares authorized, 0 and 0
shares issued and outstanding at December 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008, respectively.
Liquidation preference and redemption value of $0 at December 31, 2009 (Note 18)

Common stock, $0.0001 par value, 100,000,000 shares authorized, 11,650,442 and 5,896,723
shares issued and outstanding at December 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008, respectively (Note

1 and Note 17)
Additional paid-in capital
Accumulated other comprehensive income
Statutory surplus reserve fund (Note 10)
Retained earnings (unrestricted)
Total stockholders' equity
Total Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity

December 31,

December 31,

2009 2008

(Restated)

$ 13,627,992 $§ 1,134,954

24,885,497 12,322,099

- 6,307

1,245,803 775,185

7,399,141 3,024,668

1,064,499 6,968

48,222,932 17,270,181
858,609

467,744 34,148

579,184 -

$ 50,128,469 $ 17,304,329

$ 700,940 § 1,270,096

376,586 -

- 1,467

184,901 501,176

403,622 188,539

- 3,931,991

67,815 8,911

66,370 59,501

547,917 -

- 2,359,728

2,348,151 8,321,409

1,165 590

30,677,932 1,488,924

20,085 590,839

3,328,345 1,491,963

13,752,791 5,410,604

47,780,318 8,982,920

$ 50,128,469 $ 17,304,329

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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ZST DIGITAL NETWORKS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Revenue
Sales of goods
Sales of services

Total Revenue

Cost of revenue
Cost of goods sold
Cost of service

Total cost of revenue

Gross profit

Operating costs and expenses
Selling expenses
General and administrative
Research and development
Merger cost

Total operating costs and expenses
Income from operations
Other income (expenses)
Interest income
Interest expense
Loss on disposal of assets
Government grant
Sundry income (expense), net
Total other income (expenses)

Income before income taxes
Income taxes (Note 13)

Net income

Basic earnings per share

Weighted average shares outstanding, basic
Diluted earnings per share

Weighted average shares outstanding, diluted

Consolidated Statements of Operations
(In U.S. Dollars)

For the Year Ended
December 31,
2009 2008 2007
(Restated)

$ 99,312,502 $ 55,430,819 $ 28,717,251

1,101,613 - -
100,414,115 55,430,819 28,717,251
83,277,087 45,594,243 23,221,360
55,595 - -
83,332,682 45,594,243 23,221,360
17,081,433 9,836,576 5,495,891
364,302 146,459 2,587
1,901,023 1,026,859 761,610
221,467 - 88,364
566,654 - )
3,053,446 1,173,318 850,061
14,027,987 8,663,258 4,645,830
59,161 9,753 3,489
(187,137) (409,811) (266,402)
- (11,295) (319)
380,068 - -
(16,202) (10,869) 309
235,890 (422,222) (262,923)
14,263,877 8,241,036 4,382,907
(4,085308)  (2,132,565)  (1,515,478)

$ 10,178,569 $ 6,108471 $ 2,867,429

$ 1.16 $ 1.04 $

0.49

8,776,491 5,896,723

5,896,723

$ 1.16 $ 1.04 $

0.49

8,776,491 5,896,723

5,896,723

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.




ZST DIGITAL NETWORKS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity and Comprehensive Income
For the year ended December 31, 2009 (Restated) and 2008
(In U.S. Dollars)

Accumulated
Preferred Stock Additional Other Statutory Retained Due from Total
Series A Common Stock Paid-in Comprehensive Reserve Earnings Related Earnings  Comprehensive
Shares Amount Shares Amount Capital Income (Loss) Fund (Unrestricted) Parties Equity Income

Balance at December 31, 2007 -8 - 5,896,723 § 590 $ 1,417,855 § 423,683 § 575010 $ 219,086 $  (68,548) $ 2,567,676
Imputed interest allocated - - - - 71,069 - - - - 71,069
Due from related parties - - - - - - - - 68,548 68,548
Allocation of retained earnings to statutory

reserves fund - - - - - - 916,953 (916,953) - -
Foreign currency translation adjustment - - - - - 167,156 - - - 167,156 $ 167,156
Net income for the year ended - - - - - - - 6,108,471 - 6,108,471 6,108,471
Comprehensive income - - - - - - - - - - $ 6,275,627
Balance at December 31, 2008 - 8 - 5,896,723 $ 590 $ 1,488,924 $ 590,839 § 1,491,963 $  5410,604 § - $ 8,982,920
Reverse merger adjustment - - 1,194,380 119 3,216,305 - - - - 3,216,424
Sale of 1,263,723 shares of Series A

Preferred Stock at $3.94/share 1,263,723 126 - - 3,533,829 - - - - 3,533,955
Issuance of 1,263,723 shares of common

stock upon Series A Preferred Stock

Conversion (1,263,723) (126) 1,263,723 126 - - - - - -
Sale of 3,125,000 shares of Common Stock

at $8.00/share - - 3,125,000 313 22,234,611 - - - - 22,234,924
Issuance of 170,616 shares upon cashless

exercise of 170,629 warrants - - 170,616 17 (17) - - - - -
Stock options issued for officer’s

compensation - - - - 172,863 - - - - 172,863
Imputed interest allocated - - - - 31,417 - - - - 31,417
Allocation of retained earnings to statutory

reserves fund - - - - - - 1,836,382 (1,836,382) - -
Foreign currency translation adjustment - - - - - (570,754) - - - (570,754) § (570,754)
Net income for the year ended - - - - - - - 10,178,569 - 10,178,569 10,178,569
Comprehensive income - - - - - - - - - -3 9,607,815
Bal at Dy ber 31, 2009 (Restated) -8 - 11,650,442 $ 1,165 $ 30,677,932 § 20,085 $ 3328345 § 13,752,791 $ - $ 47,780,318

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

F-6




ZST DIGITAL NETWORKS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Statements of Cash Flows
(In U.S. Dollars)

Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Net Income

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided (used) by operating

activities:

Imputed interest

Stock option issued as compensation

Depreciation
Amortization

Loss on disposal of assets

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Trades receivable

Contract receivable

Prepaid expenses and other receivables
Inventories, net

Advances

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities

Deposits and other payables

Billings in excess of costs on uncompleted projects
Taxes payable and recoverable

Wages payable

Deferred revenue

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities

Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Purchases of property and equipment
Purchases of intangible assets

Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets
Payment to ZST PRC shareholders

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities

Cash Flows From Financing Activities

Proceeds from (Repayment of) short-term demand loans receivable
(Proceeds from) Repayment of short-term demand loans payable
Net proceeds from sale of preferred stock

Net proceeds from sale of common stock

Withdrawal of authorized capital by ZST PRC shareholders

Due from related parties and affiliated companies

Due to related parties and affiliated companies

Dividend paid

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period

Cash and cash equivalents, end of period

Supplemental disclosure information:
Interest expense paid

For the Year Ended
December 31,
2009 2008 2007
$ 10,178,569 $ 6,108,471 $ 2,867,429
31,417 71,069 70,079
34,193 - -
45,546 20,884 43,546
64,319 - -
- 11,295 319
(12,563,398) (2,903,070) (6,001,266)
- 101,499 (6,553)
(1,909,833) 5,962 (1,351)
(470,618) 4,713,609 (2,865,885)
(4,374,473) (3,024,668) -
(885,431) (1,477,740) (2,251,226)
57,437 (38,757) 33,098
- (18,635) 16,692
763,000 (302,438) 476,470
6,869 35,611 16,115
376,586 - -
(8,645,817) 3,303,092 (7,602,533)
(479,265) - (43,082)
(643,538) - -
- - 22,661
- - 1,055,609
(1,122,803) - 1,035,188
1,027 763,548 (38,210)
(3,931,991) (4,001,445) 7,118,815
3,533,955 - -
22,234,924 - -
- - (855,855)
- 68,548 -
- 2,336,323 4,168
- (2,624,266) -
21,837,915 (3,457,292) 6,228,918
423,743 163,350 280,566
12,493,038 9,150 (57,861)
1,134,954 1,125,804 1,183,665

$ 13,627,992

$ 1,134,954

$ 1,125,804

$ 155,720

§ 338,742

$ 196,323




Income taxes paid $ 4,085,308 $ 2,132,565 $ 1,515,478

Non cash investing and financing activities:
Shares issued for related parties' debt $ 2,359,728 % - 8 -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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ZST DIGITAL NETWORKS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

NOTE 1 - DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS AND ORGANIZATION

ZST Digital Networks, Inc. (“ZST Digital”, formerly SRKP 18, Inc.) was incorporated in the State of Delaware on December 7, 2006.
ZST Digital was originally organized as a “blank check” shell company to investigate and acquire a target company or business
seeking the perceived advantages of being a publicly held corporation. On January 9, 2009, ZST Digital closed a share exchange
transaction (the “Share Exchange”) pursuant to which ZST Digital (i) issued 806,408 shares of its common stock to acquire 100%
equity ownership of World Orient Universal Limited (“World Orient”), which is the 100% parent of Global Asia Universal Limited
(“Global Asia”), which is the 100% parent of Everfair Technologies Limited (“Everfair”), which is the 100% parent of Zhengzhou
Shenyang Technology Company Limited (“ZST PRC”), (ii) assumed the operations of World Orient and its subsidiaries, and (iii)
changed its name from SRKP 18, Inc. to ZST Digital Networks, Inc. Subsequent to the closing of the Share Exchange, on January 14,
2009, Zhong Bo, Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board of ZST Digital, Wu Dexiu, Huang Jiankang, Sun Hui and Li
Yuting (the "ZST Management"), each entered into a Common Stock Purchase Agreement pursuant to which ZST Digital issued and
the ZST Management agreed to purchase an aggregate of 5,090,315 shares of our common stock at a per share purchase price of
$0.6907 (the "Purchase Right") and obtained control of ZST Digital. The purchase price for the shares was paid in full on May 25,
2009. The restructuring of ZST Digital is further discussed below.

World Orient was incorporated in British Virgin Islands (“BVI”) on August 12, 2008. As at December 31, 2008, World Orient had
50,000 capital shares authorized with $1.00 par value and 50,000 shares issued and outstanding. In November 2008, World Orient
acquired 100% ownership of Global Asia.

Global Asia was incorporated in BVI on August 12, 2008. As at December 31, 2008, Global Asia had 50,000 capital shares authorized
with $1.00 par value and 50,000 shares issued and outstanding. In October 2008, Global Asia acquired 100% ownership of Everfair.

Everfair is a holding company incorporated in November 26, 2007 in Hong Kong, PRC with the original sole shareholder Kuk Kok
Sun. As at December 31, 2008, Everfair had 10,000 capital shares authorized with HKD 1.00 par value and 10,000 shares issued and
outstanding. Pursuant to a share transfer agreement, Global Asia paid Kuk Kok Sun HKD 10,000 for the ownership transfer.

In October 2008, Everfair entered an ownership transfer agreement with the original owners of ZST PRC. Pursuant to the ownership
transfer agreement, Everfair agreed to pay the original owners RMB 12,000,000 for the ownership transfer within three months of the
approval of a new business license. This transfer was completed in January 2009 after the closing of the Share Exchange and exercise
of the Purchase Right by the shareholders of ZST PRC.

ZST PRC was established on May 20, 1996 as a private domestic corporation in Zhengzhou, Henan Province, PRC with an authorized
capital of RMB 1.5 million. On April 8, 1999, ZST PRC increased its authorized capital from RMB 1.5 million to RMB 8 million. On
July 27, 2004, ZST PRC further increased its authorized capital to RMB 18 million. On March 15, 2007, ZST PRC decreased its

authorized and invested capital to RMB 11.5 million. In February 2009, ZST PRC increased its authorized capital to RMB 17 million.

ZST PRC’s primary revenues were from sales of broadcasting equipment, hi-tech optical transmission devices, and telecommunication
products. ZST PRC is principally engaged in supplying digital and optical network equipment to cable system operators in the Henan
Province of China. It has developed a line of internet protocol television (“IPTV”) set-top boxes that are used to provide bundled cable
television, Internet and telephone services to residential and commercial customers. At present, ZST PRC’s main clients are
broadcasting TV bureaus and cable network operators serving various cities and counties. In the near future, ZST PRC plans to joint
venture with cable network operators to provide bundled television programming, Internet and telephone services to residential
customers in cities and counties located in the Henan Province of China.

ZST Digital and its subsidiaries, World Orient, Global Asia, Everfair, and ZST PRC shall be collectively referred throughout as the
“Company”.
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ZST DIGITAL NETWORKS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

NOTE 1 - DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS AND ORGANIZATION (continued)

Pursuant to PRC rules and regulations relating to mergers of PRC companies with foreign entities, an offshore company controlled by
PRC citizens that intends to merge with a PRC company will be subject to strict examination by the relevant PRC foreign exchange
authorities. To enable ZST PRC to go public, ZST management made the following restructuring arrangements: (i) established Everfair
as a Hong Kong holding company owned by a non-PRC citizen and indirectly controlled the operations of Everfair, (ii) had Everfair
enter into an equity transfer agreement with ZST PRC by paying RMB 12,000,000 to ZST Management, (iii) established World Orient
as a BVI holding company owned by a non PRC-citizen, (iv) had World Orient and its wholly owned subsidiary Global Asia, its
subsidiary Everfair, and its subsidiary ZST PRC enter into a share exchange agreement with ZST Digital, (v) concurrently conducted a
private investment in a public company (“PIPE”) financing, and (vi) used proceeds from the PIPE transaction to pay RMB 12,000,000
to ZST Management pursuant to the ownership transfer agreement.

Upon consummation of the Share Exchange and the Purchase Right, ZST Management owned a majority of the issued and outstanding
shares of common stock of the Company and Zhong Bo was appointed as Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer of ZST
Digital.

For accounting purposes, this transaction is being accounted for as a reverse merger. The transaction has been treated as a
recapitalization of World Orient and its subsidiaries, with ZST Digital (the legal acquirer of World Orient and its subsidiaries including
ZST PRC) considered the accounting acquiree and ZST PRC, the only operating company, and whose management took control of
ZST Digital (the legal acquiree of ZST Digital) is considered the accounting acquirer. The Company did not recognize goodwill or any
intangible assets in connection with the transaction.

On October 6, 2009, the Company effected a 1-for-2.461538462 reverse stock split of the Company’s issued and outstanding shares of
common stock (the “Reverse Stock Split”). The par value and number of authorized shares of the common stock remained unchanged.
All references to number of shares and per share amounts included in these consolidated financial statements and the accompanying
notes have been adjusted to reflect the Reverse Stock Split retroactively.

To summarize the paragraphs above, the organization and ownership structure of the Company is currently as follows:

LT Dhigital Networks, Ine, (formerly SREKP 18, Inc.),
a Dglaware Corporation
| (iP5
World Orient Universal Limisted,
a BY1 Corporation
10
Cilobal Asan Universal Limited,
a BV Corporation
1 O
Everfair Technologics, Lid.,
a Hong Kong Corporation
100
Lhengelvou Shenyang Technology Company Limited,
a PRC Corporation
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ZST DIGITAL NETWORKS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

NOTE 2 - RESTATEMENT OF PREVIOUSLY ISSUED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

On May 13, 2010, the Company discovered that its financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2009 should not be relied
upon due to an error in the accounting record of warrants exercised and Series A Convertible Preferred Stock converted during the
period, resulting in an understatement of the Company’s common stock issued and outstanding for the period as well as a misstatement
of the Company’s basic and diluted earnings per share.

Authorized officers of the Company’s Board of Directors concluded on May 13, 2010 that the Company should restate the financial
statements described above and file an amendment to the Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission (the “SEC”) on March 31, 2010.

Effects of Restatements

To correct the above noted errors, the Company has restated the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2009,
its Consolidated Statements of Operations for the year ended December 31, 2009, and the notes to the consolidated financial
statements.

The following is a summary items affected by the corrections described above:

Consolidated Balance Sheets

As of December 31, 2009

As previously
reported Adjustments  As restated

Preferred stock, $0.0001 par value, 2,486,277 shares authorized, 0 shares

outstanding at December 31, 2009 $ 126 § (126) $ -
Common stock, $0.0001 par value, 100,000,000 shares authorized,

11,650,442 shares issued and outstanding at December 31, 2009 $ 1,022 $ 143§ 1,165
Additional paid-in capital $ 30,677,949 §$ (17) $30,677,932

Consolidated Statement of Operations

For the year ended
December 31, 2009
As previously
reported Adjustments  As restated

Basic Earnings per share $ 1.32 % (0.16) $ 1.16
Weighted average shares outstanding, basic 7,689,925 1,086,566 8,776,491
Diluted Earnings per share 1.14 0.02 1.16
Weighted average shares outstanding, diluted $ 8,967,027 $ (190,536) $ 8,776,491

NOTE 3 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of Presentation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared by the Company in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America (“US GAAP”).

In the opinion of the management, the consolidated financial statements reflect adjustments (which include only normal recurring
adjustments) necessary to present fairly the financial position of the Company as of December 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008; and
the results of operations and cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its subsidiaries. All significant inter-company
transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Use of Estimates



The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the
date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting year. Because of the use of
estimates inherent in the financial reporting process, actual results could differ from those estimates.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The standard for “Disclosures About Fair Value of Financial Instruments,” defines financial instruments and requires fair value
disclosures of those financial instruments. On January 1, 2008, the Company adopted the standard “Fair Value Measurements,” which
defines fair value, establishes a three-level valuation hierarchy for disclosures of fair value measurement and enhances disclosures
requirements for fair value measures. Current assets and current liabilities qualified as financial instruments and management believes
their carrying amounts are a reasonable estimate of fair value because of the short period of time between the origination of such
instruments and their expected realization and if applicable, their current interest rate is equivalent to interest rates currently
available. The three levels are defined as follow:

e Level 1 — inputs to the valuation methodology are quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets or liabilities in active
markets.

e Level 2 — inputs to the valuation methodology include quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in active markets, and
inputs that are observable for the assets or liability, either directly or indirectly, for substantially the full term of the financial
instruments.

e Level 3 — inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to the fair value.

As of the balance sheet date, the estimated fair values of the financial instruments were not materially different from their carrying
values as presented due to the short maturities of these instruments and that the interest rates on the borrowings approximate those that
would have been available for loans of similar remaining maturity and risk profile at respective period-ends. Determining which
category an asset or liability falls within the hierarchy requires significant judgment. The Company evaluates the hierarchy disclosures
each quarter.
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ZST DIGITAL NETWORKS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

NOTE 3 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, cash on deposit with various financial institutions in PRC, Hong Kong, and all highly-
liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less at the time of purchase. Banks and other financial institutions in
PRC do not provide insurance for funds held on deposit.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are carried at original invoice amount less an estimate made for doubtful accounts based on a review of all
outstanding amounts on a monthly basis. The Company analyzes the aging of accounts receivable balances, historical bad debts,
customer concentrations, customer credit-worthiness, current economic trends and changes in our customer payment terms. Significant
changes in customer concentration or payment terms, deterioration of customer credit-worthiness or weakening in economic trends
could have a significant impact on the collectability of receivables and our operating results. The Company has not provided a bad debt
allowance based upon its historical collection experience. There were no bad debts written off during the year December 31, 2009 and
2008, respectively.

According to the sales contract terms, customers are able to hold back 10% of the total contract balance payable to the Company for
one year. The hold back is carried at 10% of original invoice as accounts receivable.

Inventories

Inventories, which are primarily comprised of raw materials and finished goods, are stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value,
using the first-in first-out (FIFO) method. Cost is determined on the basis of a moving average. The Company evaluates the need for
reserves associated with obsolete, slow-moving and non-salable inventory by reviewing net realizable values on a periodic basis.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost and depreciated using the straight-line method, with an estimated 5% salvage value of
original cost, over the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Machinery and equipment 5 years
Electronic equipment 5 years
Office equipment 5 years
Automobile 5 years
Other equipment 10 years

Expenditures for repairs and maintenance, which do not improve or extend the expected useful lives of the assets, are expensed as
incurred while major replacements and improvements are capitalized.

When property or equipment is retired or disposed of, the cost and accumulated depreciation are removed from the accounts, with any
resulting gains or losses being included in net income or loss in the year of disposition.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

The Company accounts for impairment of plant and equipment and amortizable intangible assets in accordance with the standard of
“Accounting for Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and Long-Lived Assets to be Disposed Of”’, which requires the Company to
evaluate a long-lived asset for recoverability when there is event or circumstance that indicate the carrying value of the asset may not
be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized when the carrying amount of a long-lived asset or asset group is not recoverable
(when carrying amount exceeds the gross, undiscounted cash flows from use and disposition) and is measured as the excess of the
carrying amount over the asset’s (or asset group’s) fair value.
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ZST DIGITAL NETWORKS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

NOTE 3 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Intangible Assets

Intangible assets are recorded at cost and amortized using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets as
follows:

Software 10 years
Revenue Recognition, Deferred Revenue, and Warranties

The Company recognizes revenues for product sales, subscriber fees for service contract, and installation service when the significant
risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred pursuant to PRC law, including such factors as when persuasive evidence of an
arrangement exists, delivery has occurred, the sales price is fixed or determinable, sales and value-added tax laws have been complied
with, and collectability is reasonably assured.

The Company generally recognizes revenue on IPTV device sales when its products are shipped. The IPTV device sales contracts
include a one-year quality assurance warranty for defects. According to the sales contract terms, customers are able to hold back 10%
of the total contract balance payable to the Company for one year. In accordance with the standard of "Revenue Recognition When
Right of Return Exists", the Company records the holdback as revenue at the time of sale when its products are shipped to customers
because:

(a) The contract price to the customer is predetermined and fixed at the date of sale.

(b) The customer is obligated to pay the Company the 10% holdback after one year and the obligation is not contingent on
resale of the product.

(c) The customer’s obligation to the Company would not be changed in the event of theft or physical destruction or damage of
the product because the Company entrust the suppliers to ship the products to the customers, therefore the suppliers bear the
liability for products lost or damaged when in transit to the customers.

(d) The customer acquiring the product for resale has economic substance apart from that provided by the Company.

(e) The Company does not have significant obligations for future performance to directly bring about resale of the product by
the customer other than replacement of defective product due to hardware defects in materials and workmanship.

(f) The amount of future returns can be reasonably estimated based on the historical returns experience.

The Company determined that the costs associated with such assurance were immaterial in monetary terms based on the historical
returns experience. The Company has a return policy where the customers must make a request within 30 days of receipt to return the
products when the products delivered have more than 40% defects or the products are not delivered on time. As of December 31, 2009,
the Company has not received any returns.

In the event of defective product returns, the Company has the right to seek replacement of such returned units from its supplier. Based
on the agreement, the supplier will replace the defective product when the defects are caused by hardware defects in materials and
workmanship during manufacturing process for a period of one year. The Company incurred quality assurance costs of $0 for the year

ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

Based on the facts above, the Company recognizes costs related to the quality assurance when incurred.
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ZST DIGITAL NETWORKS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

NOTE 3 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Revenue Recognition (continued)

In October 2009, the Company introduced GPS device for sale along with subscription service and installation service for its GPS
device. The Company generally recognizes revenue from the sale of GPS device hardware with the bundled software that is essential to
the functionality of the GPS device when there are no continuing obligations upon shipment. If a continuing obligation exists, such as
installation, the Company recognizes revenue from the sale of hardware bundled with software upon completion of installation.

The Company generally recognizes revenue relating to the sale of installation service on the GPS device sold when there are no
continuing obligations upon completion of installation.

The Company sells the services to customers with term of service contracts offered ranges from 12 to 24 months and are payable in full
upon activation of the related unit or renewal of a previous service contract. The subscription services are deferred and recognized over
the life of the contract upon activation.

In instances where the Company sells a GPS device unit along with subscription service and/or installation service, the Company
recognizes revenue related to the combined sale by allocating between the two or three deliverables using the relative selling price
method determined by using the hierarchy of the following principles: (1) vendor-specific objective evidence of fair value (“VSOE”),
(2) third-party evidence of selling price (“TPE”), and (3) best estimate of the selling price (“ESP”’). VSOE generally exists only when
the Company sells the deliverable separately and it is the price actually charged by the Company.

The Company has a return policy where the customers must make a request within 30 days of receipt to return the products when the
products delivered are defective. As of December 31, 2009, the Company has not received any returns. The Company has a policy that
provides coverage on repairs of its GPS devices for a period of one year after date of purchase. In the event when a repair is needed, the
customers will be responsible for the cost of the parts while the cost of labor will be covered by the Company. The Company estimates
the costs to service its obligations based on historical experience and expectation of future conditions. The Company incurred warranty
costs of $0 for the year ended December 31, 2009.

Revenues from fixed-price construction contracts are recognized on the completed-contract method. This method is used because most
of the construction and engineering contracts are completed within six months or less and financial position and results of operations
do not vary significantly from those which would result from using the percentage-of-completion method. A contract is considered
complete when all costs have been incurred and the installation is operating according to specifications or has been accepted by the
customer.

Contract costs include all direct material and labor costs and those indirect costs related to contract performance, such as indirect labor,
suppliers, tools, repairs, and depreciation costs. General and administrative costs are charged to expenses as incurred. Provisions for
estimated losses on uncompleted contracts are made in the period in which such losses are determined. Claims are included in revenues
when received.




ZST DIGITAL NETWORKS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

NOTE 3 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Comprehensive Income

The Company has adopted the standard of “Reporting Comprehensive Income”, which establishes standards for reporting and
displaying comprehensive income, its components, and accumulated balances in a full-set of general-purpose financial statements.
Accumulated other comprehensive income represents the accumulated balance of foreign currency translation adjustments.

Related Parties

A party is considered to be related to the Company if the party directly or indirectly or through one or more intermediaries, controls, is
controlled by, or is under common control with the Company. Related parties also include principal owners of the Company, its
management, members of the immediate families of principal owners of the Company and its management and other parties with
which the Company may deal if one party controls or can significantly influence the management or operating policies of the other to
an extent that one of the transacting parties might be prevented from fully pursuing its own separate interests. A party which can
significantly influence the management or operating policies of the transacting parties or if it has an ownership interest in one of the
transacting parties and can significantly influence the other to an extent that one or more of the transacting parties might be prevented
from fully pursuing its own separate interests is also a related party.

Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes in accordance with the standard of “Accounting for Income Taxes”, which requires an asset
and liability approach for financial accounting and reporting for income taxes and allows recognition and measurement of deferred tax
assets based upon the likelihood of realization of tax benefits in future years. Under the asset and liability approach, deferred taxes are
provided for the net tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting
purposes and the amounts used for income tax purposes. A valuation allowance is provided for deferred tax assets if it is more likely
than not these items will either expire before the Company is able to realize their benefits, or that future deductibility is uncertain.

The Company adopted standard of “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes,” which prescribes a comprehensive model for how a
company should recognize, measure, present and disclose in its financial statements uncertain tax positions that the Company has taken
or expects to take on a tax return (including a decision whether to file or not to file a return in a particular jurisdiction).

Research and Development

Research and development costs are expensed to operations as incurred. The Company spent $221,467, $0 and $88,864 on direct
research and development (“R&D”) efforts for the year ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

The Company received reimbursement from the local government therefore research and development expenses net of reimbursement
was $0 for the year ended December 31, 2008.

Advertising Costs

The Company expenses advertising costs as incurred and are classified under selling expenses. The Company did not incur any
advertising expenses for year ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

Foreign Currency Translation

The functional currency of ZST PRC is RMB, the functional currencies of World Orient, Global Asia, and Everfair are HKD, and the
functional currency of ZST Digital is the local currency, RMB. The Company used the RMB as the functional currency of ZST Digital
since RMB is the currency of primary economic environment. The Company maintains its financial statements using the functional
currency. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in currencies other than the functional currency are translated into the functional
currency at rates of exchange prevailing at the balance sheet dates. Transactions denominated in currencies other than the functional
currency are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transaction. Exchange gains or
losses arising from foreign currency transactions are included in the determination of net income (loss) for the respective periods.






ZST DIGITAL NETWORKS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

NOTE 3 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Foreign Currency Translation (Continued)

For financial reporting purposes, the financial statements of each subsidiary, which are prepared in either RMB or HKD, are translated
into the Company’s reporting currency, USD. Balance sheet accounts are translated using the closing exchange rate in effect at the
balance sheet date and income and expense accounts are translated using the average exchange rate prevailing during the reporting
period. Adjustments resulting from the translation, if any, are included in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) in the

owners’ equity.

The exchange rates used for foreign currency translation were as follows (USD$1 = RMB):

Period Covered Balance Sheet Date Rates Average Rates
Year Ended December 31, 2009 6.83720 6.84088
Year Ended December 31, 2008 6.81731 6.93730

The exchange rates used for foreign currency translation were as follows (USD$1 = HKD):

Period Covered Balance Sheet Date Rates Average Rates
Year Ended December 31, 2009 7.75510 7.75218
Year Ended December 31, 2008 7.74960 7.74960

Equity-Based Compensation

Equity-based compensation cost is measured at the grant date based on the fair value of the award and is recognized as expense over
the applicable vesting period of the equity award using the straight-line method.

Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2009, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued a standard that established the FASB Accounting Standards
Codification (ASC) and amended the hierarchy of generally accepted accounting principles (ASC) and amended the hierarchy of
generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) such that the ASC became the single source of authoritative nongovernmental U.S.
GAAP. The ASC did not change current U.S. GAAP, but was intended to simplify user access to all authoritative U.S. GAAP by
providing all the authoritative literature related to a particular topic in one place. All previously existing accounting standard
documents were superseded and all other accounting literature not included in the ASC is considered non-authoritative. New
accounting standards issued subsequent to June 30, 2009 are communicated by the FASB through Accounting Standards Updates
(ASUs). The Company adopted the ASC on July 1, 2009. This standard did not have an impact on the Company’s consolidated results
of operations or financial condition. However, throughout the notes to the consolidated financial statements references that were
previously made to various former authoritative U.S. GAAP pronouncements have been changed to coincide with the appropriate
section of the ASC.

In September 2006, the FASB issued an accounting standard codified in ASC 820, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures. This
standard established a single definition of fair value and a framework for measuring fair value, set out a fair value hierarchy to be used
to classify the source of information used in fair value measurements, and required disclosures of assets and liabilities measured at fair
value based on their level in the hierarchy. This standard applies under other accounting standards that require or permit fair value
measurements. One of the amendments deferred the effective date for one year relative to nonfinancial assets and liabilities that are
measured at fair value, but are recognized or disclosed at fair value on a nonrecurring basis. This deferral applied to such items as
nonfinancial assets and liabilities initially measured at fair value in a business combination (but not measured at fair value in
subsequent periods) or nonfinancial long-lived asset groups measured at fair value for an impairment assessment. The adoption of the
fair value measurement standard did not have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated results of operations or financial
condition.




ZST DIGITAL NETWORKS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

NOTE 3 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements (continued)

In December 2007, the FASB issued and, in April 2009, amended a new business combinations standard codified within ASC 805,
which changed the accounting for business acquisitions. Accounting for business combinations under this standard requires the
acquiring entity in a business combination to recognize all (and only) the assets acquired and liabilities assumed in the transaction and
establishes the acquisition-date fair value as the measurement objective for all assets acquired and liabilities assumed in a business
combination. Certain provisions of this standard impact the determination of acquisition-date fair value of consideration paid in a
business combination (including contingent consideration); exclude transaction costs from acquisition accounting; and change
accounting practices for acquisition-related restructuring costs, in-process research and development, indemnification assets, and tax
benefits. The Company adopted the standard for business combinations for its business combination during the period ended March 31,
2009.

In April 2009, the FASB issued an accounting standard which provides guidance on (1) estimating the fair value of an asset or liability
when the volume and level of activity for the asset or liability have significantly declined and (2) identifying transactions that are not
orderly. The standard also amended certain disclosure provisions for fair value measurements and disclosures in ASC 820 to require,
among other things, disclosures in interim periods of the inputs and valuation techniques used to measure fair value as well as
disclosure of the hierarchy of the source of underlying fair value information on a disaggregated basis by specific major category of
investment. The standard was effective prospectively beginning April 1, 2009. The adoption of this standard did not have a material
impact on the Company’s consolidated results of operations or financial condition.

In April 2009, the FASB issued an accounting standard which modifies the requirements for recognizing other-than-temporarily
impaired debt securities and changes the existing impairment model for such securities. The standard also requires additional
disclosures for both annual and interim periods with respect to both debt and equity securities. Under the standard, impairment of debt
securities will be considered other-than-temporary if an entity (1) intends to sell the security, (2) more likely than not will be required
to sell the security before recovering its cost, or (3) does not expect to recover the security’s entire amortized cost basis (even if the
entity does not intend to sell). The standard further indicates that, depending on which of the above factor(s) causes the impairment to
be considered other-than-temporary, (1) the entire shortfall of the security’s fair value versus its amortized cost basis or (2) only the
credit loss portion would be recognized in earnings while the remaining shortfall (if any) would be recorded in other comprehensive
income. The standard requires entities to initially apply its provisions to previously other-than-temporarily impaired debt securities
existing as of the date of initial adoption by making a cumulative-effect adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings in the
period of adoption. The cumulative-effect adjustment potentially reclassifies the noncredit portion of a previously other-than-
temporarily impaired debt security held as of the date of initial adoption from retained earnings to accumulated other comprehensive
income. The adoption of this standard did not have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated results of operations or financial
condition.

In April 2009, the FASB issued an accounting standard regarding interim disclosures about fair value of financial instruments. The
standard essentially expands the disclosure about fair value of financial instruments that were previously required only annually to also
be required for interim period reporting. In addition, the standard requires certain additional disclosures regarding the methods and
significant assumptions used to estimate the fair value of financial instruments. The adoption of this standard did not have a material
impact on the Company’s consolidated results of operations or financial condition.

In May 2009, the FASB issued a new accounting standard regarding subsequent events. This standard incorporates into authoritative
accounting literature certain guidance that already existed within generally accepted auditing standards, with the requirements
concerning recognition and disclosure of subsequent events remaining essentially unchanged. This guidance addresses events which
occur after the balance sheet date but before the issuance of financial statements. Under the new standard, as under previous practice,
an entity must record the effects of subsequent events that provide evidence about conditions that existed at the balance sheet date and
must disclose but not record the effects of subsequent events which provide evidence about conditions that did not exist at the balance
sheet date. This standard added an additional required disclosure relative to the date through which subsequent events have been
evaluated and whether that is the date on which the financial statements were issued. For the Company , this standard was effective
beginning April 1, 2009.
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ZST DIGITAL NETWORKS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

NOTE 3 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements (continued)

In June 2009, the FASB issued a new standard regarding the accounting for transfers of financial assets amending the existing guidance
on transfers of financial assets to, among other things, eliminate the qualifying special-purpose entity concept, include a new unit of
account definition that must be met for transfers of portions of financial assets to be eligible for sale accounting, clarify and change the
derecognition criteria for a transfer to be accounted for as a sale, and require significant additional disclosure. The standard is effective
for new transfers of financial assets beginning January 1, 2010. The adoption of this standard is not expected to have a material impact
on the Company’s consolidated results of operations or financial condition.

In June 2009, the FASB issued an accounting standard that revised the consolidation guidance for variable-interest entities. The
modifications include the elimination of the exemption for qualifying special purpose entities, a new approach for determining who
should consolidate a variable-interest entity, and changes to when it is necessary to reassess who should consolidate a variable-interest
entity. The standard is effective January 1, 2010. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of this standard, but would not
expect it to have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated results of operations or financial condition.

In August 2009, the FASB issued ASU No. 2009-05, Measuring Liabilities at Fair Value, which provides additional guidance on how
companies should measure liabilities at fair value under ASC 820. The ASU clarifies that the quoted price for an identical liability
should be used. However, if such information is not available, a entity may use, the quoted price of an identical liability when traded as
an asset, quoted prices for similar liabilities or similar liabilities traded as assets, or another valuation technique (such as the market or
income approach). The ASU also indicates that the fair value of a liability is not adjusted to reflect the impact of contractual
restrictions that prevent its transfer and indicates circumstances in which quoted prices for an identical liability or quoted price for an
identical liability traded as an asset may be considered level 1 fair value. This ASU is effective October 1, 2009. The Company is
currently evaluating the impact of this standard, but would not expect it to have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated
results of operations or financial condition.

In October 2009, the FASB issued ASU No. 2009-13, Multiple-Deliverable Revenue Arrangements—a consensus of the FASB
Emerging Issues Task Force , that provides amendments to the criteria for separating consideration in multiple-deliverable
arrangements. As a result of these amendments, multiple-deliverable revenue arrangements will be separated in more circumstances
than under existing U.S. GAAP. The ASU does this by establishing a selling price hierarchy for determining the selling price of a
deliverable. The selling price used for each deliverable will be based on vendor-specific objective evidence if available, third-party
evidence if vendor-specific objective evidence is not available, or estimated selling price if neither vendor-specific objective evidence
nor third-party evidence is available. A vendor will be required to determine its best estimate of selling price in a manner that is
consistent with that used to determine the price to sell the deliverable on a standalone basis. This ASU also eliminates the residual
method of allocation and will require that arrangement consideration be allocated at the inception of the arrangement to all deliverables
using the relative selling price method, which allocates any discount in the overall arrangement proportionally to each deliverable
based on its relative selling price. Expanded disclosures of qualitative and quantitative information regarding application of the
multiple-deliverable revenue arrangement guidance are also required under the ASU. The ASU does not apply to arrangements for
which industry specific allocation and measurement guidance exists, such as long-term construction contracts and software
transactions. The ASU is effective beginning January 1, 2011. Early adoption is permitted. The Company has adopted the standard and
it did not have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated results of operations or financial condition, as the Company did not
have a significant amount of sales that contain multiple elements.
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ZST DIGITAL NETWORKS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

NOTE 3 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements (continued)

In October 2009, the FASB issued ASU No. 2009-14, Certain Revenue Arrangements That Include Software Elements—a consensus of
the FASB Emerging Issues Task Force , that reduces the types of transactions that fall within the current scope of software revenue
recognition guidance. Existing software revenue recognition guidance requires that its provisions be applied to an entire arrangement
when the sale of any products or services containing or utilizing software when the software is considered more than incidental to the
product or service. As a result of the amendments included in ASU No. 2009-14, many tangible products and services that rely on
software will be accounted for under the multiple-element arrangements revenue recognition guidance rather than under the software
revenue recognition guidance. Under the ASU, the following components would be excluded from the scope of software revenue
recognition guidance: the tangible element of the product, software products bundled with tangible products where the software
components and non-software components function together to deliver the product’s essential functionality, and undelivered
components that relate to software that is essential to the tangible product’s functionality. The ASU also provides guidance on how to
allocate transaction consideration when an arrangement contains both deliverables within the scope of software revenue guidance
(software deliverables) and deliverables not within the scope of that guidance (non-software deliverables). The ASU is effective
beginning January 1, 2011. The Company has adopted this guidance and it did not have a material impact on the Company’s financial
condition or operating results in 2009, as the Company does not have a significant amount of sales that contain undelivered software
components that are not essential to the product’s functionality.

NOTE 4 - TRADE RECEIVABLES, NET

Trade receivables consist of the following:
December 31,

2009 2008
Trade receivables $ 18,982,676 $ 9,518,706
Trade receivables-10% hold back 5,902,821 2,803,393
Total $ 24,885,497 $ 12,322,099

The Company has not provided a bad debt allowance based upon its historical collection experience. There were no bad debts written
off for the year ended December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively and no accounts receivable outstanding in excess of 90 days at
December 31, 2009 and 2008. The aging of the accounts receivable are as follows:

December 31,

2009 2008
1-30 days $ 10,443,577 $ 3,910,105
31-60 days 8,539,099 5,367,043
61-90 days . 241,558
Total $ 18,982,676 $ 9,518,706

The trade receivables above are collateral for short-term bank loans in the amount of $3,931,991 at December 31, 2008.

The trade receivables — 10% hold back are held back by customers that are due one year from the date of delivery. As of December 31,
2009, there are no delinquent receivables.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

NOTE 5 - INVENTORIES, NET

Inventory consists of the following:
December 31,
2009 2008

Products for sale $ 1,245,803 § 775,185

The Company sold its production lines in 2006 and has operated as a distributor since that time. There was no reserve for obsolete
inventory for all the periods as the Company has purchased inventory based on customers’ orders.

NOTE 6 - EMPLOYEE ADVANCES

Employee advances consist of the following:
December 31, December 31,
2009 2008

Employee advances $ - 3 6,307

Employee advances for business operating expenses and were deducted from their monthly wages.
NOTE 7 -PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, NET

Property and equipment consist of the following:
December 31,

2009 2008
Machinery and equipment $ 89,203 $ 89,463
Electronic equipment 323,992 -
Office equipment 39,503 32,447
Automobiles 193,317 101,827
Accumulated depreciation (178,271) (189,589)
Property and equipment, net $ 467,744 S 34,148

The depreciation expenses were $45,546, $20,884 and $43,546 for the year ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007,
respectively. The company retired $56,337 of property and equipment and received $0 for the property and equipment retired for the
year ended December 31, 2009.

The depreciation expenses consist of the following:

For the Year Ended
December 31,
2009 2008 2007
Cost of sales or service $ 10,794 $ - $ -
Research and development 21,588 - -
General administrative 12,164 20,884 43,546
Total $ 45,546  $ 20,884 §$ 43,546
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NOTE 8 — INTANGIBLE ASSETS, NET

Intangible assets consist of the following:
December 31,

2009 2008
Software $ 643,538 $
Accumulated amortization (64,354)
Total $ 579,184 $

The amortization expenses were $64,319, $0 and $0 for the year ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

The amortization expenses consist of the following:

For the Year Ended
December 31,
2009 2008 2007
Cost of sales or service $ 42879 % -3
Research and development 21,440 -
Total $ 64,319 3 - 3
For the Year Ended
December 31,
2009 2008
Cost of sales or service $ 42,879 %
Research and development 21,440
Total $ 64,319 $

NOTE 9 —- SHORT-TERM DEMAND LOANS PAYABLE

Since 2005, the Company had several outstanding short-term demand corporation loans which were used primarily for general working
capital purposes. These short-term unsecured loans were borrowed from long-term relationship customers bearing no interest. The
imputed interests are assessed as an expense to the business operation and addition to the paid-in capital. The calculation is performed
monthly by annual rate in the rage from 5.58 to 7.30% with the reference to the one-year loan rate from The People’s Bank of China.

All the loans have been paid off as of June 30, 2008.

The imputed interests for the corporation loans above were $0, $36,573 and $70,079 for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and

2007, respectively.

The Company secured one-year bank loans from Bank of Communication and Austria Central Cooperation Bank. These loans carried
at an annual interest rate of 6.7275% for loans from Bank of Communication and 6.6975% for loans from Austria Central Cooperation
Bank Beijing Branch. Both loans are secured by accounts receivable of the Company. The loan has been paid off as of December 31,

2009.

The outstanding loan is as follows:

December 31, December 31,

2009 2008

Austria Central Cooperation Bank $ - $ 3,931,991

Interest expense incurred for the above short-term bank loan were $155,270, $338,742 and $196,323 for the year ended December 31,

2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

NOTE 10 - STATUTORY RESERVES

As stipulated by the relevant laws and regulations for enterprises operating in PRC, the subsidiaries of the Company are required to
make annual appropriations to a statutory surplus reserve fund. Specifically, the subsidiaries of the Company are required to allocate



10% their profits after taxes, as determined in accordance with the PRC accounting standards applicable to the subsidiaries of the
Company, to a statutory surplus reserve until such reserve reaches 50% of the registered capital of the subsidiaries of the Company.
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NOTE 11 - RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS
Due to related parties

For the year then ended December 31, 2008, the Company had an outstanding payable to Mr. Zhong, Ms. Sen, Mr. Huang, Ms. Wu,
and Ms. Li totaling $2,102,178, $13,759, $21,152, $211,814 and $10,825, respectively. These amounts are non-secured, non-interest
bearing, and are considered to be short-term within 5 months starting from October 6, 2008 to March 5, 2009. The notes were
converted into approximately 2,929,097 shares of common stock during the quarter ended March 31, 2009 in accordance with the
Purchase Right at $0.6907 per share. The shares are reflected as issued and outstanding on the statement of stockholders’ equity since
inception.

Due to related parties consist of the following:
December 31, December 31,

2009 2008
Sen, Hui (shareholder) $ -3 13,759
Zhong, Bo (CEO) - 2,102,178
Huang, Jenkang (Vice President) - 21,152
Wu, Dexiu (Warehousing, CEO's Spouse) - 211,814
Li, Yuting (Executive Secretary to CEO) - 10,825
Total $ - $ 2,359,728

The imputed interests were $31,417, $34,496 and $0 for the year ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively.
Exchange of related parties’ debt for common stock

Pursuant to relevant laws and regulations of China and the ownership transfer agreement with the original owners of ZST PRC, the
Company, through its Everfair subsidiary, agreed to pay approximately $1.7 million (RMB 12,000,000) to acquire the assets of ZST
PRC. As part of the purchase right agreement, the original owners agreed to use these proceeds to complete the exercise of the
Purchase Right to purchase the Company’s shares and obtain control of the Company. The payables were converted into approximately
2,161,218 shares of common stock during the quarter ended March 31, 2009 in accordance with the Purchase Rights at $0.6907 per
share. The shares are reflected as issued and outstanding on the statement of stockholders’ equity since inception.

NOTE 12 - ADVANCES

In accordance with the purchase contracts, the Company is required to make an advance to its suppliers to purchase the IPTV and GPS
devices materials and add-on process work. The advance is applied to the total invoice balance upon satisfaction of the delivered
goods.

For the year ended December 31, 2009, two suppliers accounted for 55% and 45%of the Company’s total advances to suppliers
respectively. The amounts of advances for the two suppliers are $4,069,528 and $3,329,613. Total purchases from these suppliers for
the year ended December 31, 2009 accounted for approximately 5% and 11% of total purchases.

For the year ended December 31, 2008, one supplier accounted for 100% and of the Company’s total advances to suppliers

respectively. The amounts of advances for the two suppliers are $3,667,136. Total purchases from this supplier for the year ended
December 31, 2008 accounted for approximately 10% of total purchases.
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NOTE 13 - INCOME TAXES AND OTHER

The Company is registered in PRC and has no tax advantages granted by local government for corporate income taxes and sales taxes
because it is a domestic corporation.

Beginning January 1, 2008, the new Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”) law has replaced the old laws for Domestic Enterprises (“DES”)
and Foreign Invested Enterprises (“FIEs”). The new standard EIT rate of 25% replaces the 33% rate applicable to both DES and FIEs,
except for High Tech companies that pay a reduced rate of 15%, subject to government verification for Hi-Tech company status in
every three years. For companies established before March 16, 2007 continue to enjoy tax holiday treatment approved by local
government for a grace period of either for the next 5 years or until the tax holiday term is completed, whichever is sooner.

The provision for taxes on earnings consisted of:

Year ended December 31,
2009 2008
PRC Corporate Income Tax $ 4,085,308 $ 2,132,565

A reconciliation between the income tax computed at the PRC statutory rate and the Company’s provision for income taxes is as
follows:

For the Year Ended
December 31,
2009 2008 2007
U.S. Statutory Rate 34% 34% 34%
Foreign income not recognized in the U.S. (34)% (34)% (34)%
PRC Enterprise Income Tax Rate 25% 25% 33%
Provision for income tax 25% 25% 33%

Tax Filings Subject to Reviews

The PRC tax authority conducts periodic and ad hoc tax filing reviews on business enterprises operating in the PRC after those
enterprises have completed their relevant tax filings such as operating taxes, income taxes, and VAT taxes, etc, hence the Company’s
tax filings may not be finalized. It is therefore uncertain as to whether the PRC tax authority may take different views about the
Company’s tax filings which may lead to additional tax liabilities. If the Company receives any notice or any claim from the PRC tax
authority or regarding the Company’s tax filings compliance with the regulations, the Company’s financial condition and results of
operations could be materially and adversely affected.

Various Taxes

The Company is subject to pay various taxes such as Value Added Tax (VAT), City Development Tax, Education Tax, Stamp Tax, and
Business Operating Tax to the PRC government tax authorities. The VAT collected on sales is netted against the taxes paid for
purchases of cost of sales to determine the amounts payable and refundable. The City Development Tax, Education Tax, Stamp Tax,
and Business Operating Tax are expensed as general and administrative expense.

Accounting for Uncertainty in Taxes

The Company accounts for uncertainty in taxes in accordance with applicable accounting standards, which prescribe a recognition
threshold and measurement process for financial statement recognition and measurement of a tax position taken or expected to be taken
in a tax return. These accounting standards also provide guidance on derecognition, classification, interest and penalties, accounting in
interim periods, disclosure and transition.

Based on the Company’s evaluation, the Company has concluded that there are no significant uncertain tax positions requiring
recognition in its financial statements.

The Company may from time to time be assessed interest or penalties by major tax jurisdictions. In the event it receives an assessment
for interest and/or penalties, it will be classified in the financial statements as tax expense.
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NOTE 14 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Office lease commitments

The Company has entered into new office lease agreements in 2009. It starts from May 2009 to April 2011. The company paid a
deposit of $7,334. The company’s commitment for lease will be approximately $58,000 per year. The lessor delayed the first year lease
payment and the Company will start to pay from May 2010.

Rent expense for the year ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007 were $24,972, $7,380 and $1,646, respectively.
Lack of insurance

The Company could be exposed to liabilities or other claims for which the Company would have no insurance protection. The
Company does not currently maintain any business interruption insurance, products liability insurance, or any other comprehensive
insurance policy except for property insurance policies with limited coverage. For example, because the Company does not carry
products liability insurance, a failure of any of the products marketed by the Company may subject it to the risk of product liability
claims and litigation arising from injuries allegedly caused by the improper functioning or design of its products. The Company cannot
assure that it will have enough funds to defend or pay for liabilities arising out of a products liability claim. To the extent the Company
incurs any product liability or other litigation losses, its expenses could materially increase substantially. There can be no assurance
that the Company will have sufficient funds to pay for such expenses, which could end its operations. There can be no guarantee that
the Company will be able to obtain additional insurance coverage in the future, and even if it can obtain additional coverage, the
Company may not carry sufficient insurance coverage to satisfy potential claims. All investors of the Company could lose their entire
investment should uninsured losses occur.

Fines and penalties by the housing authority

According to the relevant China regulations on housing provident funds, China enterprises are required to contribute housing provident
funds for their employees. Currently, ZhengZhou City has not strictly enforce such requirement on an established enterprise such as the
Company’s subsidiary, ZST PRC to establish the housing provident fund. It is the Company's goal to establish such fund for its
employee during the third and fourth quarter of the fiscal year 2010. Under local regulations on collection of housing provident funds
in ZhengZhou City where the Company’s subsidiary, ZST PRC, is located, the local housing authority may require the Company to
rectify its non-compliance by setting up bank accounts and making payment and relevant filings for the unpaid housing funds for its
employees within a specified time period. If the Company fails to do so within the specified time period, the local housing authority
may impose a monetary fine on it and may also apply to the local people’s court for enforcement. The Company’s employees may also
be entitled to claim payment of such funds individually. If the Company receives any notice from the local housing authority or any
claim from our current and former employees regarding the Company’s non-compliance with the regulations, the Company’s financial
condition and results of operations could be materially and adversely affected. As of December 31, 2009, the Company has not
received any notice from the housing authority or any claim from current and former employees. The Company has not accrued any
contingent liability as the amount of loss cannot be reasonably estimated.
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NOTE 15 - SEGMENT AND GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION

The standard of “Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information” requires certain financial and supplementary
information to be disclosed on an annual and interim basis for each reportable segment of an enterprise. The Company believes that it
operates in one business segment (research, development, production, marketing and sales of electronic products and services) and in

one geographical segment (China), as all of the Company’s current operations are carried out in China.

The Company’s revenues, costs and gross profits were broken into the following categories:

For the Year Ended
December 31,
2009 2008 2007
Product Sales:
Revenues $ 99,312,502  $ 54,200,946 $ 28,717,251
Cost of sales 83,277,087 45,169,613 23,221,360
Gross Profit $ 16,035,415 $ 9,031,333 § 5,495,891
Gross Margin 16.15% 16.66% 19.14%
Technical Support/Installation Revenues:
Revenues $ 1,024429 $§ 612918 §$ -
Cost of sales 35,146 33,710 -
Gross Profit $ 989283 $§ 579208 $ -
Gross Margin 96.57 94.50% -
GPS Service Revenues:
Revenues $ 77,188 $ -3 -
Cost of sales 20,449 - -
Gross Profit $ 56,739 $ -3 -
Gross Margin 73.51% - -
Construction Revenues:
Revenues $ - 3 616,955 $ -
Cost of sales - 390,920 -
Gross Profit $ - $ 226,035 $ -
Gross Margin - 36.64% -
Total revenues $100,414,115 $ 55,430,819 $ 28,717,251
Total Cost of sales 83,332,682 45,594,243 23,221,360
Total Gross Profit $ 17,081,433 $ 9,836,576 $ 5,495,891
Total Gross Margin 17.01% 17.75% 19.14%
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NOTE 16 - OPERATING RISK
Concentration risk

As aresult of the substantial amount and concentration of the Company’s customer base, substantial loss of significant customers could
materially and upon the Company’s business and financial condition.

The Company operates principally in the PRC and with a limited customer base which the products and services are sold to
governmental organization representing approximately 90% of the Company’s total revenues.

As a result of the substantial amount and concentration of the Company’s deposits (advances) and suppliers, an unanticipated
disruption in operations or slowdowns by the suppliers and shipping companies could adversely affect the Company’s ability to deliver
products and service customers which could materially and upon the Company’s business and financial condition.

For the year ended December 31, 2009, three suppliers accounted for approximately 39%, 11%, and 10% of the Company’s total
purchases for the year, respectively.

For year ended December 31, 2008, three suppliers accounted for approximately 35%, 20%, and 10% of the Company’s total purchases
for the year, respectively.

Country risk

The Company has significant investments in the PRC. The operating results of the Company may be adversely affected by changes in
the political and social conditions in the PRC and by changes in Chinese government policies with respect to laws and regulations,
anti-inflationary measures, currency conversion, international remittances and rates and methods of taxation, among other things. The
Company can give no assurance that those changes in political and other conditions will not result in have a material adverse effect
upon the Company’s business and financial condition.

Exchange risk

The Company cannot guarantee the Renminbi, US dollar exchange rate will remain steady, and therefore, the Company could post the
same profit for two comparable periods and post higher or lower profit depending on exchange rate of Renminbi and US dollars. The
exchange rate could fluctuate depending on changes in the political and economic environments without notice.

Credit risk

The Company maintains cash balances at various financial institutions in the PRC that do not provide insurance for amounts on
deposit. The Company has not experienced any losses in such accounts and believes it is not exposed to significant credit risk in this
area.

The Company operates principally in the PRC and grants credit to its customers. Although the PRC is economically stable, it is always

possible that unanticipated events both domestically and in foreign countries could disrupt the operations of the Company or its
customers.
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NOTE 17 - COMMON STOCK

On January 9, 2009, ZST Digital closed a share exchange transaction (the “Share Exchange”) pursuant to which ZST Digital (i) issued
806,408 shares of its common stock to acquire 100% equity ownership of World Orient Universal Limited (“World Orient”), which is
the 100% parent of Global Asia Universal Limited (“Global Asia”), which is the 100% parent of Everfair Technologies Limited
(“Everfair”), which is a 100% parent of Zhengzhou Shenyang Technology Company Limited (“ZST PRC”), (ii) assumed the operations
of World Orient and its subsidiaries, and (iii) changed its name from SRKP 18, Inc. to ZST Digital Networks, Inc.

Immediately after the closing of the Share Exchange but prior to the Private Placement, ZST Digital had outstanding 2,000,788 shares
of common stock, no shares of preferred stock, no options, and warrants to purchase 176,629 shares of common stock at an exercise
price of $0.00024621 per share.

On January 14, 2009, Zhong Bo, the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board, Wu Dexiu, Huang Jiankang, Sun
Hui and Li Yuting (the “ZST Management”), each entered into a Common Stock Purchase Agreement pursuant to which the Company
issued and the ZST Management purchased an aggregate of 5,090,315 shares of our common stock at a per share purchase price of
$0.6907 (the “Purchase Right”). The purchase price for the shares was paid in full on May 25, 2009.

Prior to the closing of the Share Exchange, each of the shareholders and warrantholders of the Company canceled 0.3317 shares of
common stock and warrants to purchase 0.5328 shares of common stock held by each of them for each one (1) share of common stock
purchased by the ZST Management pursuant to the Purchase Right (the “Share and Warrant Cancellation™). Pursuant to the Share and
Warrant Cancellation, an aggregate of 1,688,533 shares of common stock and warrants to purchase 2,712,283 shares of common stock
held by certain of our stockholders and warrantholders prior to the Share Exchange were cancelled.

On October 20, 2009, the Company completed a public offering and sold 3,125,000 shares of its common stock at $8.00 per share. The
Company granted the representative of the underwriters a 45-day option to purchase up to an additional 468,750 shares of common
stock at $8.00 per share. The shares of the Company’s common stock were sold to the public for gross proceeds of approximately $25
million. The over-allotment shares have not been sold.
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NOTE 18 — SERIES A CONVERTIBLE PREFERRED STOCK
The Company is authorized to issue 10,000,000 shares of preferred stock.

On January 5, 2009, the Company filed a Certificate of Designations, Preferences and Rights (the “Certificate”) whereby it designated
3,750,000 shares of its preferred stock, $0.0001 par value per share, as Series A Convertible Preferred Stock, (the “Preferred
Stock™). Each share of Preferred Stock has a stated value of $3.94. Each share of Preferred Stock is convertible, at the option of the
holder at any time and from time to time after the original issue date of the Preferred Stock, into one share of Common Stock, at a
conversion price equal to the per share purchase price, subject to adjustment as more fully described in the Certificate. Each share of
Preferred Stock has the right to one vote per share of Common Stock issuable upon conversion of the shares of Preferred Stock.

In 2009, the Company conducted five closings of a private placement transaction (the “Private Placement”). As of December 31, 2009,
pursuant to subscription agreements entered into with the investors, the Company sold an aggregate of 1,263,723 shares of Series A
Convertible Preferred Stock at $3.94 per share for gross proceeds of $4,976,953. Each share of Preferred Stock shall be convertible at
the option of the holder thereof, at any time and from time to time from and after the Original Issue Date into that number of shares of
Common Stock determined by dividing the Stated Value of $3.94 of such share of Preferred Stock by the Conversion Price of $3.94.

On January 9, 2009, the Company conducted an initial closing of the Private Placement. Pursuant to subscription agreements entered
into with investors, the Company sold an aggregate of 445,874 shares of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock at $3.94 per share. As a
result, the Company received gross proceeds in the amount of $1,750,902. In connection with the initial closing of the Private
Placement, the Company issued a promissory note in the principal amount of $170,000, bearing no interest, to WestPark Capital
Financial Services, LLC, the parent company of WestPark, the placement agent for the Private Placement (the “Note”).

On January 23, 2009, the Company conducted a second closing of the Private Placement. Pursuant to subscription agreements entered
into with investors, the Company sold an aggregate of 132,264 shares of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock at $3.94 per share. As a
result, the Company received gross proceeds in the amount of $525,000, of which $170,000 was used to repay the Note in full.

On February 13, 2009, the Company conducted a third closing of the Private Placement. Pursuant to subscription agreements entered
into with investors, the Company sold an aggregate of 332,917 shares of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock at $3.94 per share. As a
result, the Company received gross proceeds in the amount of $1,310,000.

On April 15, 2009, the Company conducted a fourth closing of the Private Placement. Pursuant to subscription agreements entered into
with investors, the Company sold an aggregate of 203,924 shares of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock at $3.94 per share. As a
result, the Company received gross proceeds in the amount of $804,000.

On May 5, 2009, the Company conducted a fifth closing of the Private Placement. Pursuant to subscription agreements entered into
with investors, the Company sold an aggregate of 148,744 shares of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock at $3.94 per share. As a
result, the Company received gross proceeds in the amount of $587,051.

In accordance with the standard of “Beneficial Conversion Feature” codified within ASC 470, the Series A Convertible Preferred Stock
does not have an embedded beneficial conversion feature (BCF) because the effective conversion price of such shares equals the fair
value of the Company’s common stock. The Company determined that the fair value of the common stock at $3.94 per share based on
the fact that (1) the common stock is not readily tradable in an open market at the time of issuance, and (2) the Company has recently
sold the convertible preferred stock that is convertible into common stock at 1:1 ratio for $3.94 per share in a private placement,
therefore the market price of the common stock is $3.94 per share. However, if in the future the Company has a dilutive issuance of
securities, as defined in the Preferred Stock Certificate of Designation, the Company must recognize a beneficial conversion if and
when a reset of the conversion price occurs.
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NOTE 18 — SERIES A CONVERTIBLE PREFERRED STOCK (continued)

Value Allocated to Preferred Stocks:

Proceeds from issuance $ 4,976,953
Less value allocated to warrants -
Value allocated to preferred stocks $ 4,976,953

Market Value of Shares Issuable Upon Conversion:

Shares issuable upon conversion of the preferred stocks 1,263,723
Market value of stock on preferred stock issuance date $ 3.94
Market value of shares issuable upon conversion $ 4,976,953

Beneficial Conversion Feature:

Market value of shares issuable upon conversion $ 4,976,953
Less value allocated to preferred stocks 4,976,953
Value of beneficial conversion feature $ -

The Company evaluated whether or not the Series A Convertible Preferred Stock contained any embedded conversion features that
meet the definition of derivatives under the “Embedded Derivative” standard codified within ASC 815, and related interpretations. The
standard states that an embedded derivative instrument shall be separated from the host contract and accounted for as a derivative
instrument pursuant to the statement if and only if all the following criteria are met:

a. The economic characteristics and risks of the embedded derivative instrument are not clearly and closely related to the
economic characteristic and the risks to the host contact. (Additional guidance on applying this criterion to various contracts
containing embedded derivative instrument s is included in Appendix A of this statement.)

b. The contract that embodies both the embedded derivative instrument and the host contract are not measured at fair value
under otherwise applicable generally accepted accounting principles with changes in fair value reported in earnings as they
occur.

c. A separate instrument with the same terms as the embedded derivative instrument would, pursuant to subtopic 10 of the
standard codified within ASC 815, be a derivative instrument subject to the requirements of this statement. However, this
criterion is not met if the separate instrument with the same terms as the embedded derivative instrument would be
classified as a liability (or an asset in some circumstance) under the provisions of the standard codified within ASC 480 but
would be classified in stockholders’ equity absent the provisions in the standard codified within ASC 480.

The Series A Convertible Preferred Stock has a fixed conversion provision of 1 preferred share for 1 common share and is convertible
at the option of the holder and automatically based upon certain events happening. Based upon the above requirement of subtopic 15 of
ASC 815, it is clear that any potential embedded derivatives in the Series A Convertible Preferred Stock are clearly and closely related
and do not require bifurcation from the host.

The Company evaluated whether or not the convertible preferred stock should be classified as a liability or equity under the standard
codified within ASC 480, “Accounting for Certain Financial Instruments with Characteristics of Both Liabilities and Equity” and EITF
Topic D-98 “Classification and Measurement of Redeemable Securities”. The Company concluded that under EITF Topic D-98,
preferred securities that are redeemable for cash or other assets are to be classified outside of permanent equity if they are redeemable
(i) at a fixed or determinable price on a fixed or determinable date, (ii) at the option of the holder, or (iii) upon the occurrence of an
event that is not solely within the control of the issuer. Accordingly, the Company classified the Series A Convertible Preferred Stock
as permanent equity since there were no deemed liquidation events that require one or more class or type of equity security to be
redeemed.

On December 7, 2009, the Company issued 1,263,723 shares of common stock upon conversion of the 1,263,723 shares of Series A

Convertible Preferred Stock into common stock. Upon conversion of the Series A Convertible Preferred Stock, the shares resumed the
status of authorized but unissued shares of preferred stock and will no longer be designated as Series A Convertible Preferred Stock.
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NOTE 19 - EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic net income per share is computed by dividing net income by the weighted-average number of shares outstanding during the
period.

Diluted net income per share is computed by using the weighted-average number of shares of common stock outstanding and, when
dilutive, potential shares from options and warrants to purchase common stock, using the treasury stock method.

The following table illustrates the computation of basic and dilutive net income per share and provides a reconciliation of the number
of weighted-average basic and diluted shares outstanding:

For the Year Ended
December 31,
2009 2008 2007

Net income $ 10,178,569 $ 6,108,471 $ 2,867,429
Denominator:

Basic weighted-average shares outstanding 8,776,491 5,896,723 5,896,723

Diluted weighted-average shares outstanding 8,776,491 5,896,723 5,896,723
Net income per share:

Basic $ 1.16 $ 1.04 $ 0.49

Diluted $ 1.16 $ 1.04 $ 0.49

The Series A Convertible Preferred Stock are contingently issuable shares because the shares may be converted at any time at the sole
election of the holder as defined in ASC 260-10-45-124A. The Company recognized these shares as outstanding common stock and
has included these shares in the computation of basic earnings per share.

NOTE 20 - STOCK WARRANTS AND OPTIONS

In January 2007, the Company sold to its original shareholders common stock warrants to purchase 2,882,912 shares of common stock
at an exercise price of $0.0002462. On January 14, 2009, these shareholders canceled an aggregate of 2,712,283 warrants such that the
shareholders held an aggregate of 170,629 warrants immediately after the Share Exchange. The warrant has a 5 year term and is not
exercisable until at least one year from the date of Share Exchange. The Company issued 170,616 shares of common stock upon
cashless exercise of the 170,629 warrants on December 23, 2009.

On October 20, 2009, the Company issued common stock warrants to the underwriters to purchase 156,250 shares of the Company’s
common stock at an exercise price of $10 per share. The warrants have a 5-year term and are not exercisable until at least one year

from the date of issuance in connection to the public offering that closed on October 20, 2009.

The summary of the status of the Company’s outstanding warrant for the year ended December 31, 2009 is as follows:

Average
Issuance date Warrants Exercise Price
October 20, 2009 156,250 ¢ 10
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NOTE 20 - STOCK WARRANTS AND OPTIONS (continued)

On October 20, 2009, the Company issued common stock options to Dr. Chen, CFO, to purchase 25,000 shares of the common stock
of the Company at an exercise price of $8.00 per share and exercisable until October 20, 2014 pursuant to an employment agreement
signed on October §, 2009. (Refer to Note 21)

The summary of the status of the Company’s outstanding option activity for the year ended December 31, 2009 is as follows:

Average
Issuance date Options Exercise Price

October 20, 2009 25,000 g 8

NOTE 21 - EQUITY BASED COMPENSATION

On October 8, 2009, the Company entered into an employment agreement with John Chen, M.D., regarding his employment by the
Company as its new Chief Financial Officer (the “Employment Agreement”). Dr. Chen’s appointment as Chief Financial Officer was
effective on October 20, 2009 (the “Effective Date”). Pursuant to the Employment Agreement, Dr. Chen was granted options to
purchase 25,000 shares of the common stock of the Company at an exercise price of $8.00 per share and exercisable until October 20,
2014. The options will be immediately exercisable but, to the extent they are exercised, will be subject to a repurchase right of the
Company which will lapse as follows: 50% of the options and shares will vest six (6) months after the Effective Date and the
remaining 50% will vest twelve (12) months after the Effective Date.

The Company determined the fair value of the stock options granted was $172,863 using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model with
risk-free interest rate of 0.39%, warrant life is the contractual term of 5 years, expected volatility of 133% and zero expected dividends.
The Company amortized the stock option granted as compensation over a period of 12 months. The equity based compensation
expense was $34,193 for the year ended December 31, 2009.

NOTE 22 - UNAUDITED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Quarter Ended
December 31,2009 September 30, 2009 June 30,2009 March 31, 2009 Total
Revenues $ 30,346,931 $ 28,627,644 $ 23,678,912 $ 1,7760,628 $ 99,312,502
Operating Income 4,198,174 4,454,015 3,400,441 1,945,344 14,027,987
Net Income $ 3,078,453 § 3,291,827 $ 2,651,931 § 1,246,358 $ 10,178,569
Net Income per Share
Basic $ 028 $ 039 $ 0.14 $ 0.07 $ 1.16
Diluted $ 028 $ 039 $ 0.14 $ 0.07 $ 1.16
Quarter Ended
December 31, 2008 September 30,2008 June 30,2008 March 31, 2008 Total
Revenues $ 14,443,490 $ 15,209,026 § 12,263,272 § 13,515,031 $ 55,430,819
Operating Income 1,993,993 2,430,611 1,845,149 2,393,505 8,663,258
Net Income $ 1,301,600 $ 1,681,566 $ 1,402,683 § 1,722,622 $ 6,108,471
Net Income per Share
Basic $ 022 $ 029 $ 0.10 $ 012 $ 1.04
Diluted $ 022 $ 029 $ 0.10 $ 012  $ 1.04
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NOTE 23 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Company has evaluated subsequent events through the date that the financial statements were issued, which was March 31, 2010,
the date of the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the period ended December 31, 2009.

NOTE 24 - CONDENSED PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Basis of Presentation

The condensed parent company financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Rule 12-04, Schedule I of Regulation S-X,
as the restricted net assets of the subsidiaries of ZST Digital exceed 25% of the consolidated net assets of ZST Digital. The ability of
our Chinese operating subsidiaries to pay dividends may be restricted due to the foreign exchange control policies and availability of
cash balances of the Chinese operating subsidiaries. Because substantially all of our operations are conducted in China and a
substantial majority of our revenues are generated in China, a majority of our revenue being earned and currency received are
denominated in Renminbi (RMB). RMB is subject to the exchange control regulation in China, and, as a result, we may be unable to
distribute any dividends outside of China due to PRC exchange control regulations that restrict our ability to convert RMB into US
Dollars.

The condensed parent company financial statements have been prepared using the same accounting principles and policies described in
the notes to the consolidated financial statements, with the only exception being that the parent company accounts for its subsidiaries
using the equity method. Refer to the consolidated financial statements and notes presented above for additional information and
disclosures with respect to these financial statements.
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NOTE 24 - CONDENSED PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL INFORMATION (continued)

ZST Digital Networks, Inc.
(Formerly SRKP 18, Inc.)

Condensed Parent Company Balance Sheets

(Dollars In Thousands)
December 31, December 31,
2009 2008
(Restated)

ASSETS
Investment in subsidiaries, at equity in net assets $ 47874 $ 8,983
Deferred compensation 139 -
Total Assets 47,889 8,983
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accrued liabilities and other payable 233 -
Total Current Liabilities 233 -
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES - -
STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Preferred stock, $0.0001 par value, 10,000,000 shares authorized, 7,513,723 shares undesignated,

0 and 0 shares issued and outstanding at December 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008, respectively. - -
Preferred stock Series A Convertible, $0.0001 par value, 2,486,277 shares authorized, 0 and 0 shares

issued and outstanding at December 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008, respectively. Liquidation

preference and redemption value of $0 at December 31, 2009. - -
Common stock, $0.0001 par value, 100,000,000 shares authorized, 11,650,442 and 5,896,723 shares

issued and outstanding at December 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008, respectively. 1 1
Additional paid-in capital 30,678 1,488
Accumulated other comprehensive income 20 591
Statutory surplus reserve fund 3,328 1,492
Retained earnings (unrestricted) 13,753 5,411
Total Stockholders' Equity 47,780 8,983
Total Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity $ 48,013 § 8,983
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NOTE 24 - CONDENSED PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL INFORMATION (continued)

ZST Digital Networks, Inc.
(Formerly SRKP 18, Inc.)

Condensed Parent Company Statements of Operations

Revenue
Merger cost
Other general and administrative

Total Expenses

Equity in undistributed income of subsidiaries
Income before income taxes

Provision for income tax

Net income

(Dollars In Thousands)
For the Period from
January 3, 2007
For the Year Ended (Inception) to
December 31, December 31,
2009 2008 2007

$ - S -8 -
555 - -
350 - -
905 - -
11,084 6,108 2,867
10,179 6,108 2,867
$ 10,179 $ 6,108 $ 2,867
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NOTE 24 - CONDENSED PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL INFORMATION (continued)

ZST Digital Networks, Inc.
(Formerly SRKP 18, Inc.)

Condensed Parent Company Statements of Cash Flows

(Dollars In Thousands)

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
provided (used) by operating activities:
Stock option issued as compensation
Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Increase in accrued liabilities and other payable
Equity in undistributed income of subsidiaries

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Capital contribution to subsidiaries

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Investing Activities

Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Net proceeds from sale of preferred stocks
Net proceeds from sale of common stocks

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Investing Activities
Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents, beginning of period
Cash and Cash Equivalents, end of period

Supplemental disclosure information:

Non-cash Investing and Financing activities:
Shares issued for related parties' debt
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For the Period from
January 3, 2007
For the Year Ended (Inception) to
December 31, December 31,
2009 2008 2008
$ 10,179 $ 6,108 $ 2,876
34
233 - -
(11,084) (6,108) (2,876)
(638) - -
(25,131) - -
(25,131) - -
3,534 - -
22,235
25,769 - -
$ - 5 - 8§ -
$ 2,360 $ - 8 -




